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>>Committee commenced at 13:29 
 
Chairman (Mr. Schell): Good afternoon. I 

ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒥᓂᕐᓂᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 

ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓂᖏᑦ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᒻᒪᕆᐅᑉ 
2010-ᒥ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᖓᓄᑦ  

ᐃᖃᓗᐃᑦ, ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᓯᑎᐱᕆ 27, 2010 

 
 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᖅᑏᑦ ᐅᐸᒃᑐᑦ: 
ᒨᓯᓯ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ 
ᕌᓐ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ 
ᐋᑕᒥ ᖁᒻᒧᐊᑦᑐᖅ 
ᔮᓐ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ 
ᔮᓂ ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ 
ᐹᓪ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ 
ᐋᓚᓐ ᕋᒻᐴᑦ 
ᕗᕆᑦ ᓯᐊᓪ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᔨᓂ ᐅᒡᔪᖅ 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ: 
ᐋᓕᒃᔅ ᐹᓪᑐᐃᓐ 
ᓯᑏᕙᓐ ᐃᓄᒃᓱᒃ 
 
ᑐᓵᔩᑦ: 
ᓖᑎᐊ ᔭᐃᓐᔅ 
ᓇᐃᒥ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᖅ-ᐳᕌᓴ 
ᒥᐊᓕ ᓇᓱᒃ 
ᐸᓚᓐᑏᓇ ᑐᓗᒑᕐᔪᒃ 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ: 
ᓰᓚ ᕗᕋᐃᓱ, ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᕐᔪᐊᖅ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ 
ᕌᓂ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ, ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᕐᔪᐊᑉ ᑐᓪᓕᐊ 
ᒥᓯᐊᓪ ᓴᓪᕙᐃ, ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᒻᒪᕆᒃ 
ᐲᑕ ᒌᑭ, ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᓄᑦ 

ᑐᓪᓕᕆᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᓰᓚ ᑯᓗᓛᖅ, ᑐᑭᒧᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔨ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ 

ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔭᐃᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐊᓗᑭ ᕉᕼᐊᔅ, ᒐᕙᒪᐅᖃᑎᒌᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᑕ 

ᑐᓪᓕᐊ 
ᓗᐄᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᑕ 

ᑐᓪᓕᐊ 
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑐᑦ 13:29-ᒥ 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᒥᔅᑕ ᓯᐊᓪ)(ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐅᓐᓄᓴᒃᑯᑦ. 
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would like to invite the Auditor General 
and her staff and the Deputy Minister of 
Human Resources and her staff to the 
hearing. I would ask that Mr. Ningeongan 
do the opening prayer. 
 
>>Prayer 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Now we will 
review and adoption of the agenda. Does 
everybody agree?  
 
Some Members: Agreed.  
 
Chairman: I’ll start with my opening 
statement.  
 
Good afternoon and thank you. I would 
like to welcome everyone to this meeting 
of the Legislative Assembly’s Standing 
Committee on Oversight of Government 
Operations and Public Accounts. We have 
convened today to begin the Standing 
Committee’s hearings on the most recent 
report of the Auditor General of Canada to 
the Legislative Assembly of Nunavut. This 
report was tabled in the House in March of 
this year. 
 
I would like to begin by introducing my 
Committee colleagues: 
Moses Aupaluktuq, Member for Baker 

Lake; 
Ron Elliott, Member for Quttiktuq; 
Adamee Komoartok, Member for 

Pangnirtung; 
John Ningark, Member for Akulliq; 
Johnny Ningeongan, Member for Nanulik; 
Paul Okalik, Member for Iqaluit West; 
Allan Rumbolt, Member for Hudson Bay; 

and 
Jeannie Ugyuk, Member for Nattilik 
 
Our Committee staff are Alex Baldwin and 
Stephen Innuksuk. 
 

ᑖᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᑦᑎᐸᒃᑲ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ ᑐᒃᓯᐊᕐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᖁᕙᕋ. 
 
 
>>ᑐᒃᓯᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᓈᒻᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᖏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ. ᐊᖏᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ? 
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ: ᐊᖏᖅᐳᒍᑦ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐱᒋᐊᕈᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᒃᑲ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᒃᑲ. 
 
ᐅᓐᓄᓴᒃᑯᑦ, ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦᑎ. ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒃᑎᑦᑎᒍᒪᔪᖓ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑕ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᑦ ᓇᐅᖅᓯᖅᑐᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᓪᓗ. ᐅᓪᓗᒥ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓯᔪᒍᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᓈᓚᒃᑎᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᐅᑎᖃᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒥᓂᕐᓂᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᓯᕆᓂᐊᕐᒪᒍ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᕆᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐅᑯᐊᖑᔪᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖁᑎᕗᑦ: 
ᒨᓯᓯ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᖃᒪᓂᑦᑐᐊᕐᒧᑦ; 
ᐅᕌᓐ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᖁᑦᑎᑦᑐᕐᒧᑦ; 
ᐋᑕᒥ ᖁᒻᒧᐊᑦᑐᖅ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᐸᓐᓂᖅᑑᒧᑦ; 
ᔮᓐ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᐊᑯᓪᓕᕐᒧᑦ; 
ᔮᓂ ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᓇᓄᓕᒃ; 
ᐹᓪ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᐃᖃᓗᐃᑦ ᐱᓇᓐᓇᖓᓄᑦ; 
ᐋᓪ ᕋᒻᐴᑦ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᕼᐊᑦᓴᓐ ᐸᐃᒧᑦ; 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᔨᓂ ᐅᒡᔪᒃ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᓇᑦᑎᓕᒻᒧᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐅᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ ᐋᓚᒃᔅ ᐹᓪᐅᐃᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓯᑏᐸᓐ ᐃᓄᒃᓱᒃ. 
 
 



3  

As Co-Chair of the Standing Committee 
and on behalf of everyone present, I would 
like to send our best wishes to Committee 
Chairman James Arvaluk, who is currently 
is currently on medical travel in Ottawa. 
My understanding is that he had an 
operation today, so our hearts and our best 
wishes go to him and hope he has a speedy 
recovery. 
 
This is Ms. Fraser’s ninth appearance 
before a Standing Committee of the 
Legislative Assembly of Nunavut, and we 
are all very pleased that she has again taken 
the time to travel to Iqaluit in order to 
appear before us in person. I would like to 
note for the public record the Committee’s 
appreciation for her commitment to the 
North during her term of office which ends 
next year.  
 
Members are pleased to note that in August 
of this year, the Auditor General had the 
opportunity to visit Grise Fiord and 
become personally acquainted with what 
life is like in the High Arctic. This 
awareness will also benefit her office’s 
reporting to Parliament on federal 
programs that impact the North. 
 
The Auditor General prepares reports to the 
Legislative Assembly in which 
management issues that arise during the 
course of her office’s audits are brought to 
the attention of Nunavut’s MLAs. These 
reports are tabled in the House and made 
available to the public. 
 
In September of last year, during this 
Committee’s hearing on the Auditor 
General’s 2009 reports on the financial 
management practices of the Department of 
Health and Social Services and the follow-
up report on financial management 
practices of the Government of Nunavut, 
Members engaged in a dialogue with 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᖅᑐᒋᑦ 
ᑕᒫᓃᑦᑐᑦ. ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᖁᕙᕗᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᕗᑦ ᔭᐃᒥᓯ ᐊᕐᕚᕐᓗᒃ ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓅᓕᓴᖅᑕᐅᔭᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐋᑐᐊᒥ. ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒎᖅ 
ᐱᓚᒃᑕᐅᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓃᑦᑎᐊᖁᓂᐊᖅᐸᕗᑦ 
ᓱᒃᑲᔪᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᔅ ᕗᕇᓴ 9-ᒋᓕᖅᑕᖓᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᓵᖓᓄᐊᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖁᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒃᐳᒍᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓅᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᐊᓐᓅᒻᒪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᖁᔨᔪᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᒃ ᖁᔭᓕᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᖅᑐᕐᒥᐅᓄᑦ ᑲᒪᔨᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓱᓕᓐᓂᐊᓕᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᓂᖓ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒎᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᖁᕕᐊᓱᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐋᒍᓯᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᐸᒍᑎᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓱᐃᑦᑐᒥ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓚᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᓂ 
ᖁᑦᑎᒃᑐᕐᒥᐅᓄᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐱᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᑎᕐᔪᐊᓄᑦ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ ᐊᑦᑐᐃᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᖅᑐᒥ. 
 
 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᒥᐊᓂᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᓄᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᓂᒃ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑐᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒥ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᓂᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
 
 
ᓯᑎᐱᕆᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᕐᕌᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒥᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᑦ 2009-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᓂᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᕆᕙᒃᑕᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᖃᕐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓄᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᓪᓗ ᐸᕐᕆᔾᔪᓯᕆᕙᒃᑕᖏᑦᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᐳᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᓪᓗ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᑦ 
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witnesses from the Office of the Auditor 
General and the Government of Nunavut 
on the issue of human resource capacity in 
Nunavut.  
 
The Standing Committee is pleased to have 
the opportunity to focus on the issue of 
human resource capacity today. The terms 
of reference for this Standing Committee 
include the mandate to review matters 
related to the Department of Human 
Resources and the reports of the Auditor 
General. 
 
The Department of Human Resources is a 
central agency of the Government of 
Nunavut that provides government-wide 
human resource services. The Government 
of Nunavut’s 2010-11 main estimates 
budgeted over $22 million for this 
department. It is essential that action be 
taken to address the issues identified in the 
Auditor General’s report, and it is our hope 
and expectation that these hearings will 
provide the opportunity for detailed 
scrutiny of the government’s progress. 
 
On March 18 of this year, the Auditor 
General’s report on Human Resource 
Capacity in the Government of Nunavut 
was tabled in the House. The report 
includes recommendations from the 
Auditor General and responses from the 
Department of Human Resources. 
Members recognize that although human 
resources plays a key coordinating role, all 
departments and agencies share a 
responsibility in working towards a healthy 
public service. 
 
Earlier this year, this Standing Committee 
reviewed the 2010-11 Business Plan of the 
Department of Human Resources, which 
indicated that the department would 
develop an action plan to address the 
concerns raised by the Auditor General. 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓈᓴᐃᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᒥ. 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒃᑐᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᓐᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓵᖓᑦᑎᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᑎᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕆᐊᖃᖅᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐊᒃᑐᐊᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒥᓂᕐᓂᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓ. 
 
ᑐᖅᑲᖅᑕᕐᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ ᒐᕙᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᒫᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ 2010-2011-ᒥ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒃᓴᖏᑦ $22,000,000 ᐅᖓᑖᓃᓕᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑖᒃᓱᒧᓐᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒻᒧᑦ. ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᕗᖅ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᖃᓕᕋᑦᑕ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓗᑕ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓗᑕ. ᓂᕆᐅᒃᑐᒍᓪᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓈᓚᒃᑎᐅᓗᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒃᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᒫᔾᔨ 18-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᕆᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖓᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓴᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᒻᒥ, 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓂᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᑭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᕗᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᖓᓂᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᕈᑎᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓕᒫᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒋᔭᖏᑦ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᖃᓄᐃᖏᑎᐊᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐱᔨᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒥᑦ. 
 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᒋᕋᑖᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
2010-11ᒥᑦ ᐸᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓴᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᑭᐅᔾᔪᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᓂᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ. ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
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We look forward to holding the 
government to account with respect to its 
fulfillment of this commitment, in addition 
to reviewing the government’s progress to 
date in addressing the lack of human 
resource capacity in the Government of 
Nunavut.  
 
I would also note that during the June 
sitting of the Legislative Assembly, the 
Committee of the Whole began a detailed 
review of the government’s contracting, 
procurement and leasing practices. A 
significant issue that has emerged during 
these proceedings is the government’s high 
use of consultants and contractors. This 
observation is also contained in the Auditor 
General’s report. I anticipate that Members 
will take the findings from this week’s 
hearings into consideration when the 
review of the government’s contracting 
practices resumes during next month’s 
sitting of the House. 
 
Before closing, I would like to take a 
moment to review the agenda of this week 
and cover some housekeeping matters. 
Following the Auditor General’s opening 
statement the Deputy Minister of Human 
Resources will be invited to make her 
remarks. After a recess, the Committee will 
reconvene and Members will have the 
opportunity to pose general questions and 
comments to the Auditor General and other 
witnesses. We will then proceed to the 
detailed paragraph-by-paragraph review of 
the Auditor General’s report to the 
Legislative Assembly on the human 
resource capacity of the Government of 
Nunavut. 
 
These hearings are being recorded and 
televised. Transcripts of the hearings will 
be produced and posted on the Legislative 
Assembly’s website at a later date. In order 
to assist our interpreters and technical staff, 

ᓂᕆᐅᒋᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᓂᕐᒥᓂᒃ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᓗᒍᓗ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᕆᓯᒪᔭᖏᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᐊᒥᒐᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᔫᓐᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᕐᔪᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑳᓐᓄᕌᖅᓯᓯᒪᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ, ᓂᐅᕕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐱᐅᓯᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓐᖓᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᓪᓚᕆᖃᑦᑕᕐᖓᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᕐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑳᓐᑐᕌᖅᑎᐅᔪᓂᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᔾᔨᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓂᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᔾᔨᕆᓯᒪᒻᒥᔭᖓ. ᓂᕆᐅᒻᒥᔪᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᔭᕗᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐅᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᕆᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑳᓐᑐᕌᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᐅᓯᖏᑦ. ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥᓗ 
ᑲᑎᒪᕐᔪᐊᓕᕈᑦᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᒪᑐᒋᐊᓚᐅᖏᓂᓐᓂᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᕗᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᕈᓯᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓚᐅᑲᓪᓚᕗᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑲᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᖅ. 
ᕿᑲᑲᐃᓐᓈᕐᔪᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᒋᐊᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᓕᖅᐸᑕ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᓕᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᓪᓗ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑐᓂ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᓐᓂᐊᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᓂᒃᐊᑳᖏ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓂᓐ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᓂᐅᔪᑦ ᓈᓚᑦᑎᐅᓗᑕ 
ᓂᐱᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᑕᓚᕖᓴᒃᑰᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᒥᓃᑦ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᑏᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕐᕕᖁᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ. 
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I would ask that Members and witnesses go 
through the Chair before speaking. I would 
also ask all Members, witnesses, and 
observers to turn off their cell phones, 
blackberries, and other electronic devices. 
 
I would again like to welcome Ms. Fraser 
to our hearings, and invite her to introduce 
her officials and begin her opening 
statement. Thank you. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Unnusakkut, good afternoon, 
everyone. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for 
this opportunity to discuss our report on 
human resource capacity. Joining me at the 
table are Ronnie Campbell, Assistant 
Auditor General, and Michelle Salvail, 
Principal, who were responsible for this 
audit. 
 
In this audit, we looked at how the 
Department of Human Resources and a 
selection of other departments, that being 
Community and Government Services, 
Education, Environment, and Finance, have 
determined their human resource needs and 
how they planned to fill positions with a 
view to attaining a representative level of 
beneficiaries. We also looked at staffing 
and training, and we carried out our audit 
work in Iqaluit as well as in six other 
communities, Cambridge Bay, Kugluktuk, 
Rankin Inlet, Baker Lake, Igloolik, and 
Pond Inlet. 
 
I would like to provide you with a brief 
overview of the findings of the report. In 
previous reports to the Legislative 
Assembly, we noted that a lack of capacity 
had hampered the government’s ability to 
deliver some programs and perform certain 
tasks. Filling positions in the public service 
is an ongoing challenge for the 
government, with 23 percent of public 
service positions vacant at the end of 
March 2009. 

ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑐᓵᔩᑦ ᐅᐊᔭᓕᕆᔩᓪᓗ 
ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒥᑦ ᐊᖅᑯᓵᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᐳᓯ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᓕᕌᖓᔅᓯ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒋᐊᖅᑐᑐᓪᓗ 
ᓈᓚᒋᐊᖅᑐᑐᓪᓗ ᐅᖄᓚᐅᑎᕋᓛᒥᓐᓂ 
ᖃᒥᑦᑎᑦᑎᓂᐊᖅᐳᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐅᐊᔭᒨᖅᑐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᑦᑎᑦᑐᒪᔭᕋ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᑭᓇᒃᑰᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᐃᓂᐊᕐᓗᓂᒋᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᑎᑕᐅᒐᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᐅᑉ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓂᑦ, ᐅᕙᓃᖃᑎᒋᔭᒃᑲ ᕌᓐᑎ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᒋᔭᖓ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓯᐅᓪ ᓴᕙᐃᓪ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᔪᖅ ᑖᔅᓱᒧᖓ ᑲᑎᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᑎᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂᑦ, ᓄᓇᓕᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, ᐊᕙᑎᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᖏᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᔫᒪᑕ ᑭᓐᖒᒪᑦᑎᒻᒪᑕ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑎᖃᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ. ᕿᒥᕈᓇᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 6-ᓂᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂᑦ: ᐃᖃᓗᑦᑑᑦᑎᐊᒥ; 
ᖁᓪᓗᖅᑑᒥᑦ; ᑲᖏᕐᖠᓂᕐᒥᑦ; ᖃᒪᓂᑦᑐᐊᒥᑦ; 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᒻᒥᑦ; ᒥᑦᑎᒪᑕᓕᒻᒥᓗ. 
 
 
 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒐᓛᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᔪᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓃᖔᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᑭᖑᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑭᔅᓴᓐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔪᓐᓇᐃᓪᓕᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓚᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᖏᓪᓗ. 
ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑎᑕᐅᑉᐸᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᔅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ 23%-ᓪᓗᐊᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᓄᖅᑎᒋᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓐᓄᔅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐ ᒫᑦᓯ 2009-ᒥ. 
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Our audit found that departments do not 
have the information necessary to address 
their human resource needs. The exception 
is the Department of Education with 
respect to teaching positions, which I will 
speak about shortly. We found that most 
departments lack information on the 
qualifications and skills represented in their 
current workforce and on the number of 
qualified people they need to deliver their 
programs and services. In addition, they 
have not assessed the underlying causes of 
chronic shortages that hamper their ability 
to fill vacancies. For example, we found 
that almost half of the staffing competitions 
undertaken were unsuccessful in selecting a 
qualified candidate.  
 
As departments plan and take steps to fill 
their gaps in human resource capacity, they 
need to consider the objective of obtaining 
a representative public service. While 
representativeness has increased in the 
public service over the past nine years, the 
pace at which it has grown has varied 
significantly. Despite the various initiatives 
included in the Inuit employment plans, 
these were not enough to achieve the 
interim target in each occupational 
category by 2010. Moreover, it is clear that 
representativeness will not be achieved in 
each occupational category by 2020. 
 
A positive finding in the report is that the 
Department of Education has taken 
concrete steps to meet its need for teachers 
over the short, medium, and long terms. 
For example, it introduced a masters 
program, the first graduate program to be 
offered in Nunavut, from which 21 students 
graduated in 2009. The department’s 
planning for teacher capacity demonstrates 
the importance of taking a comprehensive 
approach to filling gaps in capacity while 
increasing representativeness. In our view, 
the department’s good practices could be 

ᒫᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᕗᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᖃᓗᐊᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑭᓐᖒᒪᔭᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓇᓱᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐅᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᖏᓐᓄᓂᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓂᐊᕐᒥᔭᕋᓗᐊᒃᑲ. ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐱᔨᑦᓯᕈᑎᓂᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐱᔨᑦᓯᕈᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ. ᕿᒥᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᒐᑎᓪᓗ ᑭᓱᒥᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖃᕐᖢᑎᑦ ᐊᒥᒐᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ ᐃᓐᓄᔅᓯᓇᓱᑦᑐᑎᑦ. ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᐊᕝᕙᓗᐊᑲᓴᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐃᓐᓄᑕᐅᖏᓴᐃᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᑰᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᒥᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᑦᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᕕᐅᑉ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓇᓱᔅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᖃᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᑦ. ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᖅᑎᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᓄᖅᓯᒋᐊᕋᓗᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 9 ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦ ᐊᓂᒍᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᓗᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᑎᒃ. ᐊᒃᓱᕉᓴᒃᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐃᓄᖕᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ, ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ 
ᒫᓐᓇ. ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᑦᑎᑦᑎᓇᓱᒋᐊᒃᓴᖅ 2010-ᒥ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᓄᕐᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ: ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᖅᑕᐅᓗᐊᔾᔮᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᐅᓄᕐᓂᖏᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᒻᒥ 2020-ᒥ.  
 
ᖃᐅᔨᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒥ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᓖᑦ, 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᖃᕆᐊᓖᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪ ᓯᕕᑭᑦᑐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑯᓐᓂᖅᓱᖅᑐᒧᓪᓗ ᓯᕕᑐᔪᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᖃᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᓖᑦ. ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 21-ᓂᒃ 2009-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᒃᓴᓂᒃ. ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᒃᓴᑭᒃᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᕗᖅ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐃᓐᓄᒃᓯᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓄᖕᓂᒡᓗ ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᖅᑎᖃᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂᓗ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᕗᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᐅᓯᑦᑎᐊᕙᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓐᓂᑦ.  
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adopted in other departments. 
 
Mr. Chairman, let me now turn to our 
observations on staffing. We found that it 
takes, on average, 318 days to fill a 
position, from the moment it becomes 
vacant until a job offer is made. More than 
half of this time, about six months, passes 
before departments ask the Department of 
Human Resources to start the process. We 
found that neither the departments nor the 
Department of Human Resources had 
analyzed their staffing processes to identify 
opportunities to improve their speed and 
effectiveness. 
 
Finally, our audit looked at specialized 
training programs that target specific 
positions, such as accountants or 
information technology technicians, and 
focus on beneficiaries. We found that 
resourcing these programs was not an issue 
for the most part. However, the success rate 
of some of these programs was not high, 
and departments did not always identify 
impediments to the programs’ success. 
Future training programs would benefit 
from the application of lessons learned. 
 
A common theme, Mr. Chairman, 
throughout the report is the lack of 
information or analysis to better address 
human resource needs. The departments are 
well aware of these issues. However, 
without good information, they do not 
know exactly how the existing programs 
and the processes need to change; nor can 
they develop and implement effective 
recruitment, retention, and training 
strategies.  
 
The Department of Human Resources as 
well as the four other departments have 
agreed with our recommendations and 
made several commitments in their 
responses. It is important to note, Mr. 

 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᔾᔨᕆᔭᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᓂᐊᓕᖅᐳᖓ. ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 318-ᓂᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓗᓂᑦ ᐃᓐᓄᒃᓯᓇᓱᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᒪᑐᐃᖅᑕᐅᑐᐊᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ. ᐊᕝᕙᓪᓗᐊᖏᑦ 6-ᓄᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ ᐊᓂᒍᐃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᓴᒥᒃ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒃᓯᓇᓱᓐᓂᐊᕋᓯ. ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᓇᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᓪᓗ ᖃᓄᕐᓗ 
ᓱᒃᑲᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᔨᒋᓂᖅᓴᐅᕙᖕᒪᑕ 
ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓄᑦ. ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐃᒃᐱᒋᔭᐅᓗᐊᖃᑦᑕᓕᕐᒥᒻᒪᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᖢᑎᒡᓗ. ᐱᓕᕆᕖᓪᓗ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᖦᖢᑎᒃ ᑐᓗᖅᑕᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᑦᑎᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᒐᔭᕐᒪᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᒥᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᑭᐅᑦᑎᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑭᒃᓴᕐᓂᖅ. 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖃᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓗᐊᕐᓇᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔾᔪᓯᐅᔪᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᓴᓇᔪᓐᓇᕋᑕᓗ, 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᔪᓐᓇᕋᑕᓗ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕈᓐᓇᕋᑎᓪᓗ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᐅᑎᒃᓴᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᕐᓇᑎᑦ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖃᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᒍ. 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᓴᒪᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑭᐅᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᓐᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑐᐊᒋᓐᖏᑕᖓᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, 
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Chairman, that the management of human 
resources in the Government of Nunavut is 
the responsibility of all departments, not 
just the Department of Human Resources. 
Issues such as recruitment and staffing 
timelines cannot be successfully addressed 
by the Department of Human Resources 
alone. Your Committee may wish to 
explore the progress made to date, the 
actions planned, and the timelines to 
address the issues raised in this report. 
 
Mr. Chairman, this concludes my opening 
remarks. My colleagues and I would be 
pleased to answer any questions Committee 
Members may have. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. I 
would like now to ask the Deputy Minister 
of Human Resources to make her opening 
comments. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and Committee Members. I am very 
pleased to appear before the Standing 
Committee on Oversight of Government 
Operations and Public Accounts today in 
response to the Auditor General’s report on 
the human resource capacity for the 
Government of Nunavut. I would like to 
introduce Aluki Rojas, Deputy Minister of 
Intergovernmental Affairs, formerly 
Deputy Minister of Human Resources, and 
Sheyla Kolola, Director of Training and 
Development for the Department of Human 
Resources, who will be assisting me today 
with this process. 
 
To open my remarks, I would like to say 
that I applaud the staff of the Auditor 
General’s office in their dedication to the 
development of a strong, competitive 
workforce through the completion of 
capacity audits.  
 
In Nunavut, we share the values of 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᒍᑎᒃ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓯ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒋᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑭᐅᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᑕᕝᕙ ᐃᓱᓕᑉᐳᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᒃᑲ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᕐᓂᕈᔅᓯ ᑭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᓯᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
ᒪᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓕᖅᐸᕋ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᒥᓂᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖁᓪᓗᒍ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᑦᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ):ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓪᓗ. ᖁᕕᐊᑦᑐᖓ ᑕᕝᕙᓃᒍᓐᓇᕋᒪ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᓐᓂ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᑭᐅᒋᐊᖅᑐᕐᓗᒍ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐅᑎᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ - 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᓗᑭ ᐅᕉᕼᐋᔅ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᒡᓕᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᖃᑎᒌᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᒡᓕᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ, 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ. 
 
ᐱᒋᐊᕈᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᐅᖃᕈᒪᔪᖓ ᐅᐱᒋᒍᒪᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᖓᓂ ᐊᑦᓱᕉᑎᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓴᙱᔪᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ. 
 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᑕᐃᒫᑦᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᑦᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑭᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᖃᕐᓗᑎᒃ, 
ᐃᓅᓯᓕᒫᖅ ᐃᓕᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᖏᓐᓇᓂᕐᒧᑦ, 
ᑐᙵᕕᓕᐅᕐᓂᒧᓪᓗ ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᐅᒍᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑦᓱᕉᑎᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᓯᕗᒃᑲᑕᖅᑎᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᖁᔭᐅᖁᔭᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
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engaging our people in a healthy 
workplace, lifelong learning, and building 
leadership capacity. The Department of 
Human Resources is committed to playing 
a lead role in the Government of Nunavut’s 
strategic priorities of developing an 
effective public service that is 
representative of the people it serves. 
 
The Department of Human Resources 
welcomes the opportunity of the Office of 
the Auditor General’s review and 
assessment of our human resource practices 
and policies that impact capacity. The 
findings of the Auditor General’s report 
came at an appropriate time, the targeted 
midpoint of Article 23 of the Nunavut Land 
Claims Agreement (NLCA).  
 
Article 23 states that the Government of 
Nunavut will achieve 56 percent 
representative government by 2010, and 85 
percent representativeness by 2020 in all 
occupational levels. The Auditor General’s 
report confirms that the Government of 
Nunavut has achieved an overall average of 
52 percent.  
 
The executive, management, and 
professional categories are experiencing 
lower than average representation and 
require attention. Administrative and 
paraprofessional occupations are 
experiencing higher than targeted 
representativeness, 94 percent for the 
administrative and 70 percent for the 
paraprofessional categories. 
 
The Auditor General’s report provides the 
challenge to rethink our human resource 
practices and be reminded of our ultimate 
target. Already, through collaboration with 
the departments of Health and Social 
Services, Community and Government 
Services, Education, and Finance, and 
through consultation with Nunavut Arctic 

ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᓂᖃᑦᓯᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑭᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᒃ ᐱᔨᑦᓯᖅᐸᑦᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᙵᓱᑦᑎᑦᑎᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐱᕕᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᖓᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᐃᓂᖃᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᑦᑎᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑦᑐᐃᓂᖃᖅᐸᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕈᓐᓇᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ. ᖃᐅᔨᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖓᓂ 
ᓈᒻᒪᓈᑦᓯᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ: ᑐᕌᒐᖃᖅᑐᑎᒃ ᕿᑎᐊᒍᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓚᖓᓂ 23 ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓄᓇᑖᖅᓯᒪᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᖏᕈᑎᖏᓐᓂ. 
 
ᐃᓚᖓᓂ 23 ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ 
ᑎᑭᐅᑎᓯᒪᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 56-ᐳᓴᓐᑎᓄᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᓯᓂᖏᑦ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑐᖔᓂ 2010, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 85-ᐳᓴᓐᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ ᑐᖔᓂ 
2020 ᓇᐅᒃᑯᓕᒫᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦᓴᐅᔪᓕᒫᓂ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖓᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓚᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ 
ᑎᑭᐅᑎᓯᒪᓕᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 52-ᐳᓴᓐᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ, ᐊᐅᓚᑦᓯᔩᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᐅᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᖃᑦᓰᓐᓇᐅᓂᖅᓴᓂᒃ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᕕᓖᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᒋᐊᖃᖅᑐᓂᓗ. ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᐅᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᐊᒥᓲᓂᖅᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᐅᔪᑦ 94-ᐳᓴᓐᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 70-ᐳᓴᓐᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓄᑦ. 
 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖓ 
ᐃᓱᒪᑦᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᖁᔨᔪᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐃᑎᑦᓯᒋᐊᖅᑐᑎᓪᓗ ᑐᕌᒐᓪᓚᕆᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ. ᐊᓪᓛᑦ, 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖏᑦ 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᖃᕐᓇᖏᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓄᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ, 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓂᓪᓗ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕋᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᑐᓴᕆᐊᕐᕕᒋᓚᐅᖅᑐᒋᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᓂᒃ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓄᐊᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᔪᖃᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᖅ. ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ, ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ 
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College, issues with hiring practices and 
reporting of human resource data have been 
identified. Some solutions have been 
initiated, and some longer term plans for 
research and change established.  
 
The human resources organizational and 
functional review realigns the Department 
of Human Resources to provide strategic 
leadership in human resource management 
while placing a strong focus on Inuit 
employment planning through the 
designation of 10 positions to be 
responsible for Inuit employment.  
 
2010-11 is a time of change for the human 
resources department and for the human 
resource functions in all Government of 
Nunavut departments. The human 
resources department, with the cooperative 
effort of all other departments, will work to 
lead the Government of Nunavut toward a 
representative government.  
 
Many of the Auditor General’s 15 
recommendations for improvements in 
human resource policies and programs 
point to the need for a comprehensive 
human resources strategic plan 
encompassing human resource functions in 
the Government of Nunavut. This strategic 
plan will become this department’s priority 
for the 2011-12 business plan. The 
development of the Human Resources 
Strategy will be monitored through 
Tamapta Action Plan no. 57. 
 
The Auditor General’s report has been a 
catalyst to initiate improvements in several 
important areas. 
 
In the short term, the department will 
implement the human resource 
organizational and functional review that 
provides a structure built on a functional 
model that aligns capacity and 

ᐊᑯᓂᐅᓂᖅᓴᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᓯᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᒧᓪᓗ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᐃᓂᖅ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖅᓯᒪᓗᑎᒃ ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᐅᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᓯᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᑐᕌᒐᖃᓪᓚᕆᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᖁᓕᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᑦᓴᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ. 
 
2010-11 ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᓇᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᖏᓐᓂ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᓯᓕᒫᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂᒃ, ᓯᕗᒃᑲᑕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ ᑐᕌᒐᖃᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᐃᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓂᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
ᐊᒥᓱᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 15-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᖅᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ ᐊᑕᖏᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᐊᑕᖏᕐᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᖏᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑕ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔨᓯᒪᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓ 2011-12 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ. 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓱᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᐅᑉ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᑦᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᒋᐊᕈᑎᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖓᒍᑦ ᓇᒻᒪ 57. 
 

ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖓ 
ᐱᒋᐊᕈᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᖅ ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᖅᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᒥᒃ 
ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᑎᒍᑦ. 
 

ᒫᓐᓇᒫᒧᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅ, ᐱᓕᕆᕕᕗᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓱᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐᓂ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᐃᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑐᙵᕕᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᖓᑕ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᕐᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓕᒧᒌᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᑦ 
ᓵᑕᒃᓴᐅᒍᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓪᓗ 



12  

accountability in recruiting and staffing, 
staff satisfaction and retention, effective 
career-pathing, and most importantly, 
momentum for Inuit employment. 
Completion date for the reorganization is 
December 2011, by which time all 
reporting structures, revised hiring and 
reporting procedures, and planning 
processes will be functioning. 
 
The goal of undertaking a Human 
Resources Strategy under Tamapta will 
include all steps of the human resource 
process from recruitment to hiring, to 
employment with the GN, to the end of 
employment. The plan will be developed 
and implemented in stages, with a priority 
being placed on best practices in 
recruitment and retention to address gaps in 
human resource capacity. A completion 
date of 2012 is targeted for the Human 
Resources Strategy. 
 
Internship programs are being offered by 
several departments, effectively preparing 
Government of Nunavut employees with 
experience and skill sets necessary for 
careers in the government. The human 
resources department recently made 
revisions in the Sivuliqtiksat Internship 
Program based upon consultations with 
stakeholders. Implementation of the revised 
program is currently underway. Training 
priorities will be based upon needs 
identified through the new training and 
development learning plan, gap analysis, 
and feedback from participants. Employees 
trained and/or educated in the skills and 
knowledge needed will be the employees 
preparing for jobs in occupational levels 
that currently have low representation by 
Nunavut land claims beneficiaries.  
 
Several management tools, such as the 
Performance Management and Attendance 
Management program, have been 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓪᓗ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ 
ᓈᒻᒪᑦᓴᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᔭᐅᑯᑖᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓪᓗ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖏᓐᓂ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ, 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᖅᐹᓪᓗ, ᑲᔪᓯᑦᓯᐊᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᒍᑕᐅᓗᓂ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖅ. ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᕕᑦᓴᖓ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖏᑕ ᑎᓯᐱᕆ 2011, ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᐊᑕᖏᖅᑐᒋᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᓂᖏᑕ ᐋᖅᑭᐅᒪᓂᖏᑦ, 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖃᕐᓂᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓰᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᓯᒪᓕᓛᖅᑐᑦ. 
 

ᑐᕌᒐᖃᕐᓂᖅ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᖃᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒥᒃ ᑕᒪᑦᑕᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᒋᐊᓕᓕᒫᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᕐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᓂᑉᕐᒧᑦ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕐᓂᒧᓪᓗ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄ ᓄᙳᐊᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᓕᒫᖏᓐᓂ. ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓱᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᓂᓗ 
ᐃᓛᒃᑰᖅᑐᒃᑯᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓯᒪᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᓂ ᐊᑲᐅᓂᖅᐹᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑕᑯᑖᑎᑦᓯᒐᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᒥᒐᖅᓯᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᒃ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᕕᑦᓴᖓ 
2012-ᒥ ᑐᕌᒐᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒥᒃ. 
 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᓐᓈᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑏᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᙱᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᐃᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕆᐅᖅᓴᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖅᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕈᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᓯᕋᑖᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᑦᓴᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᓐᓈᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒥᒃ 
ᑐᓴᕆᐊᕐᕕᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑎᒃ ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᓂᒃ. 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑎᐅᒋᐊᓖᑦ. 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓯᒪᒋᐊᓖᑦ 
ᑐᙵᕕᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᒋᐊᓕᓐᓂᒃ ᓄᑖᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᓯᒃᑯᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᑎᒍᑦ, ᐊᒥᒐᖅᓯᔪᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ ᑐᓴᕆᐊᕐᕕᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᓂᒃ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᕆᒋᐊᓕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒋᐊᓕᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓄᑦ 
ᖃᑦᓰᓐᓇᐅᓗᐊᕐᕕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓄᓇᑖᖅᓯᒪᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
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developed and are being presently 
implemented to improve the effectiveness 
of employees on the job.  
 
An evaluation of the competition process 
has begun with the objective of reducing 
the amount of time it takes to fill positions. 
Part of the evaluation includes process 
mapping of the staffing procedures; 
mapping has begun in six divisions in the 
human resources department and will be 
completed for human resources department 
headquarters and regional offices by June 
2011.  
 
Another tool piloted by the human 
resources department is the competition 
database that will be expanded to all 
departments by March 2011, and will 
provide timely reports on competition 
status.  
 
Human resources policies, practices, and 
procedures will be reviewed, issues 
identified, and improvements implemented 
that facilitate the hiring process and build 
an effective and representative workforce. 
Beginning immediately, best practices will 
be researched, including prioritizing 
staffing actions, developing a registry of 
candidates, casual hires, transfer 
assignments, direct appointments, and exit 
interviews.  
 
Improved hiring practices will begin 
immediately as solutions are found with the 
targeted completion date for the 
Department of Human Resources by March 
2012 and for all departments by March 
2013. There will be an immediate focus on 
positions that are difficult to fill. In the 
short term, these positions will be 
identified through departmental 
establishment reports and a priority list will 
be developed through the Deputy Ministers 
Building Capacity Committee. These 

ᐊᔾᔨᒌᙱᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ, ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑦᓯᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐅᐸᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᓯᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖅ, 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓱᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᓯᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒥᓐᓂ. 
 

ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᕐᓂᒃ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᑐᕌᒐᖃᖅᑐᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᓗᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᒐᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓃᕐᔫᒥᖁᓪᓗᒍ. ᐃᓚᒋᔭᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᒃ; ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᐃᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᖓᓲᔪᖅᑐᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᓛᖅᑐᓂᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᕕᖓᓂ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᓂᐅᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᖏᓐᓂ ᑐᖔᓂ ᔫᓂ 2011. ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᑦᓴᖅ 
ᐆᑦᑐᕋᐅᑕᐅᒻᒥᔪᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᖅᑯᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᕕᒻᒥᒃ ᓯᐊᕐᒪᖅᑕᐅᓛᖅᑐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᓄᑦ 
ᑐᖔᓂ ᒫᑦᓯ 2011, ᑭᖑᕙᖅᓯᒪᙱᑦᑐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᒍᓐᓇᕐᓗᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ. 
 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᑦ, ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓛᖅᑐᑦ, ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ, 
ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᖅᑕᐅᒍᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᑦ 
ᑐᙵᕕᓕᐅᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑐᕌᖓᓂᖃᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᓂᓪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᒃ. 
 

ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᑦᓴᐅᑎᒋᓗᓂ, ᐱᐅᓂᖅᐹᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓰᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᒋᐊᓕᓐᓂᒃ ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓯᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᒋᐊᕈᑎᓂᒃ, 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓯᓗᑎᒃ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᑲᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ, ᓄᑦᑎᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᒃ, ᑎᒃᑯᐊᖅᓯᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓄᑦ, ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑐᓂᓪᓗ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᓂᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕈᑎᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᑦᓴᐅᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑎᑦᓴᖏᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᔭᐅᑐᐊᕋᐃᑉᐸᑕ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᓗᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑐᖔᓂ ᒫᑦᓯ 2012 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᓄᓪᓗ ᑐᖔᓂ ᒫᑦᓯ 2013. 
ᑐᕌᒐᖃᑦᓴᐅᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓂᒃ 
ᐊᔪᕐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᒐᓱᐊᕆᐊᑦᓴᖅ. 
ᒫᓐᓇᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᑎᒍᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᒋᐊᓕᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᑐᒡᓕᖏᑕ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖅᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
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positions will receive priority for staffing.  
 
Recruitment practices will be reviewed and 
the competition process changed to allow 
for easier and faster hiring of candidates. In 
the medium and long term, there will also 
be a focus on training of beneficiaries for 
these difficult positions.  
 
Training priorities and course 
improvements in the Training and 
Development Division of the Department 
of Human Resources are based on the 
collection and analysis of participant and 
stakeholder feedback. Opportunities exist 
for government departments, boards, and 
agencies to share information and further 
develop partnerships in training and 
education. New momentum will result in 
meeting the challenge to address 
educational and skill gaps.  
 
In closing, I would like to say that the 
human resources department welcomes the 
opportunity to reposition itself as the 
department that sets the standard in human 
resources practices, and provides support 
and guidance to all Government of 
Nunavut departments. We recognize that 
employees are the cornerstone of the 
successful delivery of government services 
in Nunavut. Thank you Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. 
Thank you, Members. Before I open the 
floor to the Members for general comments 
and questions on the report that is before 
the Standing Committee, I would like to 
ask Ms. Fraser to take this opportunity 
while she is here with us this week to 
briefly address the issue of the special audit 
of the Nunavut Housing Trust that the 
government commissioned the accounting 
firm of Deloitte and Touche to undertake 
this summer. 
 

ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓕᕋᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᑦ. 
 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᖏᓐᓂᖅᓴᒃᑯᑦ 
ᕿᓚᒥᐅᓂᖅᓴᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᓗᑎᒃ. 
ᒫᓐᓇᒫᒧᑦ ᐊᑯᓂᐅᔪᒧᓪᓗ ᑐᕌᒐᖃᓛᕐᒥᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᖅᐸᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦᓴᓄᑦ. 
 

ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᒋᐊᓖᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᑦᓴᓂᓪᓗ ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᖅᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑐᙵᕕᖃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓄᐊᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᕆᐊᕐᕕᒋᒍᑎᒋᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ. 
ᐱᕕᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖏᑦ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ 
ᑎᒥᖁᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᑕᐅᖅᓰᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᓂᒃ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᓯᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ. ᑲᔪᖏᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᑲᔪᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᐊᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑦᓱᕉᑎᖃᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖃᕐᓂᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐱᑕᖃᙱᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ. 
 
ᐱᔭᕇᕈᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᐅᖃᕈᒪᔪᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᙵᓱᑦᑎᑦᓯᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᕕᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᕐᒥᓂᒃ 
ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᕐᓂᒃ, 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᓱᐃᕙᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᓯᕗᒃᑲᑕᖅᐸᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᑐᙵᕕᒋᔭᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᖃᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᓯᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᔨᑦᓯᕋᐅᑎᖏᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ. ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᓚᐅᓐᖏᓂᓐᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐅᖃᕈᒪᑉᐸᑕ ᐊᐱᕆᒍᒪᑉᐸᑕᓗ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒧᑦ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ 
ᐊᐱᕆᒍᒪᔭᕋ ᑕᕝᕙᓃᖃᑕᐅᓂᖓᓂ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᓇᐃᑦᑐᑯᓗᒻᒥᖅᑲᐃ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᐃᓛᒃᑰᖓᔪᒥᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓂᖓᓂᒃ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐸᐸᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᒥᓴᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ deLoitte & Touche 
ᐊᐅᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᒥ. 
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As Members of the Standing Committee 
will recall, Ms. Fraser appeared before us 
in May of last year to present her office’s 
report on this audit of the Nunavut Housing 
Corporation. Since that time, Members of 
the Legislative Assembly have been 
extremely concerned at the situation facing 
NHC given that it is now facing a total 
shortfall of up to $110 million.  
 
It is our understanding that the Office of 
the Auditor General provided advice to the 
Government of Nunavut in selecting a firm 
to undertake a special audit of the Nunavut 
Housing Trust. As Ms. Fraser and Mr. 
Campbell will recall from the informal 
discussions that Chairman Arvaluk and I 
had with them this summer, we have been 
concerned to learn that much of this audit 
work was conducted over the phone and 
emails, and that auditors did not actually 
visit the NHC’s district offices in Arviat, 
Cambridge Bay, and Cape Dorset.  
 
I would ask Ms. Fraser to provide her 
perspective on this situation. I believe that 
it would be helpful for all Members and the 
listening public if she could indicate 
whether her office would be prepared to 
undertake another audit of the NHC at 
some point. I would also ask her to 
comment on the concern that I had raised 
[regarding] the audit methodology used by 
the auditor, and we would welcome her 
insights on the question of whether a 
forensic audit would be appropriate in these 
circumstances. Ms. Fraser, please go ahead. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for 
your questions regarding the management 
of the Nunavut Housing Trust by the 
Nunavut Housing Corporation. 
 
As you mentioned, we tabled a report in 
May 2008 that examined certain activities 
of the corporation, including the first year 

ᑲᑎᒪᔩᕋᓛᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᕗᑦ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ 
ᓵᑦᑎᓐᓄᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᒪᐃᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒥ ᐊᕐᕌᓂ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᒥᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᖓᓂᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒃᓯᒪᕗᑦ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᓗᕆᐊᓇᖅᑐᒦᓐᓂᕆᔭᖓᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥ ᐊᒥᒐᖅᓯᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ $110 ᒥᓕᐊᓄᑦ 
ᑎᑭᐅᑎᔪᓂᑦ. 
 
 
ᑐᑭᓯᐊᔭᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᐅᔪᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᓂᕈᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐸᐸᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᕘᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᕐᕚᕐᓗᒻᒥᒃ ᐅᕙᓐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐊᐅᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᒥ ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒃᓯᒪᕗᒍᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᔭᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᖃᓗᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐅᖄᓚᐅᑎᑎᒍᑦ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᐅᓯᐊᑎᒍᓪᓗ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕆᐊᖅᑏᑦ ᐅᐸᒍᑎᓪᓚᑦᑖᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᕐᕕᐊᓂ, 
ᐃᖃᓗᑦᑑᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂ. 
 
 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᑕᒪᑐᒪᐅᑉ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᓱᒪᖃᕐᒪᖔᖅ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓂᖃᕋᔭᖅᑰᖅᑐᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓕᒫᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᓵᔪᓄᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑳᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᖃᖓᑭᐊᖅ. ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᒻᒥᔭᕋ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕐᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕆᐊᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ… ᐱᕋᔭᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᕐᒪ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᒐᓚᑲᐃᓐᓇᒃᑭᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐸᐸᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ, ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᑦ ᒪᐃ 2008-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕐᓂᕆᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕆᐊᖅᖢᒋᑦ 
2007-ᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᒥᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
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of the trust, which was 2007. Our audit 
raised several issues, including the lack of 
planning, inadequate monitoring and 
reporting on progress, and concerns about 
the capacity of the corporation to deliver 
this major project.  
 
At the time of the hearing on this report, I 
noted that 23 of 89 positions at the 
corporation were vacant at the end of 2007 
and that managing its own programs was a 
significant challenge for the corporation. 
The housing trust represented a significant 
addition to the workload of already 
overextended staff. At that time, we 
encouraged the government and the 
corporation to take a realistic look at the 
delivery strategy and oversight 
mechanisms in place. 
 
Since then, Mr. Chairman, we have raised 
concerns with the management of the 
corporation, following our audits of the 
2008 and 2009 financial statements. In 
particular, we noted that actual costs for 
units were exceeding budgeted, approved 
amounts. Given the concerns raised in our 
2008 report and in our financial audits, I 
must admit that I’m not surprised by the 
difficulties that have arisen. When the cost 
overruns were first identified this spring, 
we were approached by the government to 
conduct an audit and we declined due to 
our own resource constraints.  
 
The Nunavut Housing Corporation 
requested tenders for an audit of the costs 
from 2006 to date as well as a review of the 
budgeting processes of the trust. As you are 
aware, an audit opinion on the cost of the 
trust to February 28, 2010 has been 
provided, and we understand that the 
second report should be received shortly. I 
do not know the work that has been 
undertaken by the auditors and therefore, I 
cannot comment on their procedures.  

ᓇᓂᓯᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓇᐅᑦᓯᖅᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒡᓗ ᐱᓗᐊᖅᖢᒋᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐅᓄᓐᖏᓗᓄᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᕐᒥ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᑉᓱᒪᓂ ᓈᓚᖕᓂᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 23 89-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 2007 ᐃᓱᓕᑎᓪᓗᒍ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓂᖅ ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ 
ᐱᔭᕐᓂᓐᖏᑦᑑᒍᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᖢᓂ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ 
ᐅᓄᓗᐊᓕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐅᓄᓐᖏᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑎᐊᖁᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑭᖑᓂᐊᒍᑦ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᓯᒪᕗᒍᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᓂᑦ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖓᓂᒃ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕇᕋᑦᑕ 2008-ᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ 2009-ᒥ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᖃᐅᔨᓗᐊᓚᐅᖅᐳᒍᑦ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᐊᑦ ᐊᑭᓪᓚᕆᖏᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᓕᐊᖏᑦ 
ᖄᖏᐅᑎᓯᒪᓗᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓪᓗ, 2008-ᒥ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕐᓂᕐᓗ 
ᑕᐸᐃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᒫᓐᓇ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᒻᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᒻᒪᑕ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᐱᕐᖔᖅ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᖕᒪᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖁᔭᐅᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ 
ᐅᓄᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ, ᑲᔪᓯᑎᑦᑐᓐᓇᓚᐅᓐᖏᑕᕗᑦ.  
 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᕗᑦ 2006-ᒥᓂᒃ ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑭᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓕᓗ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒃᓴᓕᐊᖑᕙᒃᑐᑦ 
ᐸᐸᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᕗᓯ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒥᒃ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐸᐸᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᕕᕗᐊᕆ 2010-ᒥ, 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᑭᓯᐊᓂᕗᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᑎᒃᑯᑦ. ᒫᓐᓇᕈᓘᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
- ᑕᐃᒪ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᔾᔮᓐᖏᑕᒃᑲ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔾᔪᓯᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ. 
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Mr. Chairman, given the concerns that have 
been raised by this Committee regarding 
the management of the housing trust, you 
may wish to consider holding hearings 
once the second report is released. Our 
2008 report made a number of 
recommendations, as did this Committee in 
its report of June 2009, all of which were 
accepted by the corporation. Members may 
wish to ask the corporation for the status of 
the commitments that the corporation made 
at that time and what progress has been 
made.  
 
In our office, as you probably know, it is 
standard for us to go back and do follow-up 
audits periodically. I think this would be an 
area where a follow-up audit would be 
warranted, but I think it would be 
important for the Committee to get that 
information first and then we can go back 
and see what changes have been made in 
the intervening time. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. We 
will now take a short break in order to 
digest all of this information here before 
we go to a paragraph-by-paragraph review 
of the Auditor General’s report. We will be 
back in the Chambers at 2:20. Thank you. 
 
>>Committee recessed at 13:58 and 
resumed at 14:20 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Members. Before 
we proceed with the paragraph-by-
paragraph review, I will open the floor to 
Members wishing to ask questions on the 
opening comments. Mr. Okalik.  
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) I want 
to ask a question to Ms. Wasson, Deputy 
Minister for Human Resources, on her 
opening comments. 

 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕋᑦᑕ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᐸᐸᑦᑎᔨᖏᑕ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᖏᑦ ᐃᒻᒪᖄ 
ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᓕᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐃᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓅᖅᑐᑦ 2009-ᒥ ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓂᕆᐅᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᒡᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ, 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᒥᔭᓯ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᑉᓱᒪᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᖕᒪᖔᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ, ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᕗᓯ, ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓵᓪᓚᓚᐅᖅᖢᑕ ᐅᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᓱᒃᖢᑎᒃᑯᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᕆᓪᓗᑕ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᒃ ᐱᓯᒪᓕᖅᐸᑕ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ, ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒡᓗ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᓯᖕᒪᖔᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᐊᓪᓚᓚᐅᕐᓗᓯ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
ᓄᖅᑲᖓᓚᐅᑲᖕᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᖅᑖᓗᒃᐳᑦ 
ᐄᖅᑲᕐᔫᒥᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ. ᐊᒡᒍᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑎᒍᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖕᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᑎᕈᑦᑕ. ᐅᑎᕐᓂᐊᖅᐳᒍ 
ᑕᑭᔪᐊᑉ 4-ᒧᐊᖅᐸᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᓂᖅ ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ 13:58ᒥ 
ᐱᒋᐊᕐᑲᓂᖅᑐᑎᑦᑎᑦ 14:20ᒥ 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ 
ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᑯᐊ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓚᐅᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖅᑕᖃᖅᐹ 
ᐱᒋᐊᓪᓚᕆᓚᐅᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
 
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ) 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋᐅᓇ ᒥᔅ ᕚᑦᓴᓐ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓂᑦ. 
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On no. 5 in maybe the second last question, 
there’s reference to the 
executive/management challenges in trying 
to get Inuit employed at that level. Can the 
Deputy Minister explain what steps they 
have taken to meet this challenge that is 
before them? (interpretation) Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson, Deputy Minister.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
will summarize some of the steps that we 
have taken in the short term.  
 
In the short term, we have performed an 
organizational and functional review of the 
Department of Human Resources that was 
completed in April 2010. The 
implementation of the review will position 
the Department of Human Resources to 
move forward to meet the challenges of 
building capacity in the GN by forming a 
senior management team that will focus on 
planning and evaluation through the 
Building Capacity Committee and the Inuit 
Employment Steering Committee.  
 
Establishment reports are being circulated 
to departments on a monthly basis. From 
these reports, the departments are aware of 
all vacant positions. This information 
sharing is a starting point for departments 
to make decisions on completing the 
paperwork to fill positions and also know 
what types of positions that they need to 
fill.  
 
We have recognized and discussed that 
formal education is a critical component of 
the occupational categories for executive 
and senior management, middle 
management, and professional positions, 
and our limited educated and experienced 
Inuit that the GN can tap into. The GN 

 
 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓕᒃ 5, ᐃᖅᒪᖃ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒃᓱᕈᓐᓇᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᑦᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᖃᓄᖃᐃ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓘᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔪᒪᒐᒃᑯ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓇᐃᓛᕐᓗᒍ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᓂᐊᕋᒃᑭᑦ. 
 
ᒪᐅᖓᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓂᕐᓗᑕ ᐄᐳᕈ 2010-ᒥ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᕿᒥᕈᓇᓪᓗᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᓇᐃᓗᑕᐃᑦ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖑᖅᑎᑦᑎᓗᑕ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᒋᔭᖃᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᑕᒫᖅ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᐅᖅᑲᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᕕᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᒃᑯ ᓇᓪᓕᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅ ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᖏᑦ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᕌᓂᓪᓚᕆᒻᒪᑦ ᖃᓄᑎᒋ ᓇᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕌᓂᔅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑦ ᒪᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᑯᓐᓂᓱᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᖁᑦᑎᓐᓂᖅᐹᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
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recognizes the importance of leadership 
development and is addressing it through 
the Sivuliqtiksat Internship Program and 
core management positions, as well as 
organizing and offering various leadership 
workshops and mentoring opportunities. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Okalik.  
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) Can 
the Deputy Minister explain if the Priority 
Hiring Policy is enforced at all levels when 
seeking employees throughout the 
government? How is it carried out in 
making sure that beneficiaries get priority 
for all of the jobs that are advertised 
throughout the government? 
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. 
Deputy Minister.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The purpose and focus of the policy has not 
changed; it continues to focus on achieving 
representativeness as required by Article 23 
of the Nunavut land claims. Some changes 
have been made to the policy’s application 
to ensure that it applies to all departments 
and public agencies of the GN. As well, 
terminology in the policy has also been 
simplified and standardized to comply with 
language referenced in statutes and 
regulations.  
 
The Department of Human Resources plans 
to review the policy in 2010. A draft 
project plan and discussion paper has been 
prepared. Consultations to date include 
human resource coordinators, senior 
management committees, and the Deputy 
Ministers Committee. Further consultations 
are expected to occur in the fall of 2010. 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓖᑦ, ᓇᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓃᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓯᕗᒃᑲᑕᖅᑎᐅᓂᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᐱᕐᔪᐊᕆᒻᒥᔭᕗᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓯᓐᓈᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᐅᖅᑐᑕ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓯᒪᓪᓗᑕ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓯᓐᓈᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓂᕐᒥᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᔪᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᖃᑎᖃᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ.  
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑖᓐᓇᖃᐃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᐃᔪᓐᓇᖅᐳᖅ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᔅᓴᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᑉᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓴᖅᓯᐅᓕᕌᖓᒥᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ? 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᕕᓯ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕆᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᑖᕈᑎ 23 ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᑖᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᖏᕈᑏᑦ, ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᑎᒥᓐᖑᖅᑎᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᐃᓐᓇᐅᔪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᐅᖃᒻᒥᑕᖅᓯᒪᖏᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᖅᑐᑎᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂ 
2010-ᖑᓕᖅᐸᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐹᖅᓯᐅᑏᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ. ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᑎᑭᒃᖢᒍ 
ᑐᑭᒧᐊᖅᑎᖃᐅᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖏᑦᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᑦ 2010-
ᒥᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔭᕇᕐᕕᔅᓴᓖ ᐅᑭᐊᒃᓵᖑᓕᖅᐸᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 



20  

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Deputy. Mr. 
Okalik. 
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) 
According to the Deputy Minister’s 
response, the policy is supposed to apply at 
all levels.  
 
I have with me a copy of an advert that was 
advertised in the Globe and Mail just 
recently, advertising for a comptroller 
general for the Department of Finance and 
the Assistant Deputy Minister of 
Operations for the Department of Health 
and Social Services. I will provide a copy 
to everybody at the appropriate time. 
Nowhere in this advert is there a mention 
of priority hiring for Inuit.  
 
I also have a copy of an advert from the 
Northwest Territories for a similar position 
from the same national paper, and it clearly 
states in their advert that there is an 
affirmative action policy in this job. So 
why aren’t we mentioning our affirmative 
action policy when we advertise?  
 
Secondly, we did a search on these 
positions if they were advertised in 
Nunavut; they weren’t even advertised in 
Nunavut. So who are we trying to entice to 
our employment when we don’t even 
bother with our own citizens in our 
territory and where Inuit are? 
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m afraid I don’t have that information 
here, but I will make commitment to the 
Hon. Member to provide the information. 

 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ.  
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᑕ ᑭᐅᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᑦᑐᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᓇᒥᓕᒫᖅ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓯᒪᖕᒥᔪᖓ 
ᑲᔪᖏᖅᓴᐅᑎᑎᒎᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒫᓐᓇᕈᓘᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᕿᓂᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᑐᖏᓕᒃᓴᖓ ᐋᓐᓂᐊᖃᕐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓄᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᓪᓗ. ᐊᔾᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓂᐅᖅᑲᐃᓂᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᐃᓕᑦᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᒃᓯᒃᐸᑦ. 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᑕᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᖃᖅᑳᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᔾᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓯᒪᖕᒥᔪᖓ ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ 
ᑖᑉᓱᒧᖓᑦᑕᐃᓐᓇᐸᓗᑦᑎᐊᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ, ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᖢᓂ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᖃᖅᑳᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᑯᓇᓂ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂ. 
ᓱᖕᒪᓪᓕᑭᐊᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᖃᖅᑳᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᓚᑦ. 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᔪᖏᖅᓴᐅᑎᑎᒎᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᑕᒫᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᑭᒃᑯᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᖠᓵᕆᕕᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒃᓯᓇᓱᖕᓂᐊᓕᕌᖓᑦᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑦ ᓄᓇᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᕿᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᑦᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᐱᓯᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᖅᑎᓐᓂᐊᖅᐸᒃᑲ 
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Wasson. Mr. 
Okalik. 
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) That’s 
unfortunate. These are human resource 
matters and I was hoping to get an 
explanation on this matter, so I guess I’ll 
have to wait another day.  
 
This advert also says that it is run a by 
headhunting firms down south. From what 
I understand, the way they hire people is 
that they screen applicants and pass those 
on to the potential employer. So, in a lot of 
situations, the potential employer may not 
get the information of who has applied. 
Even though your Department of Human 
Resources does that service as well, we 
have farmed it out to a southern firm, and 
we actually are getting decisions made by 
southern Canada for our own decisions that 
we should be making here. 
 
So I would question the value of hiring 
southern firms when we have the resources 
and spending money elsewhere when we 
could be using what we have today, in light 
of our fiscal situation. (interpretation) 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson, maybe before this hearing is over, 
you could check into that and get back to 
us. That would be great. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
make a commitment to do that. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Aupaluktuq.  
 
Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I would also like to welcome the 

ᐊᔪᕈᓐᓃᑐᐊᕈᒪ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
 
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ) 
ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᕌᖓᖕᒪᑕ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᔾᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕋᓱᒋᖅᑲᐅᒐᓗᐊᑐᖓ. 
ᐅᑕᖅᑭᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᓗᒡᓗᖓ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᐅᒃᐸᒧᑦ. 
 
 
ᐅᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᖕᒥᖕᒪᑕ, ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᔪᒎᑦ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑦ 
ᓄᓇᖏᓐᓂ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑎᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᓕᕌᖓᑕ ᐆᒃᑐᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐲᔭᐃᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᔪᒥᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔭᐅᑲᑦᑕᖅᑐᒃᓴᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᓕᔅᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᑭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐆᒃᑐᓕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᐅᒐᓗᐊᕋᑦᓯ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕈᑎᓂᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓯ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑦ ᓄᓇᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᔪᒍᑦ. 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑎᒡᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ. 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᖕᒪ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑦ ᓄᓇᖏᓐᓃᑦᑐᒥᒡᓕ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᒥᒃ 
ᐊᑐᕈᒪᒐᔭᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᒫᓂ ᐱᑕᖃᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᖅᖢᑎᒡᓗ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒃᐸᑕ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᒐᔭᕐᒪᑕ ᕿᓗᖅᑭᑖᓗᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖁᑎᕗᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᑦᓴᓐ, ᑲᑎᒫᓂᒃᑯᑦᑕᖃᐃ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᑎᕐᕕᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓂᐊᕋᕕᒋᑦ. ᐄ. 
ᑲᒪᒋᓇᓱᖕᓂᐊᖅᐸᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ, ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑲᑎᒪᓂᕗᑦ ᐃᓱᓕᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖓᓂ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕋᓱᓐᓂᐊᖅᑕᐃᑦ ᐅᑎᕐᕕᒋᓗᑕᓗ. 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᓂᐊᓕᖅᐳᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. 
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Office of the Auditor General as well as 
our guests here at the witness table, and my 
greetings to the people in Baker Lake.  
 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My question is 
directed towards… actually it is just a 
comment that I would like to share with the 
Auditor General as well as the Deputy 
Minister. In Committee of the Whole, I had 
stressed education as the foundation to 
success. Mr. Chairman, in the House, some 
colleagues have also shared that sentiment, 
and I can recall that my colleague from 
Coral Harbour, Mr. Ningeongan, also made 
a statement in the House saying that 
education and the quality of education is 
important.  
 
In regard to his comment, in Ms. Fraser’s 
opening statement, paragraph 6, it noted 
that “A positive finding in the report is that 
the Department of Education has taken 
concrete steps to meet its need for teachers 
over the short, medium, and long terms.” I 
believe, under the gap of employment 
capacity, it’s very important as well that 
this applies to all departments and most 
importantly with the recruitment of nurses. 
Having spoken to some constituents as well 
as other Nunavummiut, some actually in 
the Nursing Program have stressed that 
they need more attention for recruitment.  
 
Also, in relation to opening comments with 
Ms. Fraser, paragraph 9 also identifies that 
it’s a common theme through the report to 
enhance and develop effective recruitment, 
retention, and training strategies, but I also 
find it’s very important also in paragraph 
10 that “the management in human 
resources in the Government of Nunavut is 
the responsibility of all departments, not 
just the Department of Human Resources.”  
 
Mr. Chairman, the last sentence there also 
reads that the Committee may also wish to 

ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᖁᔨᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒥᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᖃᒪᓂᑦᑐᐊᕐᒥᐅᓪᓗ 
ᕼᐊᕉᖅᖢᒋᑦ. 
 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᐅᓇ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᓂᒡᓕᐅᑎᒃᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᕋ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ ᑕᑉᓱᒪᖓ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒧᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓂᖃᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᖕᒥ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᖃᑎᒃᑲ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓴᓪᓕᕐᒥᐅᑦ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖕᒥᔪᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᕐᔪᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓂᖅ ᐱᐅᔫᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᖓ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑳᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᒥᒃ ᕗᐃᓴ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᒡᒍᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᓂᖓ 6 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒦᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᖃᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᑭᓐᖒᒪᔭᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᔭᐅᔾᔫᒥᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᖃᓂᑦᑐᒧᑦ ᐊᑯᓐᓂᖅᓱᖅᑐᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᕗᖓᐅᔨᓯᒪᔪᑦ, 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓕᒫᖏᓐᓄᑦ, ᐱᓗᐊᖅᖢᒍ 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᕐᓂᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᓂᕈᐊᖅᑎᒃᑲ 
ᐊᓯᖏᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᑕᐃᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐋᓐᓂᐊᓯᐅᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᕿᓂᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓴᔅᓯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᒻᒥᔭᖓ 9, ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒥᑭᓗᐊᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓵᖑᓂᖏᓪᓗ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓕᒃ 10 ᐃᓗᐊᓂ, 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᖅᑎᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓕᒫᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖏᑦᑐᒧᑦ. 
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“explore the progress made to date, the 
actions planned, and the timelines to 
address the issues raised in this report.” It’s 
nice to see the fact that we are here to 
discuss the issues at hand and to also 
entertain the ideas of how we can improve 
these areas as well. 
 
If I may, Mr. Chairman, I will comment as 
well to the Deputy Minister’s opening 
comment. On page 5 of paragraph 11, it 
stated that “The plan will be developed and 
implemented in stages, with a priority 
being placed on best practices in 
recruitment and retention to address gaps in 
human resource capacity.”  
 
I think it will be worthwhile to see how we 
can, as a government, be able to provide 
support to these departments as it is, in 
fact, the Committee that brings forth these 
issues and concerns on behalf of all 
Nunavummiut. I just want to share a 
comment that I think one of the things that 
we should focus on to fill the [retention] 
and recruitment of people is that I think we 
should get back to the basics and support 
education, as well as teachers who are 
providing these tools for our youth. It’s 
really good to see that there is an effort 
being made to retain teachers.  
 
With that, I believe education is the 
foundation, and it would be something that 
we should stress more to be able to support 
academics, cultural pride, as well as 
obtaining goals. So I just wanted to stress 
as well that I do agree that moving forward 
also entertains being educated in terms of 
our position as legislators, but 
fundamentally for the foundation of 
education. I think that should be stressed 
throughout all of Nunavut if we are to 
succeed as a territory.  
The gist of it, Mr. Chairman, is the fact that 
I believe we should enhance more 

ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ, ᕿᒥᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᔪᒪᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑕᐅᒻᒪᖔᖅ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐅᑯᑎᒎᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᒃᑯᑦ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᓯᕆᐊᕐᔪᑦᑐᒍ ᒫᓐᓇ ᓵᑦᑎᓃᑦᑐᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐱᕈᓪᓇᐹᓪᓕᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᖃᓄᐃᔅᓴᖏᒃᑯᕕᑦ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᒐᓛᒍᒪᒻᒥᔪᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᑕ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ: ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 5, ᐊᒡᒍᑐᖅᓯᒪᓂᖓ 
11, ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓂᒎᖅ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ ᐱᐅᓂᖅᐹᑦ ᕿᓂᓕᕌᖓᒥᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐸᐸᑦᑎᓇᓱᓐᓂᐊᕌᖓᒥᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᐅᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᖅ, ᒐᕙᒪᐅᓪᓗᑕ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᓱᐃᒍᓐᓇᖅᐱᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᓐᓂᑦ? 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓪᓗ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᑕᐃ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᕈᒪᒻᒥᔪᖓ ᓵᓐᖓᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ ᐸᐸᑦᑏᓐᓇᕋᓱᑦᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐅᑎᕐᕕᒋᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑰᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔩᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᒪᒃᑯᑦᑐᖁᑎᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ. ᖁᕕᐊᓇᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᒃᓱᕉᑎᒋᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓂᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᐃᓐᓇᕋᓱᓐᓂᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊᖑᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒋᔭᐅᓪᓚᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᑎᒋᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᖢᑎᒃᑯᑦ. ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᓪᓗᖓ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ ᐊᑐᕐᓂᐊᕈᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᖅ ᑕᒪᔾᔭᐅᕗᖅ 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. 
ᓄᓇᕗᓕᒫᒥᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᕆᐊᖃᕐᖢᒋᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕈᑦᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᑎᒍᑦ.  
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education and show more support to the 
education department as well as teachers. I 
just wanted to conclude that as a comment. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
Yes, we take that as a comment. Mr. 
Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank the Auditor General’s office and the 
witnesses. 
 
Mr. Chairman, back in early 1995, and I 
suppose earlier, and during the transitional 
years around 1999, we, up here, were lead 
to believe that when Nunavut was to be 
established, Inuit employment in the 
Government of Nunavut would be at a 
representative level. We were lead to 
believe, Mr. Chairman, that in the 
agreement between the Inuit of Nunavut 
and Her Majesty the Queen in Right of 
Canada that this was to be.  
 
Mr. Chairman, it is now over ten years and 
we have not achieved the goal we were led 
to believe. It is not only about employment 
in the government for the majority of 
people, it is also about equality. The 
Canadians believe, under the Charter of 
Rights and Freedoms, that if you live in the 
country, it’s all about equality. And we 
have not achieved that in Nunavut. We 
have talked about education as a key to 
finding a job anywhere in the system.  
 
I think, Mr. Chairman, that mining 
companies are doing very well in recruiting 
the aboriginal people. I can speak for my 
community. During the summer this year, 
last year, or the year before, young people 
in the community have been going back 
and forth by helicopters or airlines working 
for the mining company. I salute the 
mining company, not only here but across 

ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᑎᒋᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔩᑦ. ᑕᒪᔾᔭᐅᕗᑦ 
ᒪᑐᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᒃᑲ, ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᔅᓴᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᑦᑐᖅ. ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᔅᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
 
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᖁᔭᓕᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓪᓗ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 1995-ᖑᖂᖅᑐᒦᓐᓇ ᓯᕗᓂᐊᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ, 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒥᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᐊᕗᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᓐᓂᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 85-ᐳᓴᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐅᓄᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᐊᕐᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᖏᕈᑏᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑯᐃᓐ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐅᑭᐅᑦ ᖁᓖᑦ ᖄᖏᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᓱᓕᓗ 
ᑎᑭᓚᐅᓐᖏᓚᕗᑦ ᑐᕌᒐᓕᐊᖑᓇᕋᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐅᕙᒃᑎᓐᓄᑦ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᑐᐃᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ, ᐃᓄᓐᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐅᓄᕐᓂᖅᓴᓄᑦ. ᓇᓕᖅᑯᐊᕇᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐃᓗᓕᖃᕐᒥᒻᒪᑦ. ᓲᕐᓗ, ᑲᓇᑕᒥᐅᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓐᖓᕕᔾᔪᐊᑦ ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᓇᓕᖅᑯᐊᕇᑦᑎᑦᑎᓂᑦ, ᐊᔾᔨᒌᑎᑦᑎᓂᑦ 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᖃᓪᓚᕆᒻᒪᑕ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑑᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᑕᒪᔾᔭᐅᕗᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᓂᐊᕈᑦᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᓇᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᐄ, ᓄᓇᒐᓕ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᖅᑕᕋ. ᐊᐅᔭᖅ 
ᐊᕐᕌᓂ ᐅᖓᓕᐊᓂᓗ ᓄᓇᖅᑲᑎᒃᑲ 
ᐅᑎᖅᑕᕋᐅᔭᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᔭᕋᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᖢᑎᑦ ᐅᕕᒃᑲᖁᑎᕗᑦ. ᖁᔭᓕᔭᒃᑲ 
ᐅᔭᕋᕐᓂᐊᖅᑏᑦ ᑕᐅᕙᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᓇᒥᓕᒫᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᓕᕐᒪᑕ. 
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the globe.  
 
Mr. Chairman, why is it so hard to achieve 
something for the people up here that is 
enshrined in the agreement between the 
Inuit of Canada and the Queen in Right of 
Canada I’m having a problem. I would like 
to ask either the government of the day or 
the Office of the Auditor General what is 
really the problem.  
 
This is something that we believed over ten 
years ago that we would have people in 
Nunavut with 85 percent employment. 
That’s representative, that’s equality, and 
we have not seen that. It has been over ten 
years, so what really is the problem, Mr. 
Chairman? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. I’m 
going to give the Deputy Minister a first 
chance. Ms. Wasson.  
 
Ms. Wasson: I’m deferring the question to 
Aluki Rojas.  
 
Chairman: Go ahead.  
 
Ms. Rojas: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you, Member Ningark, for your 
question. I think it’s a very challenging 
question for the Government of Nunavut in 
terms of what is the difficulty. My view is 
that it’s not difficult; it just will take time. I 
know that in 1999, when Nunavut was first 
created, as young as our territory with a 
young population, we were all very excited 
to see the possibilities.  
 
I must say, as a beneficiary working for the 
Government of Nunavut, I have seen first-
hand all of the exciting, positive role 
models I have in public service who are 
both bilingual, Inuktitut-speaking and 
English-speaking, who are functioning well 
in the public service.  

 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᓱᒻᒪᓪᓕ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᓗᐊᖅᑐᐊᓘᕙ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ  
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐅᓄᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᓯᓕᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐋᖅᕿᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ; ᓱᒻᒪᓂᓐᓇ ᑎᑭᐅᑎᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖏᓚᖅ, 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᔭᐅᒍᓪᓇᖏᓚᕐᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᒍᓐᓇᖏᑕᕋ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᓂᑦ, ᑭᓱᓂᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖃᕐᖢᑕ ᑭᓱᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᕙ 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᒍᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖃᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᕗᑦ? 
 
ᐅᑉᐱᕆᓯᒪᒐᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᖁᓕᓄᑦ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓄᓪᓚᕇᑦ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᓄᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᓯᒪᒍᓐᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕖᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖁᓕᑦ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦ ᐊᓂᒍᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᓚᐅᖏᓇᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑭᓱᐊᓗᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕋᑦᑕ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓴᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑖᓐᓇ ᑭᐅᑎᓐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ ᐊᓗᑭ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᑏ. 
 
 
ᐅᕉ�ᐋᔅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇᐃᓛᒃ 
ᐊᔪᕐᓇᕈᔪᖅᑐᕈᓘᕙᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐊᔪᕈᑎᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦᑕ. ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᕋᓕ 
ᐊᔪᕐᓇᓗᐊᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᕐᓃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᑦ. 1999-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᕆᐊᓐᖓᕐᖓᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓅᓱᑦᑐᒐᓚᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒍᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᓂᐊᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐅᕙᖓᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᒐᒪ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᖓ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᑦ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑎᑐᓪᓗ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓇᑎᐊᖅᑐᑦ.  
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But I think we also have to remember that 
there is a very short history in our 
government, not only existing as a 
government but as Inuit as a society. We’ve 
had a very short history moving to 
settlements recently and governments were 
not part of our culture. So when you think 
of it in a broader sense, I think we have lots 
to celebrate.  
 
The government is very young, and I see 
all of the time more and more Inuit 
applying and doing further formal 
education. Like I say, I think it’s a matter 
of time, and I know it’s very difficult for us 
sometimes because we feel impatient. We 
want to see more happening, but that will 
not happen overnight. I guess I’m sounding 
like a preacher or something, but I’m 
thinking that we have to look at the 
positive side of things too.  
 
Like I say, when I first started working for 
the Government of Nunavut, it was so 
exciting to see the Deputy Minister 
speaking Inuktitut in a meeting. I think that 
we miss that sometimes in the government 
and the public sees us as Inuit here sitting 
in the Chamber talking about government 
issues, and I think that has been a big step 
forward.  
 
So I’ll just leave it at that. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Any more 
questions there, Mr. Ningark?  
 
Mr. Ningark: I don’t really have any 
questions. I recognize that the Nunavut 
territory is still very young, but I think ten 
years is a long time to plan for something 
like this.  
We’ve had people from the NWT during 
1999, transitional years, and the start of the 
government, moving from the NWT to 

 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᖃᓕᕋᑦᑕ 
ᕿᓚᒥᑯᓗᒃ, ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᒥᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑐᓂ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᓅᓪᓗᑕ ᑕᒪᐅᖓ ᒫᓐᓇᒫᕈᓗᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᐃᓱᒪᒋᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓯᓚᑖᒍᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅ ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒍᑎᔅᓴᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᒥᓱᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᒐᕙᒪᕗᑦ ᓄᑖᖑᓪᓗᓂ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᑯᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕋᒪ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑲᓐᓂᕋᓱᑦᑐᑎᓪᓗ. ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ 
ᐊᑯᓂᒃᑲᓐᓂᐅᕌᔾᔪᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᕈᔪᑉᐸᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
ᐃᒫᒃ ᐅᑕᖅᑭᔪᓐᓇᐃᓪᓕᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ. 
ᑕᑯᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᒐᓗᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᐃᕐᓃᓐᓇᖅ ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖏᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑲᐅᔫᓂᖏᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᒋᐊᓕᕋᑖᖅᑐᖓ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐊᔅᓱᐊᓗᒃ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓇᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᔪᒥᑦ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓂᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᑐᑯᓘᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᑭᓐᖒᒪᕙᒃᑯᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᕚᓪᓕᕈᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᕆᑦᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᓄᖅᑲᑲᐃᓐᓇᓕᕋᒪ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ. ᓱᓕᒃᑲᓐᓃᖅ 
ᒥᖦᑕ ᓂᓐᐊᖅ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᑦᑕᓂᖅᐲᑦ? 
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᓗᐊᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᖓ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᓄᑖᖑᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ. 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦ ᖁᓖᑦ ᐊᑯᓂᑲᓪᓚᐅᓕᕐᖓᓂᓛᒃ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐸᓪᓕᐊᓇᓱᓪᓗᓂ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᒧᑦ. 
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Nunavut.  
 
By now we’ve had to deal with the senior 
level. They’ve had very good experience in 
previous governments in different 
jurisdictions, but I have young people 
asking me if there are jobs in the 
government system. They have their 
education level, grade 12 and others have 
secondary education. Why are we so slow? 
I recognize the fact that this is still young.  
 
Again I would like to stress out that I think 
we should stress things out more, that this 
is about equality. The Government of 
Canada, this country, believes that it’s all 
about equality. You know, people complain 
and stuff like that; and you know, it’s 
something that is enshrined between the 
Government and Inuit. We are not even 
achieving that to an acceptable level. If we 
had at least 75 percent, I think I’ll be 
satisfied, but we have to move faster; we 
are moving much too slowly. 
 
The government plans of this government 
of the day, the Tamapta, believe in 
reducing the poverty level, good education, 
happy families, all of the good things, but 
we have not even begun to achieve 
something that we had talked about ten 
years ago, Mr. Chairman, and I am having 
problems with that. 
 
So I have no questions, just a comment. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. That 
was just a comment there. Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
wanted to take the opportunity right now 
just to, once again, thank the Auditor 
General of Canada for coming up to Grise 
Fiord and spending time in one of my 
communities.  

ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᑉ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓃᖔᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ 1999-ᒥ 
ᐃᓂᓪᓚᐸᓪᓕᐊᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑕᒪᐅᓐᖓᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑖᕙᓐᖔᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒧᑦ. 
 
 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᑰᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᔪᓂᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᓅᓱᒃᑐᐃᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᖓᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓂᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒍᓚᐃᑦ 12-ᖃᖅᑐᑎᑦ. ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᐃᓂᓐᐊᑲᓐᓂᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᕆᑦᑐᑦ. ᓱᒻᒪᓪᓕ ᓱᒃᑲᐃᑦᑐᐊᓘᕕᑕ? 
ᐄ, ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᓄᑖᒥᓂᐅᓂᖓᓂᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᖃᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᔪᖓ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔫᒥᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᕗᓪᓗ 
ᓇᓕᒧᒌᑎᑕᐅᔾᔫᒥᒋᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ. 
ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᒫᒃ ᐊᑲᖅᓴᓐᖏᑦᑐᒐᓚᐅᕙᓲᑦ ᑕᕝᕘᓇ 
ᐃᓚᓕᐅᑎᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐃᓄᓐᓄᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑎᑭᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᔫᔮᓐᖏᓇᑦᑎᒍ, 70-
ᐳᓴᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕈᑦᑕᓘᓐᓃᑦ 75-ᐳᓴᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓱᑲᓐᓂᖅᓴᐅᒋᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᕋᑦᑕ 
ᓱᒃᑲᐃᓗᐊᖅᑐᐊᓘᒐᑦᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᒪᑉᑕᓗ ᓱᓕᔪᖅᓴᕐᖓᑕ 
ᑕᒪᑐᒧᖓ ᐃᒫᒃ ᓱᒃᑰᓗᐊᖅᑐᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒃᑐᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒌᓂᑦ. ᐄ, ᐱᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑎᑭᓐᓇᓱᒃᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦ 
ᖁᓕᑦ ᐊᓂᒍᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᑎᑭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᓈᒻᒪᒋᓗᐊᓐᖏᓇᒃᑯ. 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖃᑖᕐᒪᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒫᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕈᒪᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ 
ᑲᓇᑕᒥ ᐊᐅᓱᐃᑦᑐᒨᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᕐᓂᒃ. 
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I know that the mayor and the entire 
community were very happy that you took 
the time out of your summer to come up 
and actually experience living in the small 
communities. I know it wasn’t our doing, 
but the weather was bad, and you were 
stranded a couple of days in Resolute Bay 
as well as in Grise Fiord. So you got a real 
taste of some of the things we have to 
experience in the High Arctic.  
 
I just thought, maybe just to see in terms of 
some of the things we chatted about over 
our time there in Grise Fiord, if there was 
anything that you’re taking away from your 
experience up there in terms of the way you 
do audits, in terms of possible future audits 
that you could share with us. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would like to thank Mr. Elliott and the 
community of Grise Fiord for the 
wonderful reception that we received.  
 
Even though we have visited other 
communities, I think it was a real eye-
opener to visit Grise Fiord, to live through 
the problems of fog, rain, planes that don’t 
go on schedule, and that you’re on a 
waiting list for five days to get out. So I 
think that those kinds of experiences help 
us to better understand the realities that the 
people and government face in trying to 
deliver services to people.  
 
In particular, one that we certainly talked 
about is the whole Food Mail Program, on 
which we have done audits in the past, but 
I think we might want to look at it again.  
I am looking at Mr. Campbell to see if he 
will put it into his planning. I think visiting 
these communities makes us recognize how 
important some of those programs are, how 

 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐅ ᒪᐃᔪᖑᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓱᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᑉᐸᐅᓐᖓᕈᓐᓇᓐᖑᐊᑕᖅᓯᓐᓇᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᓄᓇᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓯᓚᕈᔪᒻᒧᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᖁᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ 
ᐊᔪᖅᓯᓯᒪᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ ᖃᐅᓱᐃᑦᑐᒥ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᖃᐅᔨᕚᓪᓕᑲᓐᓂᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᑕᒫᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᕙᒃᑕᑎᓐᓂ ᑕᑉᐹᓂ ᖁᑦᑎᑦᑐᒥ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔭᕗᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐊᐅᓱᐃᑦᑐᒥ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐃᓕᑉᐹᓪᓕᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᓴᕆᕙᑎᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕆᔭᕙᒃᑕᕐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕆᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᑕᑎᓪᓗ ᓯᕗᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ, 
ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᖑᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕈᒪᔭᕋ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ, ᓄᓇᓕᓪᓗ 
ᐊᐅᑐᐃᑦᑐᒥᐅᑦ. ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒃᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕋᒪ. 
 
 
ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕋᒪ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᕚᓪᓕᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕋ ᐊᐅᓱᐃᑦᑐᒥ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒃᓯᓯᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᖓᑕᓲᖃᕈᓐᓇᐃᓪᓕᐅᖅᑲᔪᑦ 
ᑭᖑᕙᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓪᓗ ᐅᓪᓗᓄᑦ ᑕᓪᓕᒪᓄᑦ 
ᐅᑕᖅᑭᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ. 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᑭᓯᕚᓪᓕᕈᑎᒋᒻᒪᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓪᓚᕆᒻᒪᖔᖅ. ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᕙᒃᑕᖏᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕈᑎᒋᓇᓱᒃᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓄᖁᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓪᓗᐊᑕᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓂᕿᓂᑦ 
ᑎᑭᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑎᒍ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᓛᖅᑕᕗᓪᓕᖃᐃ. 
 
 



29  

absolutely critical they are to the well-
being of people. When we originally 
audited that a few years ago, we had some 
pretty serious concerns about the 
management of the program. 
 
Those are the kinds of examples, I think, 
that help us move from, perhaps, just the 
bureaucratic kind of theoretical 
management of programs to actually see 
their impact on the ground. It is invaluable 
for us to have those experiences, and I 
thank you again for inviting us. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for those comments. It’s 
actually really heartening to hear that in the 
sense that in the communities, we’re 
constantly talking how hard it is to fly in 
and out of communities and the cost of 
food coming up. I’ve tried very hard to 
invite as many people as I can, like 
Senators and Ministers, so it’s nice having 
someone with your influence to come up 
and say things like that because it helps in 
the overall good of Nunavut itself.  
 
In your opening comments, no. 4, it’s 
actually on the second page where you’re 
talking about the underlying causes of 
chronic shortage and whatnot, and you use 
the example of staffing competitions being 
unsuccessful in selecting qualified 
candidates. Did you actually find out any 
reasons in your discussions as to why some 
of these competitions were so 
unsuccessful? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 

ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᖃᐃ ᐸᕐᓇᒍᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᐹ. ᐄ, 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓅᖅᑐᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᑦᑎᐊᒻᒪᕆᓚᐅᖅᑐᒋᑦ, ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᐱᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᓪᓚᕆᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᓅᓇᓱᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒍᑎᖃᒻᒪᕆᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᔾᔭ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ ᑲᒪᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖏᑦᑐᒥᒃ 
ᓴᓇᕐᕙᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᒍ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᑦᑎᐊᒻᒪᕆᓪᓗᓂ ᐃᓕᑉᐹᓪᓕᕐᓇᖅᑐᒻᒪᕆᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒻᒪᕆᑉᐸᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐃᖁᔨᓐᖑᐊᑕᖅᓯᓐᓇᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒡᓗ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᓂᓪᓕᐊᒐᕕᑦ. ᓄᓇᓕᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᐃᓐᓇᕋᑦᑕ ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓄᕋᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ ᖃᖓᑕᓲᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑭᑐᔪᐊᓘᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᓂᕿᕗᑦ. 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᑦᑎᕋᓱᒃᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕋᒪᓗ ᖃᐃᖁᔨᕙᒃᑐᖓ ᐃᓛᒃ 
ᑕᑉᐸᐅᓐᖓᖁᔨᓪᓗᖓ ᓯᐊᓇᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ. ᐄ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᖁᕕᐊᓇᓚᐅᖅᑯᖅ ᐃᕝᕕᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᒋᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᕋᖅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑕᑉᐸᐅᓐᖓᕈᓐᓇᓐᖑᐊᑦᑕᖅᓯᓐᓇᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑲᐅᓂᖅᐸᓪᓗᓂ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒧᑦ ᐃᕝᕕᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓᓂ 4-ᒥ, ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓᓂ 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᕐᒥ, ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᐅᓗᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑭᖅᑐᕋᐅᑎᔾᔪᑕᐅᕙᒃᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᖅᐸᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓐᓂᖅᑮᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ? ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᒃᑭᐊᕐᒪᑯᐊᖓᐃ 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕈᑕᐅᓇᓱᒃᑐᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᖅᐸᓐᖏᓚᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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think we can understand that some of the 
reasons would probably be very tight 
labour markets, a lot of competition for 
certain skills.  
 
But what we were really trying to get at is 
we think that this sort of analysis has to be 
done by the government in order to assess 
if their approach to recruitment is the right 
one or identify, perhaps, certain professions 
or skill sets that are already short, and then 
how do you go about it. For example, do 
you put in a program like the teachers 
program to try to build the capacity 
amongst beneficiaries?  
 
So much of the report talks about the lack 
of analysis and the lack of information to 
understand why competitions aren’t 
successful or why people are dropping out 
of training programs in order to better 
understand how successful those programs 
are and are there ways to improve. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
know a couple of examples where there 
were actually a couple of qualified Inuk 
applicants who applied and a part of their 
problem was… they were qualified, they 
wanted the job. It’s that 318 days that sort 
of holds them back in the sense that they 
have the reality of they need a job, they 
have a family, they need to be able to 
provide for that family, and they can’t wait 
for the government to go through whatever 
different processes that it has to go through 
to be able to hire someone. I think we lose 
a lot of very good, qualified Inuit 
employees by that long waiting period, so 
it would be nice to see. 
 
I wanted to change my questions and ask 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑐᑭᓯᔭᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ, ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᔪᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒥᓲᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᓱᒃᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ, ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑦ, ᖃᐅᔨᓇᓱᖕᓂᐊᕐᓗᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᖅᑎᑦᑎᓇᓱᖕᓂᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᕆᒋᐊᖃᖅᑕᖏᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐃᒫᖃᐃ 
ᐃᓕᓯᕕᒋᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᔪᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᕙᒃᑐᓂᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇᓗ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖑᔪᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᓯᒪᖕᒥᖕᒪᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᒃ ᐱᑕᖃᓗᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᖃᖅᐸᓐᖏᓚᖅ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓄᖃᖅᐸᖕᒪᖔᑕ ᓱᖕᒪᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕋᓱᒃᑐᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᕋᓱᒃᑐᑕ ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ, ᓇᐅᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕐᕕᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᒪᕐᕉᖕᓂᖃᐃ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑑᖕᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓅᖕᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᒃᓯᒪᔫᒃ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓᓕ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖃᖅᑐᑎᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᒪᔪᑦ 318-ᖑᔪᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᖓᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑎᒃ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᓂᕿᑖᕈᑎᒃᓴᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑎᒃ 
ᐅᑕᖅᑭᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᕆᕙᒃᑕᖓᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᔭᒐᐃᓪᓚᕆᑦᑎᐊᒻᒪᕆᒃᐸᒃᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑯᑐᓗᖕᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᓂᒃ ᐃᓄᖕᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᐊᓗᒃ ᐅᑕᖅᑭᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
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some to the Deputy Minister. On page 4 of 
her opening comments, no. 8, she was 
mentioning the strategic plan that the 
department would be coming up with in the 
2011-12 business plan. She mentioned the 
development of the Human Resources 
Strategy and it will be monitored by 
Tamapta Action Plan no. 57. Can she 
explain and expand on the Tamapta Action 
Plan no. 57? Is that one of the 
recommendations inside the plan? I’m just 
not familiar with what she is actually 
referring to. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, it is one of the actions within the 
action plan, is to develop a Human 
Resources Strategy, and the actual project 
description from the Department of Human 
Resources is that the Department of Human 
Resources, in collaboration with the 
departments, boards, and agencies of the 
Government of Nunavut, will develop and 
deliver a system-wide Human Resource 
Strategy that encourages recruitment, 
supports employee retention, and most 
importantly provides targeted and effective 
training opportunities for employees at all 
stages of the employment spectrum. This 
strategy will also include an evaluation 
component. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If 
the plan is being developed in 2011-12, 
when will the evaluation of that be? Is that 
in a five-year sort of plan? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 

 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓗ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᒃᑲ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒥᒐᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᕐᒥ 4-ᒥ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓕᒃ 8. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᖕᒪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓐᓂᖓ ᐸᕐᓇᒍᑕᐅᔪᒥᒃ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒃᓴᐅᔪᒥᒃ 2011-2012 ᐱᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᒍᑕᐅᔪᒥᒃ. ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᐱᕚᓪᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐅᔾᔨᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᖓᑦ. ᑕᒪᑉᑕᒥ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐸᕐᓇᒍᑕᐅᔪᒥᒃ 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓ 57-ᒥ, ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒋᐊᕈᓐᓇᖅᑲ ᑕᒪᑉᑕ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᒍᑎᖓ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓕᒃ 57 
ᑭᓱᓪᓚᕆᐅᖕᒪᖔᑦ, ᑭᓱᓕᕆᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᓕᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᐄ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᓗᐊᓃᑦᑐᖅ 
ᐋᖅᑮᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐋᖅᑮᒐᔭᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᖅᑎᑦᑎᓇᓱᒃᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᔪᒪᓇᓱᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ, ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒡᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᑎᒐᔭᕐᒥᔪᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓚᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᑕᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᓴᓇᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 2011-12 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓄᑦ 
ᑕᓪᓕᒪᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᕚ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The plan is only in the development stages, 
so we have not set the actual timelines. We 
have set an end date because we want to 
meet that end date and have the actual plan 
finished. We will be developing the plan in 
stages, but some components are more 
important than others, such as the 
recruitment and the retention component. It 
will be something that we will look at very 
quickly right off.  
 
The plan will take us from pre-
employment, how do we recruit, how do 
we hire people, how do we treat people 
while they are with the government, how 
do we see people out the door. So we will 
divide it up into specific components, with 
a completion date on the entire plan being 
at the end of that time period. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On 
page 5, bullets 11, 12, and 13, they actually 
talk a lot about what the department’s 
response will be in terms of possible 
solutions to filling gaps, doing training and 
development, learning plans.  
 
To me it seems like there is a lot of work 
that is going to be done in terms of making 
changes and acting on some of the 
recommendations from the Office of the 
Auditor General. With some of the lessons 
learned in questions that we asked with the 
Nunavut Housing Corporation and with 
some of the problems you had over the past 
in terms of the day-to-day operations, do 
you guys have the capacity to take on this 
extra responsibility? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓚᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓴᓇᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ. ᒫᓐᓇ ᐅᓪᓗᖓᓂ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᓯᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᕐᖓᑕ ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ ᐃᓗᓕᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᑎᑕᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᓄᖅᑲᕈᒻᒪᒥᐊᔅᓴᓕᕆᔨᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓃᖃᓯᐅᑎᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ ᓯᕗᕐᖓᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᓄᕐᓕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ?  
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒡᒍᑐᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᖃᖓᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᓯᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ ᑕᓪᓕᒪᖓᓂᒃ, 11, 12, 13 ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᑦ ᑭᐅᒡᒍᓯᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐃᓚᑰᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᒋᔭᖓ. 
 
ᐅᓄᖅᑐᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᕙᓚᑦᑎᒻᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᕆᔭᖏᑦ, 
ᐊᓯᔾᔩᑲᑕᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓗᓂᒋᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ. ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᐃᓪᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᓐᓂᑦ. ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᓯ 
ᖃᐅᑕᒫᖅᓯᐅᑎᓂᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓯ ᐊᒥᒐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᐹᑦ? 
ᐊᔪᖏᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᖅᐹᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᑎᒍᓯᔭᕆᐊᔅᓴᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There certainly are challenges. Here’s how 
we have brainstormed how we will address 
them. When we developed our action plan, 
we talked about actually assigning these 
various actions, breaking them into tasks so 
that task groups were assigned.  
 
Through the task groups, we would then 
have groups of people who would be 
responsible. Rather than having specific, 
we have lead individuals, but we would 
also have a group for every task. We have 
developed the human resource 
coordinators, the deputy ministers 
committee, the senior management 
committees, and human resources, so we’re 
pulling in all of our various resources.  
 
By breaking the tasks down and having the 
task groups and having an action plan for 
each one, our hope then is that when we 
lose capacity with an individual, we will 
still have a task group that will continue 
with the challenge. So that’s our planned 
approach. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So, 
at this time, your department is not going to 
have any extra staff added to work on 
developing these things or you won’t have 
different contracts from different 
consulting firms. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It 
is not our plan at this time to contract; it is 
our plan to utilize resources within the 
department. Our reorganization will help us 
to strategize, to be able to pull people from 
various positions, people who are already 

 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᕝᕙ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᒋᐊᕈᑎᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓕᐅᕌᖓᑦᑕ, ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᓴᓂᕐᕙᐃᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ ᑎᒍᓯᓪᓗᑕ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᑐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᔪᐃᓐᓇᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔨ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖏᓪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓪᓗ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᖏᓐᓃᖔᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᓄᕈᓘᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᖏᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᕝᔭᐃᒋᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑭᔅᓴᓗᐊᓕᕌᖓᑦᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕈᓐᓃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᕝᕙ 
ᐸᕐᓇᒃᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓯᖄᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᔭᖏᑦᑑᑦ? 
ᓴᓇᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑳᑐᕌᑎᓯᓗᓰᓛᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐱᓰ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑎᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᒻᒥᑰᖅᑐᓂᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᐸᕐᓇᒃᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑎᓃᑦᑐᑦ 
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responsible for recruitment, people who are 
responsible for Inuit planning.  
 
In the department, also, the HR 
coordinators are responsible for being part 
of the overall HR group representing their 
departments. They meet on a regular basis 
with the HR people, the coordinators do. 
They have developed a subgroup that is 
working on specific tasks to increase 
competition rates.  
 
So, again, it is our plan to have these task 
groups. The tasks are already part of 
peoples’ responsibilities, but the big issue 
we have seen is that when people leave one 
specific job, then the task stops and then 
when the new person comes, they start over 
again from square one. So we lose 
momentum as we lose people and turnover, 
even people who move within this 
government.  
 
So having the task groups that we say, 
these six people from the various 
departments with people from HR will 
work on this particular task over this 
particular time period. Our hope is, by 
having more capacity, we focus on specific 
tasks that if a key individual leaves, we will 
be able to continue without losing 
momentum. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for that answer. I just wanted to 
sort of bounce over back to the Office of 
the Auditor General and pose a similar 
question in terms of after doing a review 
and after seeing what recommendations 
and responses that the Government of 
Nunavut is going to have and what they 
will be doing, and listening to the answers 
of the Deputy Minister, do you feel that 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᖔᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᕐᓗᒍ 
ᑎᒥᐅᑉ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᓯᒪᓂᖓ ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᕐᓗᑎᒍᓪᓗ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᑲᒪᓕᕇᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᓂᕐᒥᑦ, ᐃᓄᐃᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑏᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔩᑦ ᑲᒪᔨᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᓗᐃᑦᐊᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᐃᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖁᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒋᔭᖓᓂᑦ 
ᑐᑭᒧᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐊᕈᓯᕐᓂᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐅᓄᖅᓯᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᑭᑦᕋᐅᑎᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᒥᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᑦᑐᑦ. 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᒋᐊᖃᕐᖢᑎᑦ. 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᑯᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒥᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᒥᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑐᖃᕐᐸᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ ᓱᕋᒐᔭᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓄᑖᒥᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᓕᖅᐸᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᕐᓂᖓᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓕᕐᓗᓂ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓕᓵᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑲᔪᓯᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓃᑲᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ ᓲᖑᔅᓴᓂᖓᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 6-ᖑᔪᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒻᒦᖔᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓃᓐᖔᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓂᕆᐅᒍᒪᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐊᔪᖏᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᓂᖅᓴᐅᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓴᒃᑯᐃᓚᐅᑲᑕᒋᐊᖃᕈᓐᓃᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᑐᒃᑯᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᕐᔪᒡᓗᖓ ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ, ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓪᓗᒍᑦᑕᐅᖅ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, 
ᑕᑯᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ, 
ᑮᒡᒍᓯᖃᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ, 
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this department has the capacity to take on 
this challenge? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The department did share their action plan 
with us and we think, if successfully 
completed, it will address the 
recommendations that we have made. We 
did not go into an assessment of the 
capacity of the department to actually 
fulfill this. We would expect the 
department themselves to have done that. I 
would hope that when departments make 
commitments that they are sure that they 
can actually live up to those commitments.  
 
Only time will really tell how successful 
this action plan is. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On 
page 6, bullet 15 of the Deputy Minister’s 
response, she was speaking about the 
human resources department’s competition 
database. I was wondering if she could 
expand on that database in terms of how 
long the pilot will be, whether it is a pilot 
across Nunavut, is it her department that is 
in charge of it, or are there different 
consulting firms that are involved in it. Is 
there training and that type of thing? Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The competition database was just set up a 
few months ago within the Department of 
Human Resources by a Department of 
Human Resources staff. We did not use 

ᓈᓚᓚᐅᖅᖢᒋᓪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᑕ 
ᑭᒡᒍᓯᕆᔭᖏᑦ, ᐃᒃᐱᒍᓱᒃᐲᑦ? ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᕋᓱᒋᕕᐅᒃ? 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᖅᐸᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᕈᑎᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᑉ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᓯᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ, ᑭᐅᓯᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒡᓗ. ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᕈᑎ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᓯᒪᖕᒥᔪᒍᑦ. 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ ᓂᕆᐅᒋᒐᑦᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕆᐊᓕᒃ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ, 
ᖃᓄᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ. ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐊᖏᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᖕᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᓄᑎᒋ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᓄᑲᓪᓚᒃ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᖅ ᐊᓂᒍᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᐸᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᓛᖅᑐᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 6-ᖓᓐᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂ ᐋᖅᑭᓐᖑᐊᑯᓗᒃ 15, 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑭᒡᒍᓯᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᖕᒪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒋᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᒐᒍᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕕᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕕᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᖅᐱᐅᒃ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ, ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᐆᒃᑐᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᐹ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑦ? ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓪᓗ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᐅᔪᑦ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑕᐅᕚᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
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any consultants. It is a basic access 
database that is available to all of our staff.  
 
We have started gathering information on 
the competitions just within headquarters 
so that when a competition actually comes 
to the headquarters staffing office, we are 
able to put in the date we receive it and 
know when we move it from one phase to 
another, with a phase from ads to 
screening, to interviewing, to waiting for 
housing. 
 
Our intent is to expand the database to the 
HR community so that each one of the 
communities is also inputting information. 
We will then expand it hopefully to each 
one of the departments, which will have to 
be one at a time because we also need to 
know how long the information is out there 
and what process it’s in, in the 
departments. As the Auditor General 
indicated, over half the time that we are 
waiting for competitions, they are not yet 
obtained; the paperwork hasn’t yet arrived 
in the Department of Human Resources.  
 
So by having this information, we will start 
out by being able to provide reports, “This 
is how long, how many competitions, 
where they are.” So we will be able to say, 
“Okay, this many competitions in this 
department took this long to screen. This 
many took this long. This many were in 
this process. This many were waiting for 
housing.” And then expand it out into the 
departments.  
 
In the past, before we started it a few 
months ago, we’ve had to actually go 
through a competition file and figure out 
how long it was taking or where it was. 
With this information, we will be able to 
really tell exactly what is holding up the 
competitions and whether the majority of 
them are in housing or if the majority of 

ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᓄᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᕋᑖᕐᓂᑯᑦ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕕᐅᔪᖅ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓᓗ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᑎᒍᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᑐᒍᓯᒡᕕᒃ, 
ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ. 
 
ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓂᑦ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᒃᑯᕕᖕᒦᖔᖅᑐᑐᐊᓂᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑕᕌᖓᑕ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᒃᑯᕕᖕᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᓯᓗᓂ 
ᐅᓪᓗᖓᓂᒃ ᖃᖓ ᐱᖕᒪᖔᕐᔪᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐅᕙᖓ ᓅᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕈᑎᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒥᒃ ᐱᓇᓱᒃᑐᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐅᕗᖓ ᑎᑭᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᕗᖓᐅᔾᔨᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓄᓇᓕᓕᒫᑦ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᑎᒍᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕐᕕᖕᒥ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖕᒧᑦ ᐃᓛᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᓂᐅᖅᑲᕈᒥᓇᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᖅ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖅ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖓ, 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑭᓱᑯᑦᑎᐊᓃᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖕᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᒃᑐᑦ. ᐊᕝᕙᓪᓗᐊᑲᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐅᑕᖅᑭᓲᖑᒐᑦᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒧᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᒃᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗᑎᒡᓗ. 
 
 
 
ᑐᖅᑯᐃᕙᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᓄᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᖃᑦᓯᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᓇᓃᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ, 
ᐃᓇ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᖅ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᖅ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒐᓱᒃᑐᖅ, ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᖅ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᕋᓱᒃᑐᑦ, 
ᐃᓛᒃ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓇᓱᒃᑐᖃᖅᑐᖅ. ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖕᓄᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑕᐅᔪᒫᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᒫᓐᓇᓕ ᒫᓐᓇᕋᑖᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑎᒍᑦ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒥᒃ ᐃᓐᓄᒃᓯᓇᓱᖕᒪᖔᑕ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᓗᖅᑕᕈᑎᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
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them are taking too long to screen.  
 
We will then be able to hopefully provide 
reports to the departments. We will be able 
to see if the issues are the same in all 
departments or if they vary from 
department to department. We will also be 
able to set some standards that would say 
that all of these things should happen 
within these set time periods and be able to 
monitor whether or not they are happening 
within this time period. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Ningark.  
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
For the record, I would like to 
acknowledge that when I wanted to speak 
with people in different departments in the 
senior levels in this government, I am able 
to speak in my language, which, in the 
NWT, I was not able most of the time. I 
would like to acknowledge that. We have 
made movements forward and I would like 
to acknowledge that. 
 
I still think, Mr. Chairman, especially in 
the senior managerial level, we have to try 
to do better and do better in priority hiring. 
I think only then, especially in the human 
resources area, do we see more 
beneficiaries being hired. Our dream and 
aspirations in this government is to be able 
to use the Inuit language in the year 2025 
or 2030, and the only way we can achieve 
that is to start hiring bilingual people. This 
is very important up here. That’s only a 
thought. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Mr. 
Aupaluktuq. 
 
Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I just want to follow up a 

ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᓇᓱᒃᑐᑦ, ᐄᓛᒃ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖓᑎᑕᐅᔪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᓗᑕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖕᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᓗ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᒃᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᕙᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖕᒥ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑑᑎᐅᕙᓪᓗ, ᖃᐅᔨᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᓛᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒡᓗ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᓯᔪᓐᓇᓛᖅᑐᒍᑦ, 
ᐅᕙᓂ ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ. 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᓗᑎᒡᓗ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᑦᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᖁᔨᓪᓗᖓ. 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᕈᒪᓚᐅᕋᒪ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᖓ. ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᖃᓪᓗᓇᐅᔭᐃᓐᓈᓗᒋᐊᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᒪ 
ᐃᓄᒃᑎᑑᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᐊᕐᔪᓐᓂᐊᓕᕐᒥᔪᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎ 
ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᓄᑦ. ᐃᓕᓴᕆᔪᒪᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᖃᑦᑕᓕᕋᒪ. 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᓱᒪᔪᖓ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔩᑦ 
ᐱᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᖅᓴᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᕋᑦᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕐᓗᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᓐᖓ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓘᓕᕈᑦᑕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦ 
ᐅᓄᖅᓯᕙᓪᓕᕋᔭᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᐅᑐᓐᖑᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᕗᓪᓗ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑐᓐᓇᖅᓯᒐᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᓕᕐᓗᑕ 2025-ᖑᓕᖅᐸᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕐᓗᑕ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓰᓐᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒍᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖃᑖᖅᑐᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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question along the lines of the question that 
my colleague, Mr. Elliott, asked on page 6 
up to Ms. Louise Wasson, the Deputy 
Minister, in her opening comments on 
paragraph 15 in regard to the competition 
database. Does this include who can or 
can’t apply for GN jobs to successfully 
complete and/or pass the screening stage? 
Essentially does the competition database 
gauge who is eligible and who is not 
eligible? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Through the screening process then yes, we 
will have that information on whether or 
not individuals are eligible. So we will be 
able to tell how many people are not 
eligible for competitions. That is a very 
important and a very relevant question for 
you to ask because a concern of our senior 
management team is whether or not people 
are being screened out and if people are 
appropriately trained to screen people in, 
and also making sure that we’re removing 
any barriers to screening people and to 
interviewing people also. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Aupaluktuq. 
 
Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. For those that are not eligible or 
don’t successfully go through the screening 
process, are they advised of the nature? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
On most occasions, not in all occasions, it 
depends. On southern candidates, we do 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. 
 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᒥᒃ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᕐᔪᒍᒪᒐᒪ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓᓂ ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 6-ᖓᓂ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᒥᔅ ᓚᐅᓴᒧᑦ ᒪᑐᐃᒋᐊᕈᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ 15-ᒥ 
ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᐊᑕᐅᔪᑦ. ᐃᓕᓯᓯᒪᒋᕚᑦ ᑭᓇᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᒍᓐᓇᖅᐸᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᒍᓐᓇᓐᖏᓚᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖃᑎᐅᓯᐅᑎᓯᒪᕚᑦ? ᑭᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑭᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒥᒃ ᐱᓇᓱᒍᓐᓇᖅᐸᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᒍᓐᓇᓐᖏᓚᓪᓗ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖅ ᐱᓯᒪᓕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᓯᕗᓐᖓᕈᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑳᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᖃᒃᓰᓪᓗ ᐱᓇᓱᖃᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᓐᖏᒻᒪᖔᑕ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒥᒃ ᐱᓇᓱᒋᐊᑐᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒥᖕᒪᑕ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᑦᑎᐊᕙᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ. 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᒃᑐᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕᓗ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑐᓗᒃᑕᕈᑎᖏᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᓗᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. 
 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᔪᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒧᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑳᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
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not, but if they are beneficiaries and if they 
are GN employees, then they are supposed 
to be notified.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. In the 
future, if you are trying to discuss 
something, there is a mute button there that 
you can push so that we don’t hear the 
conversation. Thank you. Mr. Ningeongan. 
 
Mr. Ningeongan (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. First of all, I wish to 
welcome the Auditor General and her staff, 
and our government representatives.  
 
I would like clarification on the comments 
of the Auditor General, specifically 
paragraph 7 of the opening remarks. As she 
stated, it takes 308 days to fill a position on 
average. This is too lengthy of a period, as 
others have also noted this time lag. I am 
aware that this particular issue was not part 
of your audit. However, if you were to 
compare this at the federal government 
level or even to other levels of government, 
is this 308 day average or similar to how 
long it takes to fill these positions? Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningeongan. 
Ms. Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We haven’t done a comparison of staffing 
time with other provinces or territories. We 
haven’t done any work recently at the 
federal government level, but I know 
previous audits that we did a few years ago 
indicated that the staffing process was also 
very long.  
 
If you look in our report on page 19, there 
is Exhibit 7, which actually shows that 
almost half of the time is time that is spent 
within the department before it’s even 
referred to the Department of Human 

 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᒥᓱᐊᖅᑎᓂᖅᓴᐅᓗᒍ ᐄᖑᕙᒃᑐᖅ. 
ᖃᓪᓗᓈᓃᓐᖔᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᖅᑕᐅᕙᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᓄᒻᒪᕆᐅᑉᐸᑕ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓃᑉᐸᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᖅᑕᐅᑦᑕᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᐱᑎᑕᐅᓐᓂᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑲᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᓂᐊᓕᕋᐃᒍᕕᓇᐃ ᖃᓂᓐᖒᑏᑦ 
ᖃᒥᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᒍ ᑐᓴᖅᓴᐅᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑎ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ. 
 
ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐅᓇᕼᐋᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᒥᒃ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᖁᔨᓪᓗᖓᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᕝᕙᓃᖃᑎᒋᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓃᖔᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᓐᖓ. 
 
ᐅᓇ ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᒋᔪᒪᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᓐᓃᑦᑐᖅ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᒐᓂᑦ 7 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓕᒃ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᒪᑦ 380-ᓂᒃ ᐃᓪᓗᓂᒃ 
ᐅᑕᖅᑭᔭᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᓲᖑᒋᐊᑎᓂ ᑕᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓂᑖᕋᓱᒃᑐᐃᑦ ᓂᕈᐊᖅᑕᐅᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃ. ᓯᕕᑐᔪᑲᓪᓚᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂᓕᓛᒃ.ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᑖᑦᓱᒥᖓ 
ᑭᓪᓕᓯᓂᐊᕆᓗᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑲᓇᑕᓗᑦᑖᖅ ᓲᕐᓗ ᑕᐅᑐᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐅᔾᔨᕆᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᒍ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓈᓴᐅᑦ 318 ᐅᓪᓗᐃᑦ 
ᓯᕕᑐᔪᐊᓘᔮᕐᒪᖔᑦ, ᓲᕐᓗ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ provinces-
ᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᕆᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒥᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᑐᑭᓯᔪᒪᓪᓗᒍ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᖃᓄᑎᒌ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑎᒋᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ province-
ᓂᑦ territories-ᓂᑦ ᐅᑭᐅᑕᖅᑑᑉ ᒐᕙᒪᖏᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖏᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᑐᖃᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᕈ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᖑᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐊᓘᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔪᑦ ᐃᓐᓄᒐᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖕ. 
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Resources. So there is about six months 
that is spent in the department before a 
staffing action even begins with the 
Department of Human Resources. Clearly I 
think that the time can be shortened. We 
recommend that there be a review of both 
the departments and the Department of 
Human Resources to try to speed that 
process up.  
 
This was mentioned earlier. If someone 
applies to a job and then has to wait for a 
year to know if they are going to get it, it 
could certainly be one of the reasons why 
people don’t apply or else drop out to find 
other employment in the meantime. So the 
staffing process has to be much shorter and 
more responsive to make sure that you’re 
able to get the good candidates and hire 
them quickly. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. I have 
no more names on the list for comments on 
the opening statements. We will now begin 
the paragraph-by-paragraph review of the 
Auditor General’s report, beginning with 
page 1 to 3. 
 
I would like to remind Members that while 
her staff will be here this week, Ms. Fraser 
will be with us only today.  
 
Are there any questions on pages 1 to 3? 
Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
guess I will start the questioning.  
 
One of the things that it says in the first 
couple pages is it talks about… it’s actually 
on page 2. The Auditor General made it 
clear in her opening comments about the 
Government of Nunavut not being able to 
meet the goals set for 2010 in terms of Inuit 
employment and how realistic it would be 
to reach the goal of 85 percent 

ᐊᒻᒪ 7-ᒥᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᓇᑉᐸᓪᓗᐊᖏᖅᑲᐃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒻᒥ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᑦᓲᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᖓᑦ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᖅ ᐃᓐᓄᒋᐊᓕᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᒻᒪᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓅᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᖓᑦ 
ᐊᑯᓂᕈᓗᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᓇᓗᓇᖏᑦᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ 
ᕿᓚᒻᒥᐅᓂᖅᓴᖅᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᐃᖃᑦᑕᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ. 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖃᑎᒌᒍᓐᓇᖅᑐᐃᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕖᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐃᓪᓕᐅᕈᑎᓖᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᐊᑲᐅᒐᔭᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᓚᐅᕐᓗᓂ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᔅᓲᔮᓗᒻᒥᑦ ᐅᑕᖅᑭᓗᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᒐᓱᓪᓗᓂ 
ᓯᓪᓗᓇᕈᔪᒻᒪᕆᒻᒪᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ ᕿᓂᖃᑦᑕᕐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓐᓄᒋᐊᖃᓕᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᕿᓂᕆᐊᖃᓕᕋᐃᑉᐸᑕ 
ᕿᓚᒻᒥᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ, ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᖅᐸᑕ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᑦᓴᖅᑕᖃᕈᓐᓃᕐᒪᑦ ᓇᓪᓕᑭᑕᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᓇᓪᓕᑭᑕᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᕿᒥᕈᓂᐊᓕᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᐱᒋᐊᕐᓗᒋᑦ 1-ᒥᑦ 
3-ᒧᑦ ᒪᑉᐱᒐᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ ᐅᕙᓃᓐᓂᐊᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᓪᓗᒦᓐᓇᖅ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ ᐅᕙᓃᖑᓱᒻᒪᑦ. 
 
 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᑦ 1-ᒥᑦ 3-ᒧᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦᓯ?. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᒋᐊᕈᒪᖃᐃ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᓂᕐᒥᑦ. 
 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᒪᑉᐱᒑᓐᓂᒃ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ, ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 
2-ᒦᑦᑐᖅ, ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᓐᖓᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐅᖃᓕᒪᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᑦᑎᐊᖃᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ 
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representation in 2020.  
 
In light of the comments, I wanted to ask 
the Government of Nunavut. In terms of 
human resources, are you and will you be 
revising those numbers or will the 
Government of Nunavut still be working 
towards that type of representation for 
2020? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We haven’t discussed whether or not we 
will be revising the numbers. At this point 
in time, we will be looking at trying to get 
representation in our occupational 
categories and actually measuring whether 
or not we can meet those. The Auditor 
General’s office has indicated that unless 
things changes, we will not be able to meet 
those numbers.  
 
So being able to change some things 
quickly and then doing a review of where 
we are and projecting some new numbers 
will be something that we will definitely 
consider, but we have not made decisions 
along that line as of yet. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would like to ask the Office of the Auditor 
General in terms of if the Government of 
Nunavut decides to change the percentage. 
I know you probably wouldn’t want to 
hazard a guess, but could you actually give 
us some advice or give the Government of 
Nunavut advice in terms of setting a 
realistic goal? What factors should they 
consider to be able to reach that goal by 
2020? Thank you. 

ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑐᕌᖓᓕᐊᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ 2010-ᒥᑦ, 
ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᓛᕐᓂᐊᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇᑎᒋ ᐅᓄᖅᑎᒋᔪᓂᑦ 85-ᐳᓴᖑᓂᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ 2020-ᓕᖅᑲᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᕋᑖᕋᒃᑭᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᖃᓄᑎᒋ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᖅᑐᔅᓴᐅᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦᓯ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᓯᒪᕕᓯᐅᒃ ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᖁᓪᓗᓯ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ . 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒌᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔩᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦᑕ ᐋᒡᒐᓘᓐᓃᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᕿᒥᕈᔪᒍᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᖁᓪᓗᑕ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᖁᓪᓗᑕ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᔾᔮᕙᓪᓚᐃᖏᑕᕗᑦ ᒫᓐᓇᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᓱᒃᑲᓂᖅᓴᐅᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᒍᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ. ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᑎᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᒍᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓕᖅᑯᖓ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔩᓇᓱᐊᖅᐸᑕ ᐳᓴᓐᑎᖓᓂᒃ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ. 
ᓇᓚᐅᒃᓵᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᖃᑦᑕᖏᑦᑐᑎᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒐᓗᐊᖅᑐᖓ, 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᖃᐅᑎᒋᐊᕆᔪᓐᓇᖅᑮᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser.  
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’ll 
go back to, actually, some of the comments 
that we made in the report.  
 
First of all, the government really needs to 
understand what are the job requirements 
throughout the government, what 
qualifications are particularly difficult to 
fulfill, which jobs are particularly difficult 
to fulfill, I think, do a good assessment of 
can there be training programs or other 
educational opportunities put in place to 
help beneficiaries achieve those 
qualifications, and what time. Some of 
these qualifications obviously require post-
secondary education and perhaps even 
further training, so you could be talking 
about several years even if you started 
today.  
 
There also has to be a good assessment of 
the marketplace and what is the 
competition for those people. We were just 
discussing earlier as we talked about 
information technology professionals or 
finance professionals. There is a huge 
competition for those people. So it’s to be 
realistic about how many people can 
actually get those qualifications and how 
many would actually come into 
government and then, I think, to go through 
it perhaps category by category.  
 
It is interesting to note on the 
administrative and the paraprofessional that 
the government has far exceeded its targets. 
It’s more on the professional middle-senior 
management where there needs to be more 
focus on those particular jobs, what the 
qualifications are, and then what is realistic 
to achieve over the next, say, 10 to 15 
years. So we go back to the whole question 
of good information and good analysis that 

ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕆᓂᐊᖅᐸᑕ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓᓂᒃ 
ᐱᑎᓐᓇᓱᐊᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂᑦ; ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᑦ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᐹᖑᕙᑦ 2020-ᒥ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᒍᓐᓇᖅᑕᕗᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᕗᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒋᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑭᑦ. 
 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᑭᓱᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓗᓕᖃᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᓕᒫᖓᓂ, 
ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑐᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐃᓐᓄᒋᐊᒃᓴᖅ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑐᓂᖅᓴᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. ᒪᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᖅᐹᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᖅᐹᑦ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖓᓄᑦ ᒪᓕᒋᐊᓕᖏᓐᓄᑦ? ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᔾᔪᐊᓂ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᑖᖅᓯᒪᒋᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒌᖅᓯᒪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕇᖅᓯᒪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᓂᕐᒥᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᒪᑯᐊᓗ ᓇᒥᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓂᓐᖓᑦᑕᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᖅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᓇᒥᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᓱᓕᔪᒥᒃ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᕆᐊᕐᓗᒍ 
ᖃᑦᑎᓪᓚᑦᑖᖑᕙᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᓖᑦ, 
ᖃᑦᑎᓪᓚᑦᑖᓪᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᒪᒐᔭᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᔾᔨᕐᓇᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ ᖁᕝᕙᓯᓐᓄᖅᓵᕐᔪᓐᓂᒃ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑏᑦ 
ᖁᕝᕙᓯᓐᓂᖅᓴᖏᓐᓂ ᐊᒥᓲᓂᖅᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᑯᐊᓕ ᒥᐊᓂᕆᔩᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔩᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ ᐊᑯᓐᓈᕿᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᐸᓪᓕᐊᓐᖏᓂᖅᐹᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ. ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐅᑉᐱᓇᖅᔫᒥᔪᒥᒃ ᓱᓕᔪᕐᓇᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᑎᑭᓐᓇᓱᐊᕈᓐᓇᖅᐱᑎᒍ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᓐᓄᒃᓯᒪᓕᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
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is needed. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Going back to the question, I just wanted to 
clarify again for the Deputy Minister. Are 
you agreeing with what the Auditor 
General is saying that by 2020, we will not 
be able to reach the 85 percent? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, we are agreeing. The Auditor General 
has indicated that education and training 
will take time. What we need to do, of 
course, is really assess where we are. We 
have not done that in past. We will be 
working to assess exactly where we are, 
what we have, and what we need, and make 
some recommendations to close the gap 
and come up with some ideas and some 
new programs and services, hopefully. 
 
We will have to look at exactly what the 
schools are graduating and what we need, 
and also letting the Nunavut Arctic College 
know what programs, services, and training 
that they need to provide in what 
communities. Once we do this assessment, 
we will be able to have a better idea of 
exactly what those percentage targets 
should be. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So 
are you saying that as a department, in the 
past, you were not doing this? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 

ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑖᓐᓇᓕ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᒻᒥᔭᕗᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᓪᓕᐊ. 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒋᕕᐅᒃ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᔾᔮᓐᖏᓇᑦᑎᒍ 85-ᐳᓴᓐ 
ᑎᑭᓐᓇᓱᐊᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓂᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᕗᑦ. ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖓ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖅ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᐃᓂᕐᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᓐᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖃᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐱᕕᖃᕆᐊᖃᓚᖓᒻᒪᑦ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᑦᑎᐊᖅᑳᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᑭᓱᑦ 
ᐱᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑎᒍᑦ, ᓇᐅᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᐅᑏᑦ ᓄᑖᓪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕈᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᑕᐃᓐᓇᕆᓗᒋᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐅᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᐃᑦ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᐊᓗᒻᒥᒃ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᖓᓂᓗ ᑭᓱᒥᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐅᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᕙᓪᓕᐊᓗᑎᒍ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᒍ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᓕᒫᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᓐᖏᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᑎᒋ 
ᐳᓇᓐᑎᖏᑎᒍᑦ ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ ᐋᒡᒐᓘᓐᓃᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We were not gathering data that 
specifically would tell us what skills we 
had, what skills we needed, or looking 
particularly at the labour force data and 
saying, “This is exactly what we need and 
how many people we need.”  
 
There has been a great deal of work that 
has been carried out by the Department of 
Education to encourage people to stay in 
school, a great deal of collaboration with 
the Nunavut Arctic College and the other 
departments in providing various training 
programs, such as the nurse training 
program, the continuing care workers 
program, but we have not actually based 
those training and what we need in the 
workforce on concrete data that we have 
gathered within the Department of Human 
Resources. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
think I’ll ask one more question and then 
let my colleagues ask a few questions.  
 
In regard to this evaluation process to come 
up with a more realistic number, does your 
department have a timeline in terms of 
when we might find out what this new 
percentage would be or how long it would 
take to evaluate the process and do all of 
the things that you said your department 
needs to do? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Actually, in our action plan, we have said 
that it will take us to March 2015. That 
particularly sounds like a long time, but we 
were looking at how long it is going to take 

ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᓐᖏᓇᔅᓰ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᓐᖏᓇᑦᑕ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑕᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ, 
ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᖃᓄᑎᒋ ᐃᒪᓐᓇᑎᒋ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐅᕙᓂ 
ᐊᕕᒃᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ. 
 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕋᓱᐊᓪᓚᕆᓕᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖏᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᐊᓗᖕᒥ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᖕᒥ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᖅᑐᒋᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᒪᑯᓄᖓ ᐸᖅᑭᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓄᓕᕆᔨᓄᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᒐᓚᐃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ, ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᔪᕈᕐᓃᖅᓴᕆᐊᓖᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕋᒪ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᒥᒃ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᓯᒃᑲ 
ᐊᐱᕆᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑭᑦ. 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᑭᓱᒥᒃ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦᓯ 
ᓇᐅᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐳᓯᐊᓐᑎ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᒋᐊᖃᓕᓛᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕈᑎᒃ ᖃᓄᑎᒋ 
ᐱᓕᕆᒋᐊᖃᖅᑐᒋᓂᐊᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
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us to actually go through our entire 
process. Before that timeline, we will be 
able to identify priority positions, target 
those priority positions, and do the gap 
analysis on those priority positions.  
 
In order to complete all of the information 
for every classification for every 
department, then I realistically think that it 
will not be done in a shorter timeframe. We 
hope that we will be able to, but I don’t 
think that we need to project something 
that I think will take quite a bit of time. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Aupaluktuq. 
 
Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. My question is directed towards 
the Government of Nunavut guests over 
there, Ms. Wasson.  
 
On page 2 of the Auditor General’s report, 
bullet 1 and bullet 2, is saying that there is 
a lack of information on “how many people 
they need, with what qualifications and 
skills, to deliver their programs and 
services and meet their objectives. As a 
result, they are unable to develop plans for 
filling the gaps in capacity over the short, 
medium, and long terms.”  
 
Second bullet, in relation to Mr. 
Ningeongan’s question about the number 
of days the competition process takes 
place, it states, “However, more than half 
of this time passes before the hiring 
department asks the Department of Human 
Resources to get involved. In addition, over 
a two-year period that we looked at, almost 
half of the staffing competitions undertaken 
were unsuccessful in selecting a qualified 
candidate, and the reasons why have not 
been analyzed.” 
 

 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᑲᔪᓯᑎᒋᐊᓕᒃᑕ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ 
2015-ᒥ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᓯᒪᓛᕈᒪᔪᒍᑦ. ᐊᑯᓂᐊᓘᔮᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒋᐊᖃᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᐅᓯᓕᒫᑦᑎᐊᕗᑦ, ᐊᑐᖅᐸᒃᑕᓕᒫᑦᑎᐊᕗᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐃᓐᓇᕆᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᐊᓖᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒋᐊᖃᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓄᖕᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒃᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᖄᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑳᓲᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᖁᓕᕇᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑯᑎᖏᑦ ᕿᓕᕇᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒡᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᓴᕋᐃᓐᓂᖅᓴᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. 
 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐᒧᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 2-ᒥ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᖕᒪᑕ, ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᑕᖅᓴᑯᓗᒃ ᐊᐃᑉᐹᓗ, 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐱᑕᖃᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᖃᓄᑎᒋ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑎᒋᖕᒪᖔᑕ, 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ ᒪᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐊᔪᕈᕐᓃᖅᓴᕈᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᕿᓚᒥᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᒧᑦ, ᐊᑯᓐᓈᕆᔪᒧᑦ, 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᔪᒧᓪᓗ. 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᖕᒥᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ, 
ᓇᑉᐸᓪᓗᐊᖏᑦ, ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᖕᒪᑦ 
ᓇᑉᐸᓪᓗᐊᖏᒡᒎᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᖕᒦᑦᓲᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓂᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓅᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕋᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑯᓂᑲᓪᓚᕈᓗᒃ. 
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My question, Mr. Chairman, is: what 
specifically is the GN doing to address this 
issue? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again I’ll refer to the competition database. 
That is the tool that we’re using to gather 
the information, but within the Department 
of Human Resources, again I emphasize, 
we have started it only a few months ago 
and it is for the headquarters competitions. 
We will be expanding it to the communities 
and then inviting the departments also to 
become a part of it so that we can 
specifically monitor and provide reports to 
the departments, and then start to strategize 
what those specific targeted areas are so 
that we can reduce the time, which the 
Auditor General has indicated certainly 
needs to happen and needs to happen 
quickly. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.   
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Ningeongan.  
 
Mr. Ningeongan: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I would also like to ask a 
question to the Deputy Minister of Human 
Resources. On September 15 of this year, 
the cabinet announced that it has agreed to 
cut down on duplication in the Government 
of Nunavut, contributed to capacity 
building, and re-profile vacancies.  
 
What specific actions is the Department of 
Human Resources undertaking in response 
to this direction and what does the 
government mean by re-profiling 
vacancies? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᓂᕈᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓛᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ; ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᐊᔪᖅᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ? 
 
 
 
 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᒐᑎᒡᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᕋᕈᑎᐅᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ? ᖁᔭᓪᓚᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᐅᑉ ᑲᑎᖅᓱᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᑕᖅᑮᑦ ᖃᑦᑎᑲᓪᓚᐃᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑲᑎᖅᓱᐃᕕᕗᑦ ᑕᒫᓂ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᖃᕐᕕᖕᒥ 
ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑳᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔾᔪᑎᒋᓂᐊᓕᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᖅᐸᒃᑐᓂᒃ. ᓄᓇᓕᖕᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓕᖅᑎᒐᓱᐊᕐᓂᐊᕆᓪᓗᑎᒍᑦ. 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑕᓗ ᑭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ, ᐱᔭᐅᓐᓂᓐᖏᒻᒪᖔᑕᓗ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᖅᑐᕕᓃᑦ. ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ 
ᐅᖃᖃᐅᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᓱᒃᑲᔪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᒫᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᑎᒋᐸᓗᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᒋᐊᖃᓕᕐᒪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᑦᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ. 
 
ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ: ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔪᖓ ᑕᕝᕙ ᑐᖏᓕᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᒫᓂ ᓯᑎᐱᕆᒥ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᒥᑭᓪᓕᒋᐊᖅᑎᒋᐊᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ, ᐸᕐᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ ᐱᓕᕆᑯᐅᔪᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᕙᓪᓕᐊᕙᑦ? ᖃᓄᕐᓕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᑭᖃᖅᐸᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑕᑕᑎᕆᓇᓱᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 



47  

I’m afraid I don’t have that information 
available. I am not sure what the Hon. 
Member is referring to, but I will attempt to 
get the information and to clarify. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. It is 
in regard to the news release that cabinet 
had met to set roadmaps for the future. We 
can get a copy to you.  
 
Thank you. Maybe we will go back to Mr. 
Ningeongan to identify what he was 
referring to in the report. Thank you. Mr. 
Ningeongan. 
 
Mr. Ningeongan (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted 
clarification on the meaning behind the 
term re-profiling vacancies. If the material 
was available not too far in the future, I 
would like to get the information.  
 
We have seen what problems we have 
through processes such as yours. In serving 
as Members of this legislature, we 
welcome any recommendation or comment 
that will assist us in making improvements. 
We can then start using the 
recommendations to measure the 
government’s progress on resolving these 
issues. It seems that we are in the 
beginning stages, so the information we 
want is not always immediately available.  
 
However, the terminology used in English 
states a re-profiling of vacancies. What 
does the government mean by re-profiling 
vacancies? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, I will be providing an answer to that 
question in the morning. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᔭᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᖅ ᑭᓱᓪᓚᑦᑖᒥᐅᒻᒪᖔᖅ 
ᑐᑭᓯᑦᑎᐊᕐᓇᖓᓗ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐱᓇᓱᓐᓂᐊᕆᕙᕋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓄᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᕐᒧᖅᑲᐃ ᐅᑎᕐᓗᑕ ᑭᓱᒥᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᓪᓚᑦᑖᕋᓱᕋᑖᕐᒪᖔᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᓂᖏᐅᖓᓐ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇᐃᓛᒃ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕋᓕ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᑐᑭᓕᐅᕆᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑕᓕ re-profiling vacancies-ᓚᔪᖅ. 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᕕᐅᓐᓂᖏᑉᐸᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᕈᑦᑕ ᐃᒻᒪᑐᖃᐅᓗᐊᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ. 
ᑐᓴᕈᒪᒐᔭᕋᓗᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᑖᓐᓇ.  
 
ᐊᑲᐃᓪᓕᐊᕈᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᓂᓛᒃ 
ᑕᑯᔅᓴᕈᖅᓯᒪᖅᑳᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᒥᑦ 
ᑐᓴᕈᒪᖃᑦᑕᐸᓪᓕᐊᓚᖓᔪᐹᓘᒐᑦᑕ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᑎᓪᓗᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᒧᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒋᔭᖅᐳᓪᓗ 
ᐊᐱᕆᕙᓪᓕᐊᔭᑐᐊᕆᓗᑎᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᑐᐃᑦ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑎᑕᐅᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᑐᑭᓯᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᓚᖓᒐᑦᑕ 
ᓇᒧᓐᖓᐸᓪᓕᐊᒻᒪᖔᑦᑕ. ᒫᓐᓇ ᐱᒋᐊᓕᓵᖅᑐᔅᓯᐅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐊᑐᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐱᔮᕆᓇᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᔪᒪᔭᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᕝᕕᐅᔪᔅᓴᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ. 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᓐᓇᓕ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑎᑑᖅᑐᖅ re-profiling 
vacancies ᖃᓄᖅ ᑐᑭᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᒻᒪᖔᖅ 
ᑐᑭᓯᔪᒪᔭᑐᐊᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᕋᓗᐊᕋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
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Chairman: You don’t have the explanation 
as to what re-profiling means? Ms. 
Wasson. Sorry. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would prefer not to give an answer at this 
point in time because I’m not absolutely 
certain what it means. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Any 
other questions? Mr. Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
From time to time, we hear that there is 
duplication in the system. I am wondering 
what the problem is. Is it that one 
department doesn’t know what the other 
department is doing? What is the problem 
here? You don’t have a central agency that 
oversees that to ensure that there is no 
duplication in the system? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
One of the things that we will look at is 
duplication in the system when we’re 
actually doing a process review of all of 
our processes. We are partway through that 
process review at this time. The process 
review will determine whether there are 
duplications in the system, what those 
duplications are, and we will find ways to 
eliminate the duplications. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you, madam, for that response. My 
understanding of the system is that, from 
time to time, Deputy Ministers get together 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᑭᓯᐊᓪᓚᓚᐅᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᖃᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᑭᐅᒡᒍᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᒪᐅᓐᖓᖅᓯᓂᐊᖅᐳᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖃᓄᖅ ᑐᑭᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᒐᕖᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓇᓕᖅᑯᑕᒍᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᓱᓕ ᖃᐅᔨᑎᐊᕈᒪ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑭᐅᔪᒪᓂᐊᖅᑐᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᓯᖏᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᐃᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓛᓐᓂᓚᐅᓱᖓᖅ ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓲᖑᒐᑦᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃ 
ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᖏᑦ. 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᑭᓱᒥᑦ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕋᔅᓯ? ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᖃᑎᐊᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ ᓇᓗᒻᒪᑖ? ᑐᑦᑕᕐᕕᑦᑕᖃᓐᖏᒻᒫᑦ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒥᒃ? ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᖅ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓂ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓂᐊᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ. 
ᕿᑎᐸᓗᐊᓅᖅᑐᒍᖅᑲᐃ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓐᓂᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓂᐊᖅᑐᑕ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓗᐊᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᑭᓱᓂᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓗᐊᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓖᑦ ᐲᔭᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ.  
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to meet and strategize and talk about their 
plans, and so on, so things are noted from 
the senior level. I would imagine that there 
would be no duplication of things, but I 
thank the madam for her response anyway. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. That 
was just a comment. Mr. Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My 
question is for the Office of the Auditor 
General. In terms of the audit that was 
performed, you went to specifically six 
different communities. Is there any 
particular reason why you chose those 
communities? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Mr. Chairman, I’ll ask Ms. 
Salvail to respond.  
 
Chairman: Go ahead. 
 
Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Basically we started by going to Iqaluit and 
then we went to the regional office where 
the Department of Human Resources has 
offices, so Cambridge Bay, Rankin Inlet, 
and Igloolik. We also went to other 
communities where the Department of 
Education has regional offices as well. That 
is why we chose these communities. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So 
these are communities that actually have 
part of the decentralization of the 
government offices with that department in 
it? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᑦ. ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖓ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᒻᒪᖔᑦ. ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖏᖏᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᑎᓚᐅᓲᖑᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐊᒥᓂᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᓯᖃᓲᖑᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐅᔾᔨᕆᓯᒪᒻᒥᔪᖓ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᒡᒍᐃᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓕᑐᐃᓐᓇᓕᖅᐸᕋ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑭᐅᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᔅᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋᐅᓇ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᖓᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᓂᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 6-ᖑᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᓄᓇᓖᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᐸᒃᑕᓯ. ᓱᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 6 ᓄᓇᓖᑦ 
ᐅᐸᒃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ.  
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᑦᒍᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᐅᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒐ ᑭᐅᖁᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᑏ.  
 
ᓴᕗᐊ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂ ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ 
ᑐᑦᑕᕐᕕᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᕕᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐅᐸᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᖃᓗᒃᑑᑦᑎᐊᖅ, ᑲᖏᖅᓯᓂᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐳᓛᕆᐊᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖃᕐᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑐᑦᑕᕐᕕᖏᓐᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 6 ᓄᓇᓖᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖃᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᓂᕈᐊᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
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Salvail, go ahead. 
 
Ms. Salvail: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, that is correct. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
One of the things I wanted to find out in 
terms of the interviews that were done in 
the communities with the human resources 
departmental staff, in terms of the moral 
and whatnot of the workers, are people 
pretty well happy and content with what is 
happening? The reason I’m asking this is 
because, once again, I seriously wonder in 
terms of what capacity we have within the 
department to carry out more work than 
they already are.  
 
We have already looked at numbers and we 
have looked at… . The bottom line is that I 
think our GN employees are sometimes 
carrying the weight of too many people and 
obviously we want to be able to look at 
departments objectively, but we don’t want 
people to feel like it’s their problem. I just 
wondered how the staff within HR are 
handling that. Are things fine? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, there are definitely, I have to say, 
issues with people working long hours. We 
are doing some things to try to get on top 
of that. The Department of Finance has 
recently started regular printing of overtime 
reports and sending them out to the Deputy 
Ministers so that Deputy Ministers know 
exactly how much overtime is taking place 
in their departments and who is putting in 
those overtimes so that they can 
immediately address those target areas. 
 

 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 6 ᓄᓇᓖᑦ ᓯᐊᒻᒪᑕᕐᕕᐅᓯᒪᔫᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᓐᓂ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᓴᕗᐊ.  
 
ᓴᕗᐊ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᓱᓕᔪᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᑭᓯᒍᒪᖅᑲᐅᒻᒥᔪᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᓄᓇᓖᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᕕᒻᒥ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓕᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᑦᓯᐊᐸᖅᑲᐃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ? ᖁᕕᐊᑉᐹᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒥᓂᑦ? ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᖃᓗᐊᖅᑐᖓ, ᐃᓱᒪᓲᖑᔪᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑭᔅᓴᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐅᖁᒪᐃᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᑐᒍᒥᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖅᑯᒪᐃᔅᓴᓗᐊᓕᕌᖓᒥᑦ ᑲᑕᔾᔫᒥᓯᒪᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ. 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔅᓯᑎᐊᖅᐸ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐅᖁᒪᐃᔅᓴᓗᐊᖅᐸ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᒥᓂᒃ?  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᒐᓵᓗᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐋᖅᑭᒐᓱᑦᑕᕗᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ Overtime-
ᓯᐅᑎᓂᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᖅᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᖃᔅᓯᓂᑦ 
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I’m working through the performance 
management system. We’re going out and 
doing a lot of training sessions and trying 
to teach supervisors how to appropriately 
provide positive feedback, set objectives 
with individuals, and to monitor and meet 
with those individuals on a regular basis so 
that we can monitor exactly what work is 
being done and prioritize that work, and 
also tie training plans into those 
performance management so that we can 
have people getting the appropriate skills.  
 
We’re trying to actually build on what we 
have and trying to alleviate that overburden 
of people carrying out positions when other 
positions are vacant and trying to the job of 
more than one person. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for that answer; I actually got 
more than I had asked for. I was wondering 
if you would let the Office of the Auditor 
General answer the question because that 
was initially where the question was 
directed. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Could you maybe repeat the 
question, Mr. Elliott, so that she is familiar 
with it.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Yes, I’m trying to paraphrase. 
One of the things that I was asking is in 
terms of going to the different communities 
where the human resource development 
offices are and speaking with the people on 
the ground, realizing the amount of work 
and overwork that they have. It’s nice to 
see them working towards not burning out 
their employees. What was the general feel 
of people within the human resources 
department as you went around speaking to 

ᐃᑲᕐᕋᓂᑦ overtime-ᓗᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑦ, ᑭᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐊᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒪᔅᓴᖅᑕᐅᕈᓘᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒪᑯᐊ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᓐᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑐᕌᒐᔅᓴᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑯᓚᐃᑦᑐᒃᑯᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑎᑦ. ᓇᐅᑦᑎᑐᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᒻᒪᖔᑦ, ᑭᓱᓪᓗ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᖏᑦ. ᐱᓕᒻᒪᔅᓴᐅᑏᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑏᓪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᖑᒋᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᓴᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖁᒪᐃᔅᓴᓗᐊᕐᓂᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐲᕋᓱᑦᑕᕗᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒐᓱᑦᑕᕗᑦ. ᐃᓚᖏᓂᖏᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖁᒪᐃᔅᓴᓗᐊᓕᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᓪᓗ ᑭᐅᓵᕋᕕᑦ ᑭᐅᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᐋᓘᒐᒪ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᐅᓪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑦᑐᒪᖅᑲᐅᒐᓗᐊᕋᒃᑭᑦ ᐅᕗᖓᖔᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕉᒃ? ᓰᓚᐅᑉ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓂᐊᕐᒪᒍ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᒃᑲᓂᕐᓗᒍ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐳᓛᕆᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓯᐊᒻᒪᑎᕝᕕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ overtime-
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them? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Clearly, I think, in all of the audits that we 
had done, we see indications that people 
are carrying a very heavy load when you 
have a vacancy rate of some 23 percent. 
Obviously they’re doing more than their 
own jobs. I would think, though, the 
employees are probably encouraged to see 
that action is being taken to try to address 
some of the issues, so they may find some 
comfort in that.  
 
But as for the specific interviews, I’ll ask 
Mr. Campbell to respond, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Go ahead, Mr. Campbell. 
 
Mr. Campbell: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We encountered a wide range of staff in a 
number of communities and I think we sort 
of encountered a wide range of responses. 
We did encounter people who were clearly 
dedicated and committed and working 
extremely hard to further the goals of the 
government, but as Mr. Elliott included in 
his question, we did encounter people who 
were clearly overworked and carrying a 
very large burden.  
 
I just would add that, not to overstate the 
power or influence of auditors, I think the 
fact that we were in the communities and in 
their offices asking the questions, part of 
the feedback we got is they were glad that 
we were doing that and, as the Auditor 
General pointed out, which I believe that 
some can hope that things would improve. 
So I would hope that as the Department of 
Human Resources and the government’s 
management plan rolls out and gets 
implemented, people will see a concrete 

ᑐᕐᔪᐊᒻᒪᕆᐋᓘᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖁᒪᐃᔅᓴᓕᖅᑐᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐱᔭᔅᓴᐅᖃᐅᓗᐊᕐᓂᑯᒧᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐱᔪᒥᔅᓯᑎᐊᖅᑲᐅᔮᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐅᖁᒪᐃᔅᓴᓗᐊᖅᑲᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ.  
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐄ, 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑐᑕ ᐅᖁᒪᐃᔅᓴᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᑕᑯᓚᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᒫᓂ 23%-ᖏᓐᓃᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᑦᑕᕋᒥ 
ᖄᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᑕ ᐱᔭᔅᓴᓪᓗᐊᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕆᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑕᐅᔪᔅᓴᐅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᓴᖅᑲᐅᒐᑦᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᒥᔅ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ ᑭᐅᖁᓂᐊᖅᐸ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ 
ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ. 
 
ᑳᒻᐳᓪ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᕈᓘᔭᕐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᑕᑯᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓄᕈᓘᔭᖅ 
ᑭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ. 
ᐊᖏᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑎᓪᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᕌᒐᔅᓴᖏᓐᓂ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓇᓱᑦᑐᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ, ᐄ, ᑕᑯᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᓴᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᓚᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᒍ ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓂᕐᓂᐊᖏᓐᓇᒃᑯ, 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᖃᖅᑐᖓ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓄᐊᕋᑦᑕ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖁᕕᐊᓐᓂᕋᓚᐅᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᒐᒥ. ᓂᕆᐅᓐᓂᖃᓕᖅᑐᑦ 
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representation of that. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Campbell. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for that answer. On page 2 in 
the report, and I guess I was going to direct 
this question to the Auditor General of 
Canada’s office, when you speak about the 
Department of Education and their ability 
in terms of using them as an example and 
the possibility of other departments 
following, is there any particular reason 
why they are in that situation? Is it the 
planning they have and the direction of the 
department? Is it because they are 
educators? Why the Department of 
Education and not any other department? 
Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser.  
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As 
was mentioned clearly, I think one of the 
ingredients for success is the planning that 
has gone into this, the recognition that the 
department itself had to do something in 
order to fill the gaps that existed. So there 
were initiatives to put in a masters program 
to do more training. Clearly you could see 
that they had that longer term vision in the 
strategy. We mention in the report that 
many of the things that they did should 
certainly be considered by other 
departments.  
 
The Department of Education is perhaps a 
bit of a unique case in that the group of 
teachers is a fairly homogenous group with 
fairly homogenous qualifications that’s not 
in other departments where they may have 
a variety of skill sets, so that would 
obviously complicate the planning. The 
fact that they did have a strategy, they did 

ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕐᓂᐊᓕᕐᓂᖓᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒪᑯᓂᖓ ᑕᖏᓕᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐱᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᕕᓂᐅᓂᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ ᓂᕆᐅᓕᖅᑐᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᓪᓗ ᑭᐅᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ. ᒪᒃᐱᒐᖅ 2, ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂ, 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᓄᑦ. ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᕈᑦᑎᒃᑯ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐆᒃᑑᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᒪᓕᑦᑕᐅᓂᐅᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓐᓄᑦ. ᓱᒻᒪᒃᑭᐊᖏᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒪᓕᑦᑕᐅᓴᕋᐃᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᖅ 
ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑦ? ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ? ᓱᒻᒪᓪᓕᑭᐊᖅ 
ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪᐃᓛᒃ, ᐃᓚᖓᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᓂᐊᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᑐᓐᖓᕕᖃᓲᖑᒻᒪᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᒻᒥᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᔅᓴᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕖᑦ. ᒪᑯᐊ ᑭᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐊᓪᓗᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᓕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓇᓗᓇᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐊᕗᖓᐅᔨᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᔅᓴᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑐᑭᒧᐊᕈᑎᐅᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐᓄᓪᓗ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᑦᑕ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐅᓄᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓐᓄᑦ. 
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have that longer term planning, and they 
took the measures to be able to get people 
qualified, I think, is certainly very much to 
their credit. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.   
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Ningark.  
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
This government has a plan for 2010 to 
2013, and in that mandate, Mr. Chairman, 
the government wants to strengthen the 
public service. However, in the Auditor 
General’s audit on item 4, “We found that 
departments lack information on the 
qualifications and skills represented in their 
current workforce and on the number of 
qualified people they need to deliver their 
programs and services.” 
 
Mr. Chairman, I really want to know how 
you propose to address this when there is a 
lack of information in every department. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again I will refer you to our database that 
we have set up. We will gather that 
information and it will be able to tell us 
what qualifications and skills we have and 
what qualifications and skills we need so 
that we will be able to recommend training 
programs for beneficiaries and be able to 
hire beneficiaries into our positions. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you. That database 
that you are talking about, is it in the action 
plan? Is it functioning now? Is it in full 
capacity to receive information and deliver 

ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐊᔾᔨᐅᓐᖏᒐᓚᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᕕᓃᑦ ᐅᓄᖅᑑᒻᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓪᓗ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᒃᖢᑎᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᒪᓪᓗ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᖢᓂ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓇᐃᔪᑕᐅᒍᓐᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᕈᑎᓂᑦ ᐊᕗᖓᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓂᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᐅᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᒥᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕋᒥ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᑲᔫᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐅᑯᐊ 
ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 2010-ᒥᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
2013-ᒧᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᔨᒃᓴᖅᑖᕆᓯᒪᔭᖏᑕ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ, ᒐᕙᒪᐃᒡᒎᖅ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐱᔨᑦᑎᖅᑎᐅᒍᒪᔪᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕐᓂᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓᓂᑦ 1,2,3,4-ᖃᐃ 
ᐊᒡᒍᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ, 
ᑕᑯᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕖᑦ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐱᓯᒪᓐᖏᓗᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓅᖓᔪᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ, 
ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑎᑕᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕈᑏᑦ. 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᖕᒪᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᑎᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᖓ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᑲᔪᕈᓐᓇᖅᐸᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᓯᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᑯᑎᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᖓᖅ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑰᖅᑎᑕᕗᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᖢᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᐊᑦᑎᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᖅᓯᒪᖕᒪᖔᑦ, 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᖃᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ, ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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information? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The database has been set up. At this point 
in time, we are only gathering information 
on headquarters competitions. We will be 
expanding to gather information on the 
community competitions, then moving to 
the departments, and then we hope to have 
it fully functional by March 31, 2011. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. I 
have no more names on the list. Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
wasn’t actually done the last time, but it’s 
nice.  
 
The database that you’re speaking about, 
Ms. Wasson, is that the same one that the 
Department of Education created and used 
for the Nunavut community skills 
inventory or something like that? They 
won an award for it, and whatnot. It 
collects information data on some of the 
mining companies that were using it to help 
employ people there and whatnot. Is it the 
same database or is it a different database? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. I was 
just giving you a break there earlier. Ms. 
Wasson.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
It’s not the Nunavut community skills. This 
is a database, it’s not that database. Our 
database, at this point in time, is only 
gathering information in regard to 
competitions, the reasons why competitions 
are unsuccessful, and the length of time it’s 
taking for competitions. To expand then, to 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᓂᖓᖅ. 
 
ᓂᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑰᖅᑎᓯᒪᔭᑎᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᑎᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑎᒎᖅᐹᑦ? ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᕙᑦ? ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓕᖅᐸᑦ? ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᖅᐸᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ? ᑯᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᖓᖅ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑰᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ. 
ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑐᑦᑕᕐᕕᖕᓄᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᖕᓃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃᑎᒎᖅᑐᑦ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᒪᒋᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒫᔾᔨ 31, 2011-ᒥ 
ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᓂᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃᑯᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᐊᑎᖁᑎᖃᕈᓐᓃᕋᒪ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓚᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᑎᑦ, ᐃᒃᑯᐊᖃᐃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓇᐃ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᔾᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᐲᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓄᓇᓕᖕᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓄᐊᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ, ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᖃᐃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᐱ? ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᔭᕋᖕᓂᐊᕐᕖᑦ 
ᐅᔭᕋᖕᓂᐊᖅᑏᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓᑦᑕᐃᓐᓇᖃᐃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᐱᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᐊᓴᖏᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑲᐅᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
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look at gap analysis and skills, we actually 
will be reviewing the types of systems that 
we require to gather the gap analysis 
information.  
 
What the Department of Education has 
done is that they have been using it in each 
region. They have it broken down and have 
a little over 200 teachers in various regions. 
They’re using an access database just to 
gather the information on the teachers. I 
don’t know whether we will do that or not.  
 
Our human resource information system 
does allow for modules to be added and to 
gather some specific information. We don’t 
want to be duplicating what we’re doing, 
so we actually will be reviewing systems to 
decide what the best way is for us to gather 
the information on the skills, which is 
different from the competition database and 
the database on the reasons why people are 
not accepting job offers. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for that information. Actually I 
see Mr. Geikie in the back row there and 
maybe he could actually shed some light on 
that.  
 
It’s called the Nunavut Community Skills 
Information System. It’s not specifically 
for teachers; it’s for skill development in 
trying to find, in the communities, what 
skills people within the communities have. 
To me, that’s a good approach because 
what you’re doing is you have a finite 
number of people in the communities who 
would be part of that 85 percent 
employment that we’re trying to get to. 
You’ve got millions of dollars that our 
government has put into that system to 

ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑎᒎᖅᑐᑦ, ᓄᐊᑦᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓ. 
ᑭᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖕᓂᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᕕᒃᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐊᒡᒍᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 200 ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔩᑦ, 
ᓄᐊᑦᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᓂᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓯᑎᒪᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐃᓚᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᒃᓴᒫᖑᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᖏᑦᑕ 
ᐊᔾᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᔪᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ, ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᔭᕗᑦ, 
ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᓄᐊᒃᑯᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᖕᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᓱᖕᒪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕈᒪᕖᓚᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᐋᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐄ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒌᑮᓐᓇ 
ᒫᓂ ᐃᒃᓯᕚᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᑯᒐᒃᑯ, ᑖᓐᓇᖃᐃ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᓯᑎᑦᑎᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᓄᓇᓕᖕᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᑐᐊᖑᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ, ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᖃᐅᔨᓇᓱᔅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᖃᕐᒪᖔᖏᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ ᕿᓂᓕᕈᑎᑦ 
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make it operational. They have won 
awards, and I think other First Nations 
communities are using.  
 
It might be nice… you were talking about 
not duplicating. Maybe working with them 
on filling some gaps within your 
department. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Mr. Chairman, if I might, I’ll 
refer this question to the Acting Deputy 
Minister of the Department of Education. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Okay, if he wants to come up 
and answer the question, go ahead. 
 
Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
stepped out for 30 seconds and I think I 
missed the very beginning of the question 
and I do apologize. If I could just get a 
paraphrase. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s 
a good thing I’m not a consultant. I would 
be charging by the minute.  
 
What I was asking is one of the things that 
keeps coming up is the lack of knowledge 
in terms of what skills different employees 
within the GN have or people within the 
communities have. The Deputy Minister of 
Human Resources was talking about the 
database that they have created, which we 
found out more information specifically for 
people who are in competitions and people 
who have gotten jobs or haven’t gotten 
jobs. That is one aspect of it.  
 
I suggested that the database that your 
department created… and again it’s called 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ 85-ᐳᓴᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓚᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᑎᓇᓱᒐᔭᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓯᒥᓕᐊᕌᓗᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓄᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᑉᐸᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᒪᕐᕈᐃᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕋᓱᓐᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᓯ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑐᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᓯᒪᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒧᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑭᐅᔪᒪᒍᕕᑦ. 
ᐊᑏ.  
 
ᒌᑭ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 30 ᓯᐊᑲᓐᔅ 
ᐊᓂᒐᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑕᐅᓯᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᖓᐃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᓴᕆᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔨᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᕋ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓴᖅᑮᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᖏᑦᑐᓂᓗ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᖅᑎᒋᑎᒋᒻᒪᖔᖅ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᕐᒦᑦᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᖏᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑭᒃᑯ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑕ. 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᔮᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᕈᓘᔭᐅᒻᒪᑕ. 
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the Nunavut Community Skills Information 
System, which I remember we went 
through the House and passed dollars either 
in O&M or capital, I think $12 million and 
whatnot. The database itself won awards 
and there are some First Nations 
communities using it. I know it was labour 
market information. As well, it was used by 
mining companies to assess what types of 
training they would need as well.  
 
I was saying that if we ever want to be able 
to reach the 85 percent capacity of having 
our workforce representative, instead of 
duplicating, maybe that is something that 
your database and your department could 
work with human resources on assessing 
people within the communities, getting the 
database full, seeing what skill sets there, 
what education levels people have, and 
then finding positions for those people. It’s 
sort of a proactive way of doing it. Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Deputy 
Minister of Education. 
 
Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The Nunavut community skills, or NCSIS, 
I think is what it has been referred to, the 
inventory system; I know work continues 
on that. I’m not 100 percent sure. I would 
have to go back and check if it actually 
takes a look at the reasons why 
competitions may not have been 
successful. It’s basically a skills inventory 
so that potential employers can look to see 
who is out there and what skills they have, 
and also for those, I believe, seeking 
employment can look in to see what skill 
sets they may need to fulfill certain 
positions or occupations within industry 
and within the government.  
 
I hope that helps, but if it can be beneficial 
to any department within the government, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑕᕝᕙᓂᓕ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒦᖏᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖏᑦ 
ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᑭᑐᔪᖅᑐᕈᑎᖓᑦ 
$12,000,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᓐᓇ 85-ᐳᓴᓐ ᑎᑭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒍᒪᓐᓂᕈᑦᑎᒍ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᕗᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᖃᐃ ᐊᔪᕆᒻᒪᖔᔅᓯ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᖏᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᓗᓯᐅᒃ 
ᐊᔾᔨᖓᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᔅᓯ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᖏᓪᓗᓯ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖃᑎᒋᒻᒪᖔᑕ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᖃᐃ 
ᐊᑐᕆᐊᕈᑎᒍ ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ.  
 
ᒌᑭ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑲᔪᓰᓐᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓇᓗᕈᔪᒃᑲᒪ ᑭᓱ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᓱᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᖏᒻᒪᖔᑕ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᒍᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᕿᓂᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᖓᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᕈᑎᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᔾᔪᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐱᓇᓱᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑕᕝᕙᓂᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᔪᓂᑦ.  
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absolutely.  
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The final question I have is to see if I can 
get a commitment from Mr. Geikie and Ms. 
Wasson to work together on seeing how 
those two databases connect in the spirit of 
partnership and also in not duplicating 
things. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
actually have an appointment on Thursday 
afternoon to review the database, so we 
will be moving forward. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you. Along the same 
lines that we have been asking about 
employment and so on, before the NWT 
was created, I don’t know if it’s continued 
on from that, there used to be what we 
called career development in different 
regions. They used to go from community 
to community.  
 
One way of reaching young potentials is to 
talk about their dreams and finding out 
what’s available in the system. I am not 
sure if that still goes on, but do you get 
involved in a career development initiative, 
Madam Deputy Minister? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. I 
think you were referring to before Nunavut. 
You said before the NWT, but I know you 
meant Nunavut. Ms. Wasson. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᐹᓕᖅᑐᔅᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᐹᓪᓕᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑲᑦ. ᐃᑲᔪᖅᐹᓕᕐᓂᐊᑐᐊᖅᑲᑦ 
ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒍᓐᓇᑎᐊᖅᑐᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᓯᒃᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕᖃᐃ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓱᖓᕐᓗᒍ. ᐊᖏᕈᓐᓇᖅᑯᖃᐃ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒌᑭ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ-ᑯᖏᓛᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᒍᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᓄᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᒃᑐᐊᓂᖃᕐᒪᖔᑎᒃ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓕᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑎᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓᔅᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᓐᖏᖔᕐᓗᑎᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᕿᑎᖅᑰᕐᒥ ᐅᓐᓄᓴᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔪᒫᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑲᔪᓯᑎᒋᐊᓛᖅᑕᕗᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᒐᑦᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᐅᑉ ᒥᔅᓵᓄᑦ 
ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖓᓄᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᑲᔪᖏᖅᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓅᓱᑦᑐᐃᑦ ᐅᕕᒃᑲᐅᔪᓂᓛᒃ ᐃᒫᒃ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᒥᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓅᓯᕐᒥᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᔪᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᑭᓱᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᒐᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᓱᓕ 
ᑲᔪᓯᕙᒻᒪᖔᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᕙᑉᐱᓯ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᐅᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑕᑯᔅᓴᐅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
am going to refer that question to the 
Acting Deputy Minister of the Department 
of Education. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Go ahead. 
 
Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Our department is involved in career 
development and we have career 
development officers across our territory. 
We continue to provide training with our 
career development officers so that they 
can provide the support that the clients in 
their communities may require in their own 
training and upgrades and in applying for 
positions, and what the requirements are. I 
am not sure if that answers the question.  
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you. My second 
question, Mr. Chairman, is: do you put the 
kind of stuff that we have been debating 
about into the database? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Can we clarify whether or not you are 
talking about the HR database, or whether 
you’re referring to NCSIS database for the 
Department of Education? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would like to say human resources for 
future reference. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. Ms. 
Wasson. 

 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᕈᓚᐅᖅᑎᓐᓇᒍ 
ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᖑᓚᐅᖅᑎᓐᓇᒎᓚᕋᑖᕋᕕᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᓚᐅᖅᑎᓐᓇᒎᓚᒐᓱᑉᐸᓪᓚᐃᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑭᐅᑎᓐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ ᑐᖏᓕᕋᔭᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᑭᖑᕐᕕᖅᓯᒪᔪᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᑏ.  
 
ᒌᑭ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᓂᖃᖅᐸᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᒍᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᓗ ᑲᒪᔨᖃᖅᑐᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᔨᖃᖅᐸᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᒍᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᖓᑕ ᓄᓇᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐱᒍᒪᔭᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᑭᓐᖒᒪᔭᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᐸᓪᓕᐊᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕋᓱᓐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᒥᓪᓗ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᓇᓗᔪᖓ ᑭᐅᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᒃᑯ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐ: ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᕙᑉᐸᑦ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᓂᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᓯᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᑦ?  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᖅᑲ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓄᐊᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑮᑦ?  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There are plans to put the information into 
the database. That has not happened as of 
yet. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. I don’t have any 
more names here, so we will go on to 
paragraphs 1 to 14. Any questions? Mr. 
Rumbolt. 
 
Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My question is for the Auditor Generals’ 
staff.  
 
On paragraph 1 of your report, it notes that 
from 2000 to 2009, the public service grew 
from 2,701 positions to 3,837 positions. 
According to the GN’s March 2010 Inuit 
Employment Plan quarterly report, the total 
number of PYs in the government is now 
3,859. What explanation did you receive 
from the GN as to why positions are 
continually being added to the bureaucracy 
in spite of the ongoing problems with high 
vacancy rates? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We didn’t actually probe as to why the 
growth had occurred; this is simply more 
factual information. The government might 
be able to respond, I would think. We think 
that we can think of certain projects, for 
example, the housing trust, so there may 
have been additional activities like that, but 
there may be other explanations the 
government can give. We didn’t probe that 
particularly. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Rumbolt. 
 
Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
guess I will direct my question towards the 

 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔪᒪᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐸᕐᓇᐃᓯᒪᔪᖑᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓕᔪᒫᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒋᑦ 
ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᒫᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖁᑎᖃᕈᓐᓃᕋᒪ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᒪᒃᐱᒐᖅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 1-ᒥᑦ 14-ᒧᑦ. ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᐃᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᕋᒻᐴᑦ.  
 
 
ᕋᒻᐴᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐ. 
 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ 2000-ᒥᒃ 2009-ᒧᑦ, 2,701-ᖑᔪᑦ 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᒋᐊᓚᐅᖅᐳᑦ 3,837-ᓄᑦ ᑎᑭᑦᑐᑎᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑕᐅᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᒥᓱᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 3,859-ᓂᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐱᓯ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓚᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᒻᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓐᓄᔅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᓄᑦ?  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᕗᐃᓴ.  
 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᓱᒻᒪᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᕆᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖅᑲᐃ 
ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓪᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᓪᓗᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᑲᓐᓂᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᑕᖃᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᔅᓱᒧᖓ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᒥᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
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human resources staff, the Deputy 
Ministers. Can they explain why the 
numbers of PYs continue to increase? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The GN workforce has grown as a whole 
since 1999. Reported statistics from June 
1999 indicated that there were 1,210 
positions in the GN. The latest statistics as 
of March 31, 2010 indicate that the 
workforce compliment is now 3,859 
positions, as indicated. This represents an 
increase of 2,649 positions. The growth of 
the public service is a natural evolution of 
the bureaucracy to respond to the needs of 
Nunavutmiut.  
 
In terms of program and service delivery, 
in 1999, the GN was a very young 
organization, and many departments have 
since reorganized and restructured to adapt 
to changing and expanding mandates. 
Annual budgets have also increased to 
support both the number of positions 
required and the operational and capital 
requirements of departments.  
 
Management positions in the GN have 
increased since 1999. The increase has 
been significant in the middle management 
category, which has seen the growth of 325 
positions since 1999, from 110 to 430. This 
is indeed a substantial increase. However, 
as departments grow, positions increase 
and mandates expand to include new 
programs and services. Positions, such as 
supervisors and program managers, are 
necessary as there needs to be 
accountability for people and resources. 
The number of executive positions has 
increased from 25 to 36, while senior 
management positions have increased from 

 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᕋᒻᐴᑦ.  
 
ᕋᒻᐴᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓕᕐᓗᒍ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒍᓐᓇᖅᑲ ᓱᒻᒪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᑦ 
ᐊᒥᓲᓂᖏᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᕋᒻᐴᑦ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᕈᖅᐹᓪᓕᓯᒪᔪᑦ 1990-ᒥᓂᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 1999-ᒥ 1,210-
ᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᑦ. ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᕐᓕ ᒫᑦᓯ 
31, 2010-ᒥ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒥᔪᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᐃᑦ 3,859-ᖑᒻᒪᑕ. ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᐃᔪᑦ 2,649-ᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓂᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑭᐅᓇᓱᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᑦᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
1999-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᒋᐊᓕᕋᑖᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒧᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᕙᓪᓕᐊᒋᐊᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᖏᓪᓗ 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑕᒫᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐊᒥᓱᕈᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑭᑐᔪᖅᑐᕈᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᕆᐊᖅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒥᒻᒪᑕ. 
 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᕆᐊᖅᓯᒪᓗᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᕿᑎᖓᓃᕈᔪᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 325-ᖑᔪᓂᑦ ᓴᖅᑮᓯᒪᔪᑦ 1999-
ᒥᓂᑦ, 110-ᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ 430-ᖑᓕᖅᑐᑦ. ᐄ, 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᕆᐊᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᕆᑦᑐᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᒥᓱᕈᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᒻᒥᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᕕᖃᕆᐊᕐᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᓄᑖᖑᔪᓄᑦ 
ᐱᕈᕈᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓᓕ 
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75 to 161.  
 
The new positions are actually approved by 
the Financial Management Board as part of 
the GN main estimate process or by special 
request during the fiscal year. The creation 
of these new positions is due to the 
development of new programs, services, 
and government initiatives. Thank you, Mr. 
Speaker.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. I 
guess the question is: we realize that there 
have been more jobs created, but why are 
there jobs added when one out of five is 
vacant? I think that is kind of what the 
question was. Thank you. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 
Again, when you have positions that are 
vacant, instead of moving those positions 
into positions that are created, there has 
been an emphasis on the executive 
positions, management positions, and 
middle management positions. When we 
expand the programs and services, we do 
need people to provide leadership and to 
supervise those particular positions. When 
we have new programs, we’re not going to 
eliminate the programs that are in other 
departments or for other services to create 
the new positions. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. 
Anybody else? Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
 
Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. My question is for Ms. Wasson.  
 
Under the introduction on page 6, item 5, 
Human resource management structure, in 
your opinion, do you feel that the collective 
agreements with the Nunavut Employees 
Union and the Nunavut Teachers 
Association play an effective role in 

ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓵᑕᔅᓴᐅᔪᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᕐᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᓐᓃᖔᖅᑐᑦ 25-ᒥᒃ 36-ᒨᖓᓕᖅᑐᑦ, 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᔪᓪᓕ 75-ᒥᒃ 161-ᒨᖓᓪᓗᑎᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᑖᖑᔪᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᔅᓯᕋᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᓄᑖᖑᔪᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐅᖃᖅᑏ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᓄᑯᐊ ᐃᓚᓕᐅᑎᓯᒪᕙᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᖑᒐᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐅᖃᖅᑏ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᓐᓄᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᐅᔪᓂᑦ, ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ, ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᕿᑎᖓᓃᑦᑐᑦ. 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᓪᓕᒋᐊᖅᑎᒐᐃᒐᑦᑎᒍ 
ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᖓᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᓄᑖᖑᔪᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᔪᑦ ᓅᑦᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐲᖅᑎᓂᐊᓐᖏᒃᑯᑎᒍ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓃᑦᑐᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᓵᖅᑮᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᓄᑖᖑᔪᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᓂᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᓱᓕᒃᑲᓐᓃᖅ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ.  
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ensuring that members that pay union dues 
are or do receive adequate representation 
regarding their employment concerns or 
relations? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If 
I understand your question, you’re asking if 
I feel that they do receive effective 
representation. Whenever we have an 
individual who the union member called in 
to a meeting with their supervisor for any 
disciplinary actions or to question them on 
anything in regard to their employment 
status, they are always offered 
representation through the union office. 
 
I know, as my previous position of being 
the director of employee relations, we very 
much encourage people when they didn’t 
come with union representation and we 
encourage our supervisors, managers, and 
the employee relations staff to ensure 
people know they’re entitled to 
representation. We have actually made the 
call to the union at times ourselves and 
offered to arrange that representation. In 
the communities, if we have to do it over 
the telephone and there is no one available, 
we certainly always offer to do that. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Aupaluktuq. 
 
Mr. Aupaluktuq: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Just to follow up with that as a 
formality for the record, I just want to ask 
if a person feels that they have gone 
through the process of ensuring that there is 
representation in the collective agreement, 
if there is any type of miscommunication, 
does the GN have any mechanisms in place 
where people feel there is 

ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔪᒪᔭᕋ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐᒧᑦ. 
 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖓᓂ 6 ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐ… ᐃᓛᒃ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᒍᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᑦ, 
ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᖁᖅᑲᐃ? ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑭᓕᐅᓴᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᔭᖓᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒍᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓄᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᑭᓯᑦᑎᐊᕈᒃᑯ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒋᒻᒪᖔᒃᑭᑦ, ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᑎᑦ. ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᖑᔪᒥᒃ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᔭᐅᔪᖃᕆᐊᖃᑉᐸᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑎᖃᐃᓐᓇᓲᖑᔪᑦ ᑕᕝᕘᓇ ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᒻᒦᖔᖅᑐᒥᑦ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᐅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᑎᓕᐅᕆᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑎᖃᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᖏᑦ ᑲᒪᔨᒋᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ. 
ᐅᖄᓚᕙᑦᑐᑕᓗ ᐅᕙᒍᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓯᓇᓱᑦᑐᑕ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ 
ᐅᖄᓚᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᖃᕈᑦᑕ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐊᕙᒃᑯᑎᒋᓲᖑᒻᒥᔪᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ.  
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miscommunication or, for a lack of a better 
word, lack of representation? Is there an 
appeal process that is in place for people 
under the collective agreement? Thank you.
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Aupaluktuq. 
Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
For union members, there is a grievance 
process that individuals are able to grieve 
through the union. We encourage people to 
work it out if there is a conflict situation 
rather than just redirect them to the 
grievance process and education process. 
Did you talk to a union representative? 
Were you clear with communication? 
Rather than just saying, “If you’re not 
happy with the services, then you should 
launch a grievance,” we very much try to 
redirect through communication and reduce 
the workplace conflict and/or 
miscommunication between employees and 
the union. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On 
page 7 of the report in paragraph 8, it talks 
about the examination of ten different 
government departments. In terms of the 
Office of the Auditor General, why were 
these ten departments chosen? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson, we will go back to you over there 
again. Mr. Elliott, if you can rephrase that. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
made a mistake. I said ten departments; it 
was only five departments that were 
actually looked at. My question is directed 
to the Office of the Auditor General. Thank 
you. 
 

ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᑦᑎᐊᓂᐊᕐᖓᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᕝᕘᓇ 
ᐊᖅᑯᑎᖃᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕈᓂ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᒍᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓂᕐᓘᑎᓐᓂᖅᑲᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ 
ᑎᓕᐅᕆᒃᑲᓂᖅᐸᑉᐸᑦ, ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓯᓯᒪᕙᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ? ᑐᑭᓯᓂᕐᓘᑦᑐᖃᖅᐸᑦ 
ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᐅᑎᐊᕐᓂᖏᑉᐸᑕ 
ᐊᔪᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᐅᔪᒥᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᖅᑲ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᒍᑕᐅᔪᒥᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᔪᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᕐᕕᖃᕐᒥᔪᑦ. 
ᑎᓕᐅᕆᒃᑲᓂᖅᐸᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᑕᖃᖅᐸᑦ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕕᒻᒦᖔᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑎᐅᔪᒥᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᑭᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓇᒋᑦ 
ᖁᕕᐊᒋᓐᖏᒃᑯᕕᑦ. ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᓕᐅᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᔨᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᖑᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᒃᐱᒐᕐᒥᑦ 7-ᒥᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒥᑦ 8-ᒦᑦᑐᒥ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᒪᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᖁᓕᐅᔪᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᑦ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒍᒪᔪᖓᓕ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᖓ 
ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᓄᑯᐊ ᖁᓕᐅᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓂᕈᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑲᑦ?  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ ᓇᐃᓪᓕᒋᐊᖅ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᓯᑎᒋᐊᓚᐅᕐᒥᐅᒃ.  
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We wanted to select departments that were 
varied in size, were varied as well in the 
delegated authorities that had been given to 
them. Some as well have regional 
structures. It was to try to get a diversity of 
the various departments that could be 
somewhat representative of the government 
as a whole. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On 
page 9 of the report in paragraph 15 under 
the Observations and Recommendations, 
the last sentence of that paragraph states, 
“The Department of Human Resources is 
not responsible for overall government-
wide human resource planning.” I just 
wanted to ask the Office of the Auditor 
General in terms of that statement. I wanted 
to see if I understood what it was saying.  
 
If the human resource department is not 
responsible for the overall planning, what 
department is? Is it something that EIA 
would take on or is it every government 
department to handle their own human 
resource planning? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 
fact, each department is responsible for 
their own human resource planning. To the 
best of our knowledge, there is no one 
department that is responsible for planning 
overall for the Government of Nunavut. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 

 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓂᕋᑖᕋᒪ ᖁᓕᐅᓂᕋᐃᕋᑖᕋᒪ 
ᑕᓪᓕᒪᐃᓐᓇᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᖓᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ.  
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓂᕈᐊᕈᒪᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᖏᓕᕇᓂᑦ ᒥᑭᓕᕇᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓴᓐᖏᓂᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓪᖏᑦᑐᓕᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒍᒪᓚᕿᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᐃᒫᒃ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑕᖏᕐᓗᒍ ᒐᕙᒪᑦ 
ᑕᑯᓐᓈᓐᖑᐊᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᒃᐱᒐᕐᒥ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒥ 15-ᒦᑦᑐᖅ. ᐅᔾᔨᓱᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᔪᓪᓗ. ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖓᓐᓂᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓕᒫᓅᖓᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᓂᕐᒧᑦ. ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᑕᒃᑲ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᒃᑯ. 
 
 
 
 
ᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᖃᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑭᓱᓕᒫᓂᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒨᖓᔪᑦ. 
ᑭᒃᑰᕙᓪᓕ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᖃᑎᒌᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
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Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So 
then my next question to the Auditor 
General would be: in light of Article 23, 
where we will have a representative 
government, is this something that we 
possibly need to have in place as a 
government to make sure and monitor that? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser.  
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 
fact, there is a responsibility of each 
department to develop the plans and to do 
the monitoring. I think the Department of 
Human Resources as well does some 
overall assessment of that, but it is clearly 
up to each department to fulfill that 
responsibility, to put in place the actions 
that are needed to try to achieve that 
objective. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
This question is directed towards the 
Government of Nunavut witnesses.  
 
In a recent court filing related to NTI’s 
lawsuit against the federal government, the 
GN stated that the Government of Canada, 
and this is a direct quote from the GN, “has 
refused to provide to the Government of 
Nunavut the necessary funding… to allow 
it to develop and implement the necessary 
training and other measures required to 
increase Inuit participation in government 
employment to a representative level. To 
the extent that the Government of Nunavut 
has been unable to comply with all of its 
obligations in respect of Article 23, that is a 
result of Canada’s failure to comply with 

ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐊᑐᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑲᒪᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ 
ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐱᖃᑖ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᓕᕐᒥᔭᕋ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒧᑦ: 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓ 23 ᓄᓇᑖᕈᑎᓂ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ, ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓕᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᐱᑎᒎᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᓗᑕ 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᐊᓕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᑕᓕᒃ: ᐊᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᒃᓴᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓴᓇᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᓅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᔾᔪᑎᓕᒡᓗ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖕᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ. 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐊᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖁᑎᖏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓕᓯᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᒍᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ, 
ᑐᕌᒐᒃᓴᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᒡᓗ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᖅ. 
 
 
ᒫᓐᓇᕋᑖᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᑐᐃᕕᒃᑰᖅᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖕᒪᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᒃ, ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕆᓪᓗᑎᒡᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᑲᓇᑕᐅᑉ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑐᓂᓯᔪᒪᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓃᓐᖓᖅᑐᑦ ᑐᓂᓯᔪᒪᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 



68  

its funding obligations.”  
 
My question is: is the government arguing 
that its capacity problems are caused 
exclusively by the lack of federal funding? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m afraid that I cannot comment on the 
litigation that is ongoing. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Does that mean that you won’t be 
providing us with a reply or we will get one 
tomorrow morning? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, I will provide you with a reply 
tomorrow morning. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 
regard to comments made on page 5 in 
paragraph 3 where it does talk about 
Article 23 in the Nunavut Land Claims 
Agreement, when we’re talking about 
beneficiaries and whatnot, it always brings 
to my mind the role of NTI and what its 
function is in the territory.  
 
I’ll start with the Office of the Auditor 
General. Was NTI involved in and 
questioned for this human resource audit? 

ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᓴᓇᔾᔪᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᔾᔪᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᒡᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᓄᖅᓯᕚᓪᓕᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᖓᓐᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑐᕌᒐᒃᓴᖅ 
ᑐᑭᓐᓇᓱᐊᖁᓪᓗᒍ. ᑎᑭᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒧᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᓯᔪᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᒥᓐᓂᒃ ᓄᓇᑖᕈᑎᓂ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓ 23-ᒥ, 
ᑲᓇᑕᐅᑉ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᓐᖏᓐᓂᕐᒨᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓅᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᕙ? 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᕋ ᐅᓇ, ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐃᕙᐅᑎᖃᖅᐹᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᑲᓇᑕᐅᑉ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᖃᑦᑕᒨᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᓐᖏᓐᓇᒃᑯ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑲᔪᓯᖕᒪᑦ ᓱᓕ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᐅᖕᒪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᓚᐅᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᑭᐅᔾᔭᓐᖏᓚᑏᑦ, ᐅᓪᓛᒃᑯᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑭᐅᓛᖅᐱᑦ? 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᖃᐅᒃᐸᑦ 
ᑭᐅᒡᒍᓯᒃᓴᖅ ᑕᓂᓛᖅᑕᕋ ᐃᓕᓐᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᓚᐅᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᖅᑯᓪᓕᐅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 
5-ᒥ, ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐᓂ ᓄᓇᑖᕈᑎᓂ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ, 
ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐᓂ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᒋᕗᓯ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
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Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser.  
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The audit team did meet with NTI to 
discuss the issues related to human 
resource capacity in the government, yes.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Would you be able to share what their 
comments and concerns were in terms of 
the possibility of 85 percent employment as 
of 2020 or the current record as of 2010? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser.  
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s 
important for us when we conduct 
interviews that we keep that information 
confidential and anything that we think is 
relevant will be in our audit report. So I did 
not feel at liberty to discuss the 
conversations that we would have had with 
NTI and it would be up to them to make 
their views known on this issue. Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. I just 
want to go back to what Mr. Elliott was 
asking of the government earlier on. It’s 
just to be clear that Mr. Elliott was not 
asking to disclose legal strategy or 
anything, he was just asking about meaning 
of the statement that is on public record. 
Thank you. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, I will provide an answer to that 
question in the morning. Thank you, Mr. 

ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᖕᒪᔾᔪᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᖕᒪᔾᔪᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᖓᓂ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᐳᖓ, ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓚᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᕚᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑑᑎᕕᓂᖏᑦ? 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᖓᓃᓐᖔᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑭᒃᓴᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐄ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᒻᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ? 
ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᓂᓪᓕᕐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ 8-ᐳᓴᖏᑦ? ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 85-
ᐳᓴᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 2020-ᐅᓕᖅᐸᑦ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᓪᓗ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᓕᕌᖓᑦᑎᒍᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᓐᖑᓇᖅᑑᑎᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓃᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑑᑎᖃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᓐᖑᓇᖅᑑᑎᑕᐅᖕᒪᑦ. 
ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓲᑎᒋᔭᖏᓪᓗ ᑐᓴᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᖏᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑑᖕᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓲᑎᖏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 
ᐅᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᕐᔪᑯᓗᒡᓗᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓲᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑎᒍᑦ 



70  

Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Mr. Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
was going to take a break for a minute and 
pass it over to my colleague. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Ugyuk. 
 
Ms. Ugyuk (interpretation): Thank you. 
(interpretation ends) Paragraph 11 of the 
Auditor General’s report notes that the GN 
must compete for skilled beneficiaries. 
How does the GN compare with other 
employers with respect to compensation 
and benefits? What specific steps is the GN 
taking to address the need to compete for 
the skilled beneficiaries? To Ms. Wasson. 
Sorry. (interpretation) Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Actually the GN does do a review of salary 
and benefits. When we go into bargaining, 
we do look at the benefits and the salaries 
from our key recruitment areas, such as the 
Northwest Territories, one of the places 
that we recruit from.  
 
We also have many educational 
opportunities for advancement within that 
we provide to our beneficiaries. We also 
attend trade shows and career fairs to 
attract skilled beneficiaries throughout the 
territory so that we can find out who is out 
there and who might be interested in 
coming to work.  
 
I am not sure if I am addressing your 
question or not. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Ms. 
Ugyuk. 

ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᖅᑐᐃᕕᒃᑯᑎᒍᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑕᑯᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑐᓂᓂᐊᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᑭᒡᒍᓯᒃᑲ ᐅᓪᓛᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒧᖓ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᕿᑲᑲᐃᓐᓈᕐᔪᒍᒪᓪᓗᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᒡᔪᖅ.  
 
ᐅᒡᔪᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ) ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ 11-ᖓᓂᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᒡᒎᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒪᓕᒋᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᖃᓄᕐᓕ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑎᒋᕙᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ, ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐃᑲᔫᓯᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ? ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒡᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᐸᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᓇᓂᒍᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑐᖓ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᕆᔭᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔫᓯᐊᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᒡᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ, ᐃᑲᔪᕈᓯᐊᓪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ, ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᓪᓗ ᐱᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ.  
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᒃᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓄᑦ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᔪᒪᓇᓱᒍᓐᓇᕈᑎᒃ 
ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓅᖑᓪᓗᒍ. 
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Ms. Ugyuk: My question was: how does 
the GN compare with other employers with 
respect to compensation and benefits? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, I will elaborate then. As I did indicate 
to you, we do salary reviews and benefits 
reviews with other jurisdictions. We 
particularly do them with Newfoundland, 
Ontario, and the Northwest Territories 
because those are the areas that we find are 
the most places that we actually recruit 
from.  
 
As far as the Northwest Territories is 
concerned, in some key positions, we’re a 
bit below and in others, we’re a bit above. 
We do find, with our salaries and benefits 
from the provinces outside of Alberta, we 
are basically above in our key positions as 
far as providing salaries are concerned.  
 
With benefits, we don’t do a total benefits 
review. We have set up another database 
and we actually have started collecting all 
of the benefits information from other 
jurisdictions. We have completed that 
database for health care workers, but we 
are now working on teachers and we’re 
moving to other key positions.  
 
We have also set up a committee to look at 
developing a total compensation package 
so that we will know not just what our 
salaries are but what our northern 
allowance and what our other benefits offer 
on top. We have found that there are even 
such things as pension plans that are totally 
employee paid in some jurisdictions, where 
we offer a very good pension plan here in 
this government. 
 
We do have some information and we’re 

 
 
 
 
ᑭᐅᑦᑎᐊᓕᕐᓂᕋᓗᐊᕐᒫᖅᐱᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᒃᖢᖓ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅ 
ᐅᒡᔪᖅ. 
 
ᐅᒡᔪᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᕗᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᓄᓇᖅᑲᑎᒋᓐᖏᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᖅᐸᒃᑭᕚᑦ 
ᖃᔅᓯᑖᖅᐸᖕᒪᖔᑕ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓂᐊᖅᐸᕋ. ᐄ, ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖅᑲᐅᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᐃᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᓱᐃᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ 
ᐋᓐᑎᐅᕆᐅᒦᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒥᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕐᕕᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒥᐅᓪᓕ ᐃᓚᖏᑎᒍᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᑐᖓᐅᔾᔨᔪᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᔪᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᓐᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ. ᐳᕌᕕᓐᓯᖑᔪᑦ ᐋᓪᐴᑕᒥᐅᑦ 
ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᖁᕝᕙᓯᖕᓂᖅᓴᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᐃᑲᔫᓯᐊᕈᑏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᓐᓇᑦᑎᒍᑦ. ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓚᐅᕐᒥᒐᑦᑕ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᐅᒻᒥᔪᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ. ᓄᐊᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᖃᕐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ 
ᒫᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᓅᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓂᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᖃᔅᓯᑖᓚᓕᐅᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
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working on gathering further information 
so that have a very good idea of exactly 
how we do compare with other 
jurisdictions for a total package. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Mr. Okalik. 
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. I would like to ask a 
question to the Deputy Minister of Human 
Resources.  
 
Every year, they study the numbers and 
outline which department has gained and 
which has lost Inuit employees. It has 
become obvious for quite some time that 
we’ve had success with some programs, 
such as those we established for Inuit 
lawyers, doctors, accountants, and others.  
 
It seems like you don’t have any plans to 
offer Inuit programs to enter the workforce, 
but there are other departments that are 
ready and available to train Inuit, especially 
the Akitsiraq Law School Program. We can 
start off with that approach in order to train 
Inuit to enter the public service so that we 
can obtain the numbers of Inuit 
representative of the population in the 
workforce down the road. This would be a 
good start.  
 
I would like to know what plans they have 
to increase the number of Inuit employees. 
An increase in Inuit employees can really 
assist our economy and provide 
opportunities for Inuit within Nunavut. My 
question is: what are your plans to increase 
Inuit employees in the public service? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ. ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒡᓕ ᐃᑲᔫᓯᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓄᖅᑲᕈᒪᓯᐊᒃᓴᖅᑖᕆᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ 
ᓄᐊᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ, ᓄᐊᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᒍᓪᓗ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᓐᓂᖃᖅᑎᒋᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᓄᓇᖅᑲᑎᒋᓐᖏᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᕆᔭᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᒐᕙᒪᒋᔭᑦᑕ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓕᕐᒥᔭᕋ. 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓛᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᓚᒃᑲᖅᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᖃᑦᑎᐊᓕᖅᑐᑎᒃᑭᐊᖅ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᕙᒻᒪᑕ 
ᓇᓕᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐅᓄᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓇᓕᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᖑᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅᓴᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᕈᓐᓃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᑯᓂᑲᓪᓚᕈᓗᒃ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕇᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐱᖁᔭᓕᕆᔩᑦ, ᓘᑦᑖᑦ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔩᑦ.  
ᓇᓗᓇᕈᓐᓃᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᖃᓄᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓕ 
ᐱᓇᓱᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐸᕐᓇᑕᐅᓯᒪᓗᐊᖅᑑᔮᖅᐸᖏᒻᒪᑦ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓇᑕᐅᕙᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᑕ ᐃᓚᖏᒡᒎᖅ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᒃ, 
ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑭᑦᓱᕋᓕᕆᕙᑦᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒫ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᒋᐊᕐᓂᕈᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᑯᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᖑᓂᖓᒍᑦ 
ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ ᓵᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓗᑕ ᐃᓄᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᒡᒐᕐᓂᕆᓗᐊᖅᑕᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐸᕐᓇᑦᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᓯᕗᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐃᑲᔫᑎᖃᕕᔾᔪᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᖓᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓄᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. 
 
ᖃᓄᕐᓕ ᐸᕐᓇᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐱᕆᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᔭᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
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Again, it is going to be actually gathering 
the information that the Auditor General 
has indicated in her plan, and we have 
followed up with our action plan, that we 
do need to know exactly what we need and 
what we have, and then we will be able to 
do the gap analysis, recommend what 
training programs need to occur throughout 
the territory, and be able to provide that 
training through partnerships with Nunavut 
Arctic College, and also if we’re laddering 
in providing training programs within the 
Department of Human Resources to other 
government departments. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Okalik. 
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. Perhaps I will elaborate a 
little bit further since I am a lawyer. I 
didn’t just become a lawyer by graduating 
from high school. You need to go through 
university for three years and it’s a specific 
course that is quite challenging. We don’t 
just need more lawyers; we also need more 
accountants. They cannot complete all of 
the training in a short training program; 
they need a complete education and they 
have to go through formal university 
courses.  
 
We should be assisting people to complete 
their education because you cannot just put 
anybody into these positions. You need 
someone who is well educated. You can’t 
obtain a certificate with a simple training 
program. In order to have a good job, you 
need to complete professional training. 
How can the Department of Human 
Resources provide more support to these 
individuals? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓱᓖᓛᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᓄᐊᑦᑎᓗᑕ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᒋᔭᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᕈᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ 
ᑭᓱᓂᒃ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦᑕ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓕᕐᓗᑎᒍ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᑲᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑕ ᑕᐱᕆᓗᑎᒍ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒥ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᖅᓴᕐᕕᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕖᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᓐᓃᑦᑐᓂᑦ.  ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᒫᖃᐃ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᕈᒪ: ᐱᖁᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᒍᒪ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᑯᓗᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᔭᕇᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᕐᖓᑦ. ᑕᐃᒫ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓪᓚᕆᒋᐊᖃᕐᖓᑕ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓂᒃ ᐱᖓᓱᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒫ ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓇᓱᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑕᕝᕙᑑᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐱᖁᔭᓕᕆᔩᑦ 
ᐱᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᓕᕗᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᑯᓗᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᔭᕇᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ, 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓪᓚᕆᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᖓᑕ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᐅᑎᑖᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓂᔅᓴᒥᓄᑦ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒫ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᒥᓇᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᖓᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᑐᐃᓐᓇᕋᔅᓴᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑭᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓄᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ. 
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Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We do have programs, we do have 
scholarships, and we do have our FANS 
program through the Department of 
Education. We are encouraging individuals 
and we will continue to encourage them to 
complete their formal education, which is 
definitely required to train IT technicians, 
to train lawyers, and to train accountants. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Okalik. 
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. It’s very good to hear that 
being said, but it has been 10 years since 
Nunavut was established and we’re still not 
achieving our goals. We need to find ways 
to increase Inuit representation in the 
workforce.  
 
Yes, we have tried doing our own 
educational programs, such as the Akitsiraq 
Law School Program, which produced a 
number of lawyers and was a success. We 
also have the Nursing Program in place. 
It’s very good to have students complete 
these programs.  
 
If we’re going to be assisting those students 
outside of Nunavut, we’re not going to 
reach our goals, as we have been told that 
once we start training in Nunavut and 
provide more support, we could see more 
improvements. What is the human 
resources department doing in these cases? 
Are they going to improve that situation? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
One objective of the Department of Human 
Resources is to provide support, service, 

ᑕᐃᒫ ᖃᓄᒃᑲᓂᕐᓕ ᐃᑲᔪᕋᓱᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᓗᐊᖅᑲᖃᐃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑖᖅᑎᑦᑎᕙᖕᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖏᑦ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑎᓕᐅᕆᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᑭᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᕐᒥᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᓯᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᔭᒥᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᓯᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐅᐊᔭᓕᕆᓐᖑᕈᒪᒍᑎᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᓐᖑᕈᒪᒍᑎᒡᓘᓐᓃᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᔅᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ.  
 
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑐᓴᕐᓂᖅᑐᖅ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦ 
ᖁᓖᑦ ᐊᓂᒍᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓱᓕ 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᓐᖏᓗᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ. ᖃᓄᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅ 
ᕿᓂᕋᓱᒋᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐅᓄᖅᓯᒃᑲᓂᖅᑎᒐᓱᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒍ.  
 
ᐆᑦᑐᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᓪᓗᑕ. 
ᐊᑭᑦᓯᕋᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖁᕕᐊᓇᕕᔾᔪᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕇᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐋᓐᓂᐊᓯᐅᖅᑎᑯᓗᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᕙᒻᒥᔪᒍᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒫ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᑎᑦᑎᐊᕋᓱᑦᑐᒋᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒫ ᐃᑲᔪᑐᐃᓐᓇᕋᓱᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑎᓗᑕ 
ᓯᓚᑎᑦᑎᓅᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᑦᑕᐅᑎᒋᔾᔮᓐᖏᓇᑦᑕ 
ᒫᓐᓇᒃᑯᑦ. ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ ᑕᒫᓂᒎᖅ ᑕᕝᕙ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒥ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᒋᐊᕈᑦᑕ, 
ᐃᑲᔪᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑦᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕋᓗᐊᕐᖓᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ 
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and advice to the departments and 
agencies, and to increase training for Inuit. 
At the core of this support is the creation of 
our Inuit Employment Plan. Also, we are 
providing some core programs and 
initiatives to encourage beneficiaries to 
increase their skills, such as the 
Sivuliqtiksat Internship Program, our 
Summer Student Employment Equity 
Program, our Priority Hiring Policy, our 
occupational training programs, our 
leadership development, our learning plans, 
and our mentorship programs. 
 
Again, our gap analysis and the gathering 
of our data will help to ensure that we’re 
recommending the appropriate programs 
that are needed so that individuals can be 
provide with those programs and they can 
then be provided with the right jobs within 
the Government of Nunavut. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Okalik. 
 
Mr. Okalik (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) I didn’t 
make myself clear enough.  
 
I am going on the basis of a tabled 
document by the Department of Human 
Resources dated March 31, 2010. 
According to the figures, the most glaring 
area where there is lack of beneficiaries is 
the professional category, where we are at 
26 percent. So it is quite obvious that there 
needs to be something done for that to 
increase. It would be nice to see how the 
department will plan to address this glaring 
category and what kind of plans they have 
to train Inuit accountants, lawyers, and 
those categories where it is difficult for 
Inuit students to succeed elsewhere. What 
we have seen is that we can have success 
when we teach these students in the 

ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᖅᑲᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐃᑲᔪᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑲᖅᑲᐃ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᕌᒐᔅᓴᕗᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᖁᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓂᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓂᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᔅᓴᐅᑎᔅᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᐃᓪᓗ ᐊᒥᓱᕈᕆᐊᒃᑲᓂᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᓄᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᓐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑎᑎᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔪᑎᓪᓗᐊᑕᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᐊᔪᕈᓐᓃᓴᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᓯᕗᓂᔅᓴᕗᒍᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᑎᑦᑎᓂᖅ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᓐᓂᑎᓐᓂ ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᔅᓴᐅᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓂᔅᓴᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕋᔅᓴᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᓄᓇᑦᑕ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᖓᓐᓂᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖃᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᑭᓱᒥᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ 
ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᐃᓐᓄᐸᓪᓕᐊᒍᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ.  
 
 
ᐅᑲᓕᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒎᓕᖅᑐᖅ) 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐅᖃᑦᑎᐊᖏᓐᓇᒪᖃᐃ. 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᒫᑦᓯ 31, 2010-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᔪᕕᓂᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓈᓴᐅᑏᑦ 
ᒪᓕᑦᑐᒋᑦ ᐅᔾᔨᕐᓇᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᓄᓇᖃᖅᑳᖅᓯᒪᔪᐃᑦ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᓂᖅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒪᒻᒪᕆᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᖅᑎᑕᖃᓗᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ. 
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territory.  
 
Perhaps if the department could come 
forward with a plan that, “On this period 
we will train these core professionals, and 
thereafter, we will go on to a different 
profession.” It would make it a little easier 
for us to picture that and see what we can 
succeed in those categories in the future. 
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Okalik. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There are definitely challenges and 
concerns that we share with you. Again I 
will refer you to our human resource gap 
analysis and our plan to gather the data. 
With the appropriate data that we show 
exactly what is needed, we will be able to 
work with our partners in the other 
departments that can then move forward 
with providing the training programs, 
requesting the money that is needed to 
provide these training programs within the 
territory. You have already seen some 
initiatives along this line that you referred 
to, such as the Nursing Program and the 
recent continuing care program.  
 
With the right information, we will be able 
to then have concrete data that shows these 
are exactly how many numbers of what 
professional categories we need and work 
towards filling those numbers. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Ningark. 
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
About three weeks ago, I received a letter 
from one very ambitious young person who 
wanted to further his education in Arctic 
College. He had a bad experience a few 

ᓇᓗᓇᓐᖏᑦᑎᐊᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕆᐊᖃᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᒥᓱᕈᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒻᒪᕇᑦ ᓇᓪᓕᐊᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᔪᒥᓇᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᓴᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᓴᐳᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᐅᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᓂᕐᒥᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓯᓚᑖᓄᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕇᑐᐊᕋᐃᒐᒥ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕈᓐᓇᐸᒻᒪᑕ 
ᓇᓗᓇᕈᓐᓃᕐᖓᑦ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔪᓐᓇᕋᑦᑕ. 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒻᒪᕆᐅᓖᑦ 
ᖁᕝᕙᓯᓂᔅᓴᒦᒋᐊᓖᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᑕᒫᓂ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᖏᓐᓂ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᓐᖑᐊᕋᓗᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑭᑦᑑᔮᕆᐊᖓ ᑕᒫᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕆᐊᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑲᓕᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᐳᖅᑕᕈᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒥᔭᒃᑲ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᐃᒐᓱᐊᕋᑦᑕᐃᓛᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕖᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᖃᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑭᓲᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᐃᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᓗᖏᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᐅᑎᔅᓴᓂᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᓇᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᑎᒍᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ ᐆᒃᑑᑎᒋᓗᒍ 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᓯᐅᖅᑎᔅᓴᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑏᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᔪᒪᑉᐸᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᖅᓱᓚᐅᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᑏᑦ ᖃᑦᑎᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒻᒪᕇᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᐸᓪᓕᐊᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
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years ago not being able to bring his family 
to a different region to attend Arctic 
College. He had wanted to complete his 
education, but needed his family for 
support, and to be with his family. He 
asked for sponsorship and was refused for 
some reason. Perhaps the education that he 
wanted to take from his region was in 
another region.  
 
I wanted to ask human resources: do you 
work closely with the Arctic College in 
finding where these sponsorship programs 
can be attained? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. We 
are kind of floating off the side a little bit, 
but I’ll ask Ms. Wasson to answer it.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
will refer that question to the Acting 
Deputy Minister of Education because 
Education and the Nunavut Arctic College 
work very closely to provide these 
programs in a collaborative manner. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. 
Deputy Minister of Education, go ahead.  
 
Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The Department of Education and the 
Nunavut Arctic College do work really 
close together on a number of training 
programs, including the Teacher Education 
Program and any other trades training, so 
there is a very positive relationship. I hope 
that answers the question.  
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.  
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My subsequent question is: how does your 
department award sponsorships to potential 
students? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 

 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓰᑦ ᐱᖓᓱᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᐅᓯᐊᓚᐅᕐᒥᒐᒪ 
ᐃᓚᖓᓂᑦ ᐃᓄᒻᒥᑦ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᒥᒃ ᐃᓅᓱᑦᑑᓗᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᒪᔪᒥᓂᖅ ᓄᓇᒥᓐᓃᓪᓗᓂ ᐅᖓᓯᑦᑐᒥ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᒪᔪᒥᓂᖅ. ᐊᕐᕌᒍ 
ᖃᑦᑎᑲᓪᓚᐃᒃᑭᐊᖅ ᐊᓂᒍᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᖅ, 
ᐊᑲᐅᓈᓐᖏᑐᒃᑯᐋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᓂᕐᒥᒐᒥ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᒪᒐᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂ ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖏᑦ ᕿᑐᕐᖓᖏᓪᓗ 
ᓇᔅᓴᕈᓐᓇᕐᓇᒋᑦ. ᐱᔭᕇᕈᒪᒐᓗᐊᖅᑐᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑕᒥᓂᒃ. ᐅᐱᓐᓇᕋᓂ ᑕᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕋᒥ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕋᒥᓗ ᐊᐃᑉᐸᒥᓂᒃ 
ᕿᑐᕐᖓᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᓇᔅᓴᕈᒪᔪᒐᓗᐊᕋᒥ ᐊᑭᓕᐅᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᕐᓂᑦᑐᓂᑦ. ᐋᒡᒑᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᒻᒪᕆᓐᓂᕐᖓᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖃᖅᑐᔅᓴᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑖᓐᓇᒎᖅ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᒪᔭᖓ 
ᓄᓇᒥᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᕙᓂ ᐊᓯᐊᓂ ᓄᓇᒦᓐᓂᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ.  
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓂᖓᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᐸᑉᐱᓰ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᖓᓂ ᒪᑯᐊ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕋᔅᓴᐅᔪᑦ ᓇᒦᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕋᔅᓴᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ?  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᑎᓐᓅᖓᓗᐊᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ 
ᑭᐅᖁᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᖔᕐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯᑦ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᑯᓐᓂ, ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᑑᑉ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᖓᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᖃᖅᐸᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᑭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᓂᖅᓴᐅᓚᖓᕙᓪᓚᐃᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᑉᐸᒻᒪᑎᑕ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᒡᓕᐊ.  
 
ᒌᑭ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᐸᑦᑐᒍ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᐃᕙᑦᑐᑕ ᓲᕐᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᔅᓴᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕆᐅᖅᓴᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓯᓐᓈᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕕᑦᑕᖃᓕᕐᒥᒻᒪᑦ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. 
Deputy Minister of Education.  
 
Mr. Geikie: There are a couple programs 
that a student could apply to. The first is 
the financial assistance for northern 
students. The other program is through our 
labour market development agreements that 
students can have access to through 
applications for the various types of 
programs that are available in the North. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ningark.  
 
Mr. Ningark: Thank you. I wanted to 
apologize for sidetracking a bit, but the 
Madam Deputy Minister, I think, 
mentioned sponsorships, so I took it from 
there. That’s it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ningark. We 
have no more names on the list here. Hang 
on. Mr. Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On 
page 5 of the Auditor General’s report in 
paragraph no. 4, again going back to 2020, 
to attain a representative level of 85 percent 
beneficiary employment, this question is 
directed towards the Government of 
Nunavut. What plans of action does your 
department have in the event that the target 
of 85 percent is not reached by the year 
2020? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again I’ll refer you to the fact that we will 
be gathering information and we will be 
providing some references or some 
recommendations as to whether or not the 
target should be adjusted and the reasons 
why.  

ᑭᐅᔪᔅᓴᐅᕙᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᕆᒃᑲᓂᕐᓗᖓ, ᖃᓄᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓯ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ?  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᑕ ᑐᒡᓕᐊ.  
 
 
ᒌᑭ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖃᑦᑎᑲᓪᓚᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦ 
ᑐᔅᓯᕋᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᒫᓂ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑐᔅᓯᕋᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᖅᑐᒥᐅᑕᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑐᔅᓯᕋᕈᓐᓇᖅᑎᑦᑎᓲᖑᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᖅᑐᒥ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑖᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ.  
 
ᓂᓐᖓᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ. 
ᓴᓂᕝᕙᖅᑑᔮᓕᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ. ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᒡᓕᐊ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑎᒍᑦ 
ᒥᔅᓵᓄᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᓯᑳᓪᓚᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᑎᖁᑎᖃᕈᓐᓃᕋᒪ. 
ᓯᐊᕈᐃᐊ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᒃᐱᒐ 5-ᒥ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑎᓴᒪᖓᓂᑦ, 2020-ᖅᑲᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇᑎᒋ 85-ᐳᓴᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᖓᑕ 
ᐸᕐᓇᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 85-ᐳᓴᓐ ᑎᑭᑕᐅᓐᖏᑉᐸᑕ 
ᑎᑭᓐᖏᑯᑦᑎᒍ 2020-ᓕᖅᑲᑦ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖅᓯᒪᕕᓰᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᖁᓪᓗᑎᒍ?  
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When we come to completely gathering our 
information, we will be able to make some 
concrete decisions based on the 
information in regard to the gap analysis, 
what we have and what we don’t have, and 
what it looks like from the labour market 
reviews to the education rates and the 
training rates and the length of time it takes 
to churn people out from the training 
programs that we require within our 
departments. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So, 
at this point, if the Government of Nunavut 
has nothing in place for that, then you will 
develop something. That’s what you are 
saying. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We have numerous programs that we are 
working and have been working on for 
quite some time. Training and development 
programs fall within the Department of 
Human Resources and also with the 
Nunavut Arctic College trying to provide 
training for individuals.  
 
So we’re working hard at reaching a 
representative government. We do realize 
that, for the categories that we have not 
reached representation, there are issues 
with churning out beneficiaries in a timely 
and reaching those targets. We need to 
really look at the concrete data to 
determine what a realistic target is by 2020. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ ᑲᑎᖅᓱᐃᒋᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑯᑎᓂᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑕᒻᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᑦᓱᐃᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᐃᓚᐅᕐᓗᑕ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᐃᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ. 
ᒪᑯᐊᓗ ᑭᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐱᖃᓯᐅᑎᒋᐊᖃᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᑦ, ᑭᓐᖒᒪᔭᑦ, 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᔅᓴᐅᑏᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᑦᓱᕐᓗᒋᑦ. ᑲᑎᑕᐃᓐᓇᕆᒍᑦᑎᒍ 
ᓂᕆᐅᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᓛᕆᐊᔅᓴᖅ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᑎᓐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᐃᓯᒪᓐᖏᑎᐊᖅᑑᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒻᒪᑕ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᐃᓛᖅᑭᓯ? ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖅᑮᑦ?  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ, ᐊᑯᓂᑲᓪᓚᕈᓗᓪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ. ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᕙᑦᑐᑕ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᕙᑦᑐᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᖅᓴᕐᕕᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᑦᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᓐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᑦᓱᕈᑦᓯᐊᕋᓗᐊᖅᑐᑕ 
ᑎᑭᐅᑎᓇᓱᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᓄᕐᓂᕆᒋᐊᓕᖏᑦ 
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Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’m 
not really sure how to phrase this question 
because it goes to something that I usually 
call the numbers game and it’s the idea of, 
before I became an MLA, I was working as 
an adult educator and I took it upon myself. 
I figured with Article 23, that my job was 
to mentor someone to take over for me. But 
in a community of less than 800 people I 
don’t think a lot of people wake up in the 
morning and go, “Geez, I want to be an 
adult educator.” So I call it the numbers 
game because you have a small population 
and what is the possibility that someone 
within your community wants to actually 
take on the role that you’re taking on? 
 
I was lucky enough to find someone and be 
able to mentor them for four years and they 
have since taken over my position and are 
the indeterminate adult educator in Arctic 
Bay. I was just wondering, in terms of the 
audit that was done and the work… so it’s 
a question for both the Office of the 
Auditor General and the Department 
Human Resources; when you were doing 
the audit and when you run your day-to-
day business of the department, is there any 
sort of reflection on, with a population of 
33,000 people, is the 85 percent target rate 
in terms of filling these positions for where 
we want to put all these people in different 
places, has anyone asked the people within 
the communities, that you know, this is 
what they want? And the idea being, are 
there many people out there that want to be 
Deputy Ministers? Do we know that 
information? How do we find that 
information?  
 
And as the report actually points out, we 
have been very successful in some areas in 
terms of the paraprofessional and the 
administrative going above and beyond, 
but is that what the people in the 
communities want? Do we have that 

ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖃᐅᕐᒥᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᓐᖏᔾᔪᑎᕗᑦ. ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᓐᖑᑎᒍᓐᓇᐃᓕᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑎᒍ. ᓂᕆᐅᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
2020-ᒥ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᓛᕆᐊᑦᓴᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᓄᑭᐊᖅ ᐊᐱᕆᓂᐊᓕᕐᒥᔭᕋᓗᐊᕋᐅᓇ. 
ᓈᓴᐅᓯᕆᓐᖑᐊᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᕙᒻᒥᒐᒪ. 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᓐᖑᓚᐅᖅᑎᓐᓇᖓ ᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒥᒐᒪ ᓈᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᒐᒪ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᓚᖓ 23 ᐊᖏᕈᑎᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑖᕈᑎᓂ ᐅᕙᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᑦᓱᐊᓗᒃ 
ᓇᐅᑦᓯᖅᑐᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᒃᑯ. ᑕᐃᒫ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓲᕐᓗ ᐃᖅᑯᕙᖅᑐᖃᐃᓐᓇᐅᔭᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ, “ᐋ, ᐅᓪᓗᒥ 
ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᐅᓛᕈᒥᓇ ᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦ ᐃᓕᕝᕕᖓᓂ.” 
ᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅᑖᕆᒍᒪᔭᐃᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓐᓇᖅᓱᒋᓗᒍ 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᑦᓴᖏᓐᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓱᒪᑕᓂᑦ, ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᒋᐊᕆᔨᓂᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᕐᓇᖅᑐᒃᑰᓕᖅᐸᑕ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᑎᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᐃᑉᐱᐊᕐᔪᒻᒥ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᓈᓴᐃᑎᓪᓗᓯ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᓪᓗᓯ 
ᖃᐅᑕᒫᖅᓯᐅᑎᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐅᔾᔨᕈᓱᓚᐅᖅᐱᓰ ᐃᓄᖁᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
33,000-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 33,000-ᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓇᓪᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓄᑦ ᐅᑯᐊ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐃᑯᖓᓚᖓᔪᑦ ᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᓚᑉᐱᓰ? 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᓗᓯ ᐃᓄᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᔭᐅᒍᒪᒐᔭᓐᖑᐊᖅᐹᑦ? ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᖅᓯᒪᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑦᓯᐅᒃ?  
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information or is that some of the lacking 
information that is not there in terms of 
when you guys were doing the audit? So 
maybe if the Office of the Auditor General 
could answer that first and then maybe the 
Government of Nunavut. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
can only presume that when the target was 
established that there was some discussion 
and some public consultation on that, but I 
think it is fair to say that most governments 
would want to representative of the people 
that they are serving and I believe that is 
where the 85 percent comes from. 
 
So I think just about any government, the 
federal government and most provincial 
governments too will have some kinds of 
targets for representation of various groups. 
I think the issue here is, and this is a 
personal reflection; the issue here I think is 
not so much the target but the time it will 
take to get there and what are the programs 
in place to make sure that you actually 
obtain that target. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for that response. That 
definitely helps. I would like to pose the 
same question to the Government of 
Nunavut as well. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
No, we have not posed that question. The 
consultative process is a very important 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐃᓚᖓᒍᑦ ᐊᑦᓱᐊᓗᒃ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᓯᐊᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖁᕝᕙᓯᓐᓂᖅᓴᒥᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᒥᓲᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᑕ, ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᓂᖅᓴᓂ ᖃᑦᓰᓐᓇᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᒻᒪᑕ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᓂᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᐅᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ.  
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑲᖐᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓ ᐋᖅᑭᑕᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᖅ ᐃᓄᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᓂᒥᒃ 
ᐅᓄᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᒥᓲᓂᖅᓴᐃᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓄᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑭᒡᒐᑐᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑭᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅᐸᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕈᒪᒐᔭᕐᒪᑕᐃᓛᒃ ᓄᓇᒥᓐᓃᑦᑐᓂᒃ. 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒫᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐳᕌᕕᓐᓯᓂᑦ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ 
ᑐᕌᒐᖃᓲᖑᒻᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᐅᑯᐊ ᐃᓅᖃᑎᒌᑦ ᐅᑯᓇᓐᖔᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓅᖃᑎᒌᑦ ᐅᑯᓇᓐᖔᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑐᕌᒐᕆᔭᐅᕙᒃᑭᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐱᕕᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᑦᑐᑦ 
ᖃᓄᑎᒋ ᐱᕕᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐅᓪᓗᖅᓯᐅᑎᑎᒍᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑎᑕᐅᒐᓱᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒐᓱᐊᕈᓐᓇᐸᓪᓚᐃᒻᒥᔪᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
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process in finding out what the 
communities and what people in the 
communities want. So certainly building in 
that consultation process and finding out… 
and I think a good indicator is looking at 
what communities the graduation rate is 
increasing in and what jobs are available in 
those communities too, and what do we 
need to do to get people fitted to those 
particular jobs that are in those particular 
communities I think is something that we 
really have to be careful about. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you for that answer. I think I sort of 
agree with the Office of the Auditor 
General. I think we have the ability to 
reach the 85 percent beneficiary 
employment, but I think it requires more 
time.  
 
I think the issue that we haven’t really 
talked about yet or sort of built on is the 
idea. I know that it actually comes out in 
the report, the difference between training, 
which, I think, as employers, we’re pretty 
good at training people for certain things, 
but the education or the underlying 
foundation of education is not there at this 
point. So is there a committee being 
formed or how is your department 
attacking that sort of aspect? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There is a committee called the Building 
Capacity Committee. It’s the representation 
of a group of Deputy Ministers. The 
committee is actually tasked with 
overseeing the implementation. On an 

ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᑦᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑭᐅᕋᑖᕋᕕᑦ. ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓂᖃᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒫᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓯᒃᑳᓪᓚᑉᐸᒃᑲ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᑦᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐋᒡᒐ, 
ᐊᐱᕆᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕆᐊᓕᓪᓛᓘᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᓄᓇᓖᑦ ᑭᓐᖒᒪᔭᖏᑦ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᖏᓪᓗ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᖅᑳᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᒎᒋᐊᖃᕋᔭᕐᖓᑕ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᓯᒋᐊᖃᖅᐸᓪᓚᐃᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᕙᓪᓕᐊᒍᑎᑦᓴᓂᒃ ᖃᑦᓯᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᐊᓗᒻᒥ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ/ᐊᓂᒍᐃᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᕝᕕᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᒍᓐᓇᕋᔭᓐᖑᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᓕᑦᓯᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑦᑎᒍ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᒋᐊᖃᕋᔭᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᑦᓯᐊᕐᓗᑎᒍ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᑦᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᑦ. ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒋᕙᓪᓚᐃᔭᕋ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑐᒍᖏᓂᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ 85-
ᐳᓴᓐ ᐊᓐᖑᑎᒍᓐᓇᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂᐅᓕᖅᑲᑦ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᖓᓂ.  
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ ᖁᓕᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᐊᔪᕈᕐᓃᓴᕐᓂᖅ. 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᕋᔅᓯ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᔪᕈᓐᓃᔅᓴᒃᑲᓐᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒥᓄᑦ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᖅᓯᒪᔪᖃᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᐅᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᐋᓗᒻᒥ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᒻᒥᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᓕᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕇᖅᓯᒪᒋᐊᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
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ongoing basis, there are subtask groups too 
that carry out work for the Building 
Capacity Committee. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So 
it’s called the Building Capacity 
Committee and it’s made up of Deputy 
Ministers. Is that Deputy Ministers from all 
departments or is it specific departments? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Each specific department; the departments 
represented are: the Department of Human 
Resources is the chair, the Department of 
Executive, the Department of Education, 
Community and Government Services, 
Finance, Nunavut Arctic College, Health 
and Social Services, Economic 
Development and Transportation, and the 
Department of CLEY. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
How often does this committee meet in 
terms of what it involves? Is it like 
quarterly? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson.  
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Over the past three months up until about 
two weeks ago, the committee had met on 
an almost weekly basis. The Rake Bay 
Committee is set to meet on a regular 

 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖃᕐᒥᒐᑦᑕ ᐊᔪᕈᕐᓃᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑐᒡᓕᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖑᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᖓᓂᑦ 
ᑕᒪᑐᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᐃᓐᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᒍᒃ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖃᐅᕆᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐊᔪᕈᓐᓃᖅᓴᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᒃᓯᕚᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖏᑦ 
ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓃᖔᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓕᒫᖏᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓇᖏᓐᖔᖅᐸᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕖᑦ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, ᒐᕙᒪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᑦ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ, ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᒃ, 
ᐋᓐᓂᐊᖃᕐᓇᖏᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓄᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ, 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔾᔪᑎᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐊᑯᓚᐃᑎᒋᔪᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
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monthly basis to discuss the number of 
issues that they were discussing and they 
had decided that they would move their 
meetings to weekly. We have now moved 
back to our monthly meetings. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 
terms of education and building on a lot of 
the positive things that are happening, I 
was wondering if Mr. Geikie would 
actually be able to speak to some of the… 
you mentioned earlier about career 
development.  
 
We have seen in the High Arctic what 
some of the mining companies are doing. 
They are wanting to go into schools, sort of 
talk about career paths, and working with 
young people in the schools to say where 
you want to go and what your potential is, 
and then you can actually work towards 
that.  
 
If you are in grade 12 and you are saying 
that you want to go to university but you 
haven’t taken any grade 12 math or 
science, then the chances of being accepted 
into university are a lot harder, so you need 
to catch that at a younger age.  
 
To me one of the concerns that come out in 
the report is the differentiation between the 
training that I mentioned earlier and the 
education. To me it starts within the school 
at a young age, where you’ve got very 
excited, enthusiastic students having big 
dreams about being Premier and Deputy 
Ministers and running the government.  
 
If you could give us where the government 
is going and what the plan is. To me that’s 
a big piece to what we’re talking about 

ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ ᑲᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ? ᐊᕐᕌᒍ 
ᑎᓴᒪᐃᖅᓱᖅᖢᒍ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐱᖓᓱᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑭᑦ, 2 weeks ᑎᑭᓪᓗᒍ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ, 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᑕᒫᐸᓗᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᖅᑭᑕᒫᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕋᒥ. ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᑕᒫᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᖅᑭᑕᒫᖅᓯᐅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᐅᔪᑏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓴᖅᑭᐸᓪᓕᐊᑎᓪᓗᖏᑦ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒌᑭ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᐳᖅ ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᐃᓂᕐᒥᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐹᓂ ᖁᑦᑎᑐᕐᒥ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐅᔭᕋᓐᓂᐊᖅᑏᑦ ᑕᑉᐹᓃᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᓲᖑᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᔪᒥᔅᓱᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓇᓲᖑᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᕖᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᖅᑐᖅᖢᑎᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᒻᒪᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ Grade 12-ᒦᒃᑯᕕᑦ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᓕᐊᕈᒪᒍᕕᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᔾᔪᐊᕐᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᓕᓯᒪᓐᖏᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᓯᕆᓂᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ Science-ᖑᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ.  
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today. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Deputy 
Minister of Education.  
 
Mr. Geikie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There are a number of, I would say, 
substantial changes that were occurring 
over the past couple of years and will 
continue to occur over the next five to ten 
years in our K-12 school system, mostly as 
a result of the implementation of the new 
Education Act and the regulations that go 
with it.  
 
We see this as a positive change, both for 
our students and the staff within our 
schools, including changes in programs, 
trying to get different options in our 
schools for our children, not just the core 
academic programs, but bringing trades 
programs, entrepreneurship programs, arts, 
heritage, and culture programs, those sorts, 
music, so that our children have greater 
opportunities and they get a wide variety of 
options, so that when they do graduate 
from school, they may not necessarily 
know exactly where they want to go, but 
have a better idea of the trail that they may 
want to follow.  
 
There are also a number of training 
programs that we are doing for our school 
educators. As was mentioned, the masters’ 
program, which was the first round 
completed, we are starting the second 
round of the masters’ program in 
November. We are in the process of 
developing a new training program for our 
school community counsellors, our school 
custodians, everybody that works in the 
school system so that they are better 
prepared to help meet the needs of our 
children. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott. 

ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔪᖓ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕋᒪ ᐅᑯᓇᓂ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᐃᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᖅᑲᐅᔭᕋ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ. ᐃᓕᓐᓂᓐᐊᕐᕕᓐᓂ 
ᐱᒋᐊᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᓄᑕᕋᐅᔾᔫᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᔪᒥᔅᓴᑎᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ. ᓲᕐᓗ ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᐅᔪᒪᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐆᒃᑐᕈᒪᓗᑎᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᓯᒪᕙᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᒃᑐᐃᓂᓕᓪᓚᕆᐋᓘᒻᒪᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
ᒌᑭ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕆᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑦ ᖁᓕᑦ 
ᐊᒡᒋᖅᑐᓂᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᔾᔪᑎᖃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᑖᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᓂᖅ ᐱᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᓵᖓᓇᓱᒋᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔨᓄᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓐᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᒻᒥᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐃᓕᓴᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ. ᒪᑯᐊᓗ 
ᓴᓇᔨᓪᓚᕆᓐᖑᕆᐅᖅᓴᕐᓂᒧᑦ, ᐱᔅᓂᓯᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ, 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ, ᓂᔾᔭᐅᓯᔭᕐᓂᖅ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᕈᓘᔭᐃᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑐᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᓴᒃᑯᑖᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓴᖅᑐᖁᑎᕗᑦ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᔭᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᑭᓱᓐᖑᕈᒪᖕᒪᖔᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐆᑦᑐᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᒍᓇᒍᓐᓇᖅᑕᖏᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᓄᕕᐱᕆᖑᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᓕᓴᐃᔩᓂᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖅᑖᐸᓪᓕᐊᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᖁᑦᑎᒃᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓂᒃ. 
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Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On 
paragraph 12, which is on page eight, the 
report notes that a great majority of 
positions in the public service require 
educational qualifications. I know 
sometimes in discussions that I’ve had with 
different constituents that sometimes 
people feel that they’re actually put into a 
position without the experience and the 
qualifications that they need, sometimes to 
sort of fill that gap and make sure that you 
have the Inuit employment requirements.  
 
To me it’s too bad, because sometimes 
what you’re doing is setting up someone to 
fail, in the sense that you’re expecting them 
to perform at a level that they’re not ready 
to. It’s not saying that they’re not capable, 
it’s just that in their position in their life 
right now in terms of their training, and 
whatever educational level that they have, 
and they haven’t mastered that sort of level.
 
I know during the appearance of the 
Auditor General before the committee last 
year, we had a good discussion about the 
distinction between education and training. 
I was just wondering in terms of if the 
Office of the Auditor General, using your 
office’s experience as an illustration, what 
would you say as the minimum level of 
formal education required for an employee 
to function in a modern government? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
think increasingly in governments in 
Canada, governments are requiring a 
University education. I would say even, for 
example, if you take our office, we require 
either accounting designation or a master’s 
degree. So the requirements are increasing 
over time, and will only continue to 

ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂᒃ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑎᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗᑕ ᐃᓅᓯᓕᕆᔨᒋᔭᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᖕᓂ ᓴᓗᒻᒪᖅᓴᐃᔨᓂᒡᓗ ᓱᕈᓯᓄᑦ 
ᑭᓐᖒᒪᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 12-
ᒥᒃ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᓕᒃ, ᒪᒃᐱᒐᖅ 8, ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖑᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᖕᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᖃᑎᖃᕈᓘᔭᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᖓ ᓂᕈᐊᖅᑎᓂᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒧᑦ ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓲᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᖏᑦ 
ᐱᑕᖃᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᓅᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᑐᐃᖅᖢᒍ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᔪᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᕐᖑᓈ-
ᓚᓯᒪᔭᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑰᔨᓲᖅ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᐊᔪᖅᑐᑦ-
ᓚᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᖁᕝᕙᓯᖕᓂᖏᓪᓗ 
ᓇᓃᒻᒪᖔᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐅᓐᓇᕐᒪᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓ ᐊᕐᕌᓂ ᒫᓃᑦᑎᒍ, 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᐃᓂᕐᓗ 
ᐊᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ. ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᖃᐃ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᓱᒪᕙ: ᖃᔅᓯᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᓪᓗᓂ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑎᐊᕙᐅᓇᔭᖅᐸ ᐅᓪᓗᒥᐅᓕᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
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increase. So it is troubling when you see 
that there is a very low rate of students 
completing high school. 
 
I think the member is correct that you can 
perhaps give some of those students may 
not be that interested in going onto higher 
education training in various skills and 
trades, but to fill the professional categories 
that the government requires, those 
students, most of them, will need to have a 
University education, and perhaps even 
further education after University as well. 
So there has to be much more emphasis on 
having students complete high school and 
then going onto post-secondary education. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 
terms of a similar question and reply from 
the Government of Nunavut. Is what the 
Auditor General saying reflective in terms 
of the hiring practice of what the GN is 
doing, in terms of HR? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again while gathering our data will be able 
to tell us exactly why some of the work 
competitions are unsuccessful. The 
professional categories and executive 
categories are certainly where we’re not 
meeting representation and also where we 
do have a capacity issue. 
 
Again, gather that information will be able 
to tell us exactly what the gaps are. It won’t 
help us to get those people, but we are 
looking at what we can do as far laddering 
into the professions. You will note that the 
Auditor General did indicate that people do 

 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ.  
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᓇᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᑕᒫᓂᓗ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ 
university-ᒥ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᖅᓴᕐᕕᒡᔪᐊᕐᒥ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ. ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒍᓗ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᕗᑦ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑯᑕᖃᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓇᓱᓲᖑᔪᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐊᓂᒍᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓪᓗ ᐅᓄᖅᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᑕᑯᓪᓗᓂ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᐊᓗᒻᒥ ᐃᓱᓕᑦᑎᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒫᓗᖕᓇᕐᒪᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᕐᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᓐᓄᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ 
ᒪᑯᓂᖓ ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᔭᕐᓂᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᒡᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᖅᓴᕐᕕᒡᔪᐊᒥ 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᓯᒪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᐅᓇᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᓯᓚᑦᑐᖅᓴᕐᕕᒡᔪᐊᕐᒥ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐸᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᒍᕋᐃᑦ 12 
ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᑉᐸᑕ ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓲᖑᔪᖅ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒃᐸᓪᓕᐊᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᒃᑯᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑖᓐᓇᓴᐃᓐᓇᖃᐃ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᖃᖅᑕᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᕚ? 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓄᐊᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᓄᐃᑕᐅᔭᕌᖓᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
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need to work towards their university 
degrees and we’re going to have to try to 
find ways to promote people to get 
university degrees to get into positions. But 
we certainly are working towards a career 
development framework and a laddering 
that will help people move up through the 
system. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’m 
finding it frustrating. It seems like we’re 
going back to questions or answers we 
received when we had the Nunavut 
Housing Corporation here.  
 
So in ten years of operations as a human 
resources department working towards 85 
percent representation in all those years, 
you’re saying your department has no 
information on what level of education the 
people you hire are at? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
What I am saying is that information has 
never been gathered in a way that we can 
actually predict exactly what we do need in 
various job categories. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So 
you’re saying that, again now, you’re 
assuring us that things will move forward 
and everything will be fine but it’s going to 
be 2015 before you actually get an accurate 
number as to when the percentage by 
2020… I guess, what mechanism is in 
place to make sure that this information is 

ᓄᐊᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᒃᑯ ᖃᐅᔨᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᐊᑕᐅᑉᐸᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑭᓱᓂᑦ 
ᑎᑭᑦᑎᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᔭᕗᑦ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᓴᕐᕕᔾᔪᐊᕐᒥ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᓗᓂᓚᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᑲᔪᖏᖅᓴᐃᔪᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐱᔭᕆᐅᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒥᑦ ᐅᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᐊᑦᑎᓂᖅᐹᒥᑦ 
ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᓗᓂ ᖁᕝᕙᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓕᕙᓪᓕᐊᒍᓐᓇᕐᒥᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᓪᓗᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑐᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᑎᖅᑰᔨᒐᑦᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
ᖁᓕᓂᑦ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓂᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᐅᔪᑦ. 
85-ᐳᓴᓐᑎᒧᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓯᒪᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᑖᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᖅᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᓯ ᕿᔅᓴᒧᑦ 
ᖁᕝᕙᓯᓐᓂᓕᒻᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᓯᒪᒡᒍᕙᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑲᑎᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑦ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᓇᓚᐅᒃᓵᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᓕᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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gathered correctly, and it’s going to be 
presented and utilized properly? Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
share your concern and what we will do is 
prioritize the positions and from that 
perspective, when we start looking at 
gathering the data, the priority positions 
will be gathered first so that we can focus 
on those priority positions. And if we have 
to change the way that we’re gathering, or 
what we’re gathering, those priority 
positions should be able to teach us a 
lesson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Is 
one of the success stories in terms of 
training and the collaborative efforts of 
different departments that training program 
that the Minister of Finance mentioned, 
where $2 million was found and presented 
to your department? Is that an example of 
some of the good work that is happening 
within the department? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, that is one of the examples of the 
examples of the collaborative work 
between the departments in regard to the $2 
million and that money being used for 
training throughout the government 
departments. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Wasson. Mr. 
Elliott. 
 

 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒃᐸᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕐᓂᕋᐃᓕᖅᑐᓯ 2015-ᒥ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᓕᕐᓂᐊᖅᐱᓰ? 2020-ᒥ? 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐋᖅᑭᓯᓯᒪᕕᓯ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᐅᒻᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔾᔫᒥᓂᐊᕐᖓᑕ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒻᒥᔪᖓ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᔪᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᓄᐊᓪᓗᑎᒃᑯ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᐃᔾᔨᓯᕗᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕆᐊᖃᖅᐸᑦ, 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᑎᓯᒪᔭᕗᓪᓗ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕆᐊᖃᖅᐸᑕ, 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᔭᖅᑐᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᖅᓴᐃᓂᖅ ᐊᒃᓱᕉᑎᒋᔭᐅᓂᖓᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓ, ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ $200-ᒥᓕᐊᓐᓂᒡᒎᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᓯᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᖃᓄᐃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᓪᓕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
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Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So 
do you feel that the department has spent 
the money wisely in terms of what training 
was accomplished and what happened with 
the money? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Wasson. 
 
Ms. Wasson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
am going to divert this question to the 
Sheyla Kolola, who is the Director of 
Training and Development. She can give 
you a good over-view of some of the 
programs that this money has been spent 
on. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Go ahead Ms. 
Kolola.  
 
Ms. Kolola: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The specialized training fund that Mr. 
Elliott is talking about was established in 
2009-10 from the Department of Finance to 
the Department of Human Resources, and 
it is overseen within my division, but also 
the Building Capacity Committee, 
consisting of the DMs are also involved in 
how the money is spent.  
 
So the $2 million was split into two 
categories: one would be for the specialized 
training, which is like a proposal funding 
format from the departments to a review 
committee, and the other $1 million is for 
program development. That is to develop 
technical, job-specific skills. Priority is 
determined by the Building Capacity 
Committee.  
 
In 2009-2010 we were not able to fully 
utilize the $2 million because it was not 
established until the beginning of the 
second quarter. But in 2010-11, after the 
criteria have been set and the departments 
know that those exist, we have fully 

 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐆᒃᑑᑎᒋᔭᕗᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ $200-
ᒥᓕᐊᓐ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐃᔭᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᐹᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᐊᑐᓚᐅᖅᐱᓯ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐅᐊᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑦ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ ᓰᓚᒧᑦ. 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᖏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᐅᐊᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑯᓗᓛ.  
 
ᑯᓗᓛ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ ᑕᐃᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 2009-2010-ᒥ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓐᓂ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓕᕐᒪᔅᓴᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᑕ ᑎᒍᒥᐊᖅᑕᖏᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ $2 ᒥᓕᐊᓐ ᒪᕐᕈᐃᓕᖓᔫᖕᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ: ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕐᓂᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ $1 ᒥᓕᐊᓐ 
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committed the $1 million for the 
specialized training to 18 proposals 
submitted by the departments. We have 
also committed $1 million for the program 
development determined by the Building 
Capacity [Committee’s] priorities. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Elliott.  
 
Mr. Elliott: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, if your department doesn’t keep 
statistics and your department doesn’t 
know what level of education your 
employees have, how can you assess what 
training was needed? How can you assess 
or evaluate that the training was successful 
if you don’t have that information and if 
you can’t provide it to us today, how are 
you making those decisions? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Elliott. Ms. 
Kolola. 
 
Ms. Kolola: The specialized training fund, 
that $2 million training fund is specific to 
what the Building Capacity [Committee] 
had determined. In terms of training 
programs in the government, and we will 
be getting to that later in the Auditor 
General’s report, there are training 
programs in other departments and the 
exhibit is shown in the Auditor General’s 
report.  
 
For determining what positions are needed 
and what training is needed, the 
departments are the ones that have all of 
that information. They know what 
positions they need, which is probably why 
there are training programs already 
existing. I could only speak now for the 
training program that we have within HR, 
which is Sivuliqtiksat, and that is an 
internship program.  
 

ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓐᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐱᓕᒻᒪᒃᓴᐅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᓴᐅᔪᓂᑦ, 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓂᒡᓗ ᓄᐃᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᖢᑕ.  
 
 
 
2009-2010-ᒥ $2 ᒥᓕᐊᓐ 
ᐊᑐᐊᓂᒍᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑕᕗᑦ. ᐊᕐᕌᒍ ᕿᑎᕋᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᐃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ 2010-11-ᒥ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᑕᐅᕌᓂᒃᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᑕ $1 ᒥᓕᐊᓐ 
ᐊᑐᕐᓂᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ $1 ᒥᓕᐊᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓴᓂᕐᕙᐃᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓐᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᒃᓴᐃᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ.  
 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᕝᕗᓐᖓᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᒪ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᑯᔅᓯ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᐊᓐᖏᒃᑯᔅᓯᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᔅᓯᓐᓄᑦ, ᖃᓄᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕈᓐᓇᖅᑭᓯ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖅᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ? ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐱᑕᖃᓐᖏᑉᐸᑦ, ᖃᓄᐊᓗᒃ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᖅᑭᓯ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑯᓗᓛᖅ.  
 
ᑯᓗᓛᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒨᖓᔪᑦ $2 ᒥᓕᐊᓐ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᖅ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᒐᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᕙᓪᓕᐊᓛᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᑯᔅᓴᐅᑎᑦᑎᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓᓂ. 
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For the two that we are talking about now 
in the training fund, the Building Capacity 
Committee decides what priorities will be 
given to fund what training. For those 
departments that want to get funding 
through this training fund, they have to 
bring it to the Building Capacity 
[Committee] and have a laid-out proposal 
of how they are going to be spending it.  
 
The specialized training funds are 
individual divisions within the department. 
Some examples that I can give you for this 
year when we reviewed the proposals… of 
the 18 that we approved, some examples 
are for CGS aviation fuel handling training 
and for the partnership between the 
Department of Environment and NAC is 
advanced wilderness first-aid. A much 
needed specialized training fund also goes 
to health and social services. I think they 
are presently preparing to deliver the 
paediatric advanced life support. Those are 
all being accessed through the specialized 
training fund. So the departments 
determine what specialized training they 
want to access through that. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you. We’re getting 
close to the end of the day and we will 
continue this tomorrow with Mr. Elliott 
first, then Mr. Aupaluktuq and Mr. 
Ningark.  
 
As we are at the end of the day now, I 
would like to thank Ms. Fraser for having 
come to appear before us. Like I said, her 
staff will be with us this week. I would like 
to ask Ms. Fraser for final thoughts before 
we finish today. Ms. Fraser. 
 
Ms. Fraser: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would very much like to thank the 
Committee for their interest in this report. 
The issue of human resource capacity is an 

 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᓇᓱᑦᑐᓂ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᒋᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐱᓯᒪᑦᑎᒻᒪᑕ ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖑᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒫ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒋᑦᑎᕗᑦ. 
ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᕋᒪ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒋᔭᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓯᕗᓕᖅᑎᔅᓴᑦ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᓈᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓯᓈᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᕗᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓇᖅᑎᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖑᔪᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓕᐅᕆᕙᒻᒪᑕ ᓇᓕᐊᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᑎᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
ᑐᔅᓯᕋᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᑐᔅᓯᕋᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐊᔾᔨᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
ᓲᕐᓗ ᐊᑐᓃᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓚᖏᓐᓂᑦ. ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᑕᒫᓂ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᒥ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᒐᑦᑎᒍ ᑐᔅᓯᕋᐅᑎᐅᔪᑦ 18-ᖑᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐊᖏᓚᐅᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂᑦ. ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒋᓗᒋᑦ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᖅᑎᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᖅᓱᖅᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑲᒪᔨᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᓂᒃ, ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᖏᑦ ᐊᕙᑎᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓯᓚᑦᑐᖅᓴᕐᕕᒃ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐋᓐᓂᖅᑐᖃᕐᓂᖅᑲᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐃᓄᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᐃᕙᒻᒥᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓱᕈᓯᓛᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᔾᔨᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᒡᒍᑕᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓯᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕈᒪᒐᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐅᓪᓗᒥ 
ᓈᒻᒪᓯᑕᐅᓕᕋᑦᑕ ᖃᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᓛᖅᑯᒍᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐃᐊᓕᐊᑦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᐸᓗᒃᑐᖅ, ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓂᓐᖓᖅ. 
 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕈᒪᔭᒃᑲ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓪᓗ ᑕᒫᓂ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᕐᒥ. ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ 
ᓂᓪᓕᕈᒪᒻᒪᖔᑦ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥᒃ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ.  
 
ᕗᐃᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕈᒪᔭᒃᑲ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᑐᓴᕈᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᖓᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
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important one in Nunavut and I hope that 
our audit will help the government to 
address some of the issues that we have 
raised and lead to improvements overall.  
 
I would like to inform the Committee that 
our next audit, which is on Family and 
Child Services, we’re planning to table that 
in the spring session in March. And as I 
always enjoy coming to Nunavut, I am 
hopeful that I will be able to come back for 
a hearing on that report before the end of 
my mandate, which is next May. 
 
So I look forward, I hope, to seeing the 
Committee again next spring. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Fraser. We 
will be seeing everyone else here tomorrow 
morning starting at 9:00. Thank you. We 
will see you here tomorrow.  
 
>>Committee adjourned at 16:51 
 

ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᓂᖅ 
ᐱᕚᓪᓕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒃᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅᐳᖅ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ ᐅᕙᒍᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᑲᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᑎᑦᑎᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓗ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕆᒐᔭᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕐᓂᖅ ᐃᓚᒌᓄᑦ ᓱᕈᓯᕐᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐅᐱᕐᖓᒃᓵᖑᓕᖅᐸᑦ ᒫᔾᔨᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒃᐸᒃᑲᑕ 
ᑕᒪᐅᓐᖓᕈᓐᓇᓛᖅᑐᒃᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᕆᕗᖓ 
ᓈᓚᓐᓂᖃᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒪᐃᒥ ᓄᖅᑲᕕᒃᓴᕋᒪ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᕿᓚᓈᖅᐳᖓ ᑕᑯᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᓛᕐᒥᒐᑦᑎ 
ᐅᐱᕐᖓᒃᓵᖑᓛᖅᑐᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕐ ᒥᔅ ᕗᐃᓴ. 9-
ᒨᖅᑲᑦ ᑕᑯᓛᕆᕗᒍᑦ, ᖃᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᑕᑯᓛᖅᐳᒍᑦ. 
 
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑐᑦ 16:51-ᒧᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
 

 


